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AIRPORT
FEATURES

The stunning new gateway to several spectacular 
tourism hotspots, Kannur International Airport is the 
fourth international airport in Kerala. Enabling a 
hassle-free approach to verdant and picturesque 
locales like Wayanad, Bekal, Coorg, Ooty, and Mysore, 
Kannur International Airport helps visitors conveniently 
access dazzling beaches, historic forts, and 
breathtaking hill stations. 

The area is also known for attractions like 
Muzhappilangad, the longest drive-in beach in Asia, 
Munderi Kadavu Bird Sanctuary, Pappinissery Snake 
Park etc, within a radius of 50 km from Kannur Airport. 
People also visit the North Malabar region for 
Ayurvedic, Medical, and Spiritual tourism. 

Being the land of unique and traditional cultural 
experiences, with evocative art forms like Theyyam and 
Kalari, Kannur has enthralled visitors from across the 
globe. At the airport, visitors are welcomed by intricate 
murals depicting various traditions of North Kerala.

Kannur Airport is all set to be the new gateway for 
tourists to rediscover God’s Own Country.

3050 m Long Runway | Instrument 
Landing System | Code E Complaint 
| Full Length Parallel Taxiway | Apron 
for parking 20 Code C Aircrafts | Six 
Aerobridges | ARFF Cat 7 scalable to 
Cat 9 | Parking Facility for 900 Cars | 
Full-�edged Cargo Complex

Capacity handle 9 million Passengers 
| Integrated Terminal with LEED 
Gold Rating | Lounges in Arrival and 
Departure | Self Check In Kiosks | 
Self Baggage Drop Facility | Meet & 
Greet Services | 24x7 Airport Taxi 
Service | Airport Hotel Inside 
Terminal Building | Duty Free Shops 
with Leading Brands | Visitors’ 
Gallery | Foreign Exchange Services 
| Baby Care Rooms

TAKING TOURISM,
TRAVEL AND TRADE
TO NEVER
BEFORE HEIGHTS

KANNUR AIRPORT
OFFERS OPPORTUNITIES FOR:

 Large land bank for aviation-related business
 Cargo potential for dry fruits, spices, fish, meat, tea,  
 coffee, and fresh flowers
 Popular destination for Ayurvedic, medical and   
 pilgrimage tourism
 Multi modal logistics
 Travel, leisure related business
 Retail, entertainment & events business
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NOTICE OF 12TH ADJOURNED AGM

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12th Adjourned Annual General Meeting of Kannur Internation-
al Airport Limited will be held at 11.30 am  on 6 June 2022, Monday  through Video Conferencing 
(VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)  to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To consider and adopt the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 
2021 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

By order of the Board
For Kannur International Airport Limited

Sd/- 
 Gnanendrakumar. G 

Company Secretary
	 Date  :  21 April 2022
	 Place : Kannur

Notes: 

1.	 In view of the continuing Covid -19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs  has vide its 
General Circular No.21/2021 dated 14.12.2021, granted an extension to conduct the AGM 
through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) till 30 June 2022. 
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and MCA Circulars, the ad-
journed AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

2.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint 
a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself /herself and such proxy need not be a member 
of the Company. Since this adjourned AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 
through VC/OAVM, the physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accord-
ingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the ad-
journed  AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this notice.

3.	 The notice of the AGM is being sent physically to the registered address of the shareholders 
and through electronic mode  to those members whose email addresses are registered with 
the Company. Members may please note that the Notice will also be available on the Compa-
ny’s website (www.kannurairport.aero).

4.	 The register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
31 May 2022 to 06 June 2022 both days inclusive.
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5.	 Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who ac-
quires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after  the notice is 
send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 16 December 2021, may 
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA 
(irrespective of NSDL/CDSL account holders) . However, if you are already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting 
your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.
com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 . In case of Individual Share-
holders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes 
a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off 
date i.e. 30 May 2022 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the Adjourned AGM un-
der “Access to NSDL/CDSL e-voting system”.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

1.1.	 In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to 
be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 21/2021  dated December 14, 2021, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by 
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 
and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members 
to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing 
(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in 
the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2.	 Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Cor-
porate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not 
available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised 
representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and 
cast their votes through e-voting.

3.	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Share-
holders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. 
who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served 
basis.
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4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), 
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members 
in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitat-
ing voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM 
will be provided by NSDL.

6.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the Adjourned AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Com-
pany at www.kannurairport.aero. The Adjourned AGM Notice is also available on the web-
site of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7.	 The Adjourned AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 21/2021   dated Decem-
ber 14, 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 
13, 2021.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENER-
AL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on 03 June 2022 at 9.00 A.M. and ends on 05 June 2022 at 5.00 
P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, 
whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off 
date) i.e. 30 May 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be 
in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date, being  30 May 2022.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode
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	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL.

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this 
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.	
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4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience.

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users 
to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/
login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see 
the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3.	 If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL 
for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30
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Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) 	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other 
than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders 
holding securities in physical mode.

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 
is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 
password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password.
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c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.	  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password:

a)	  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 
a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 
status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
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“Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to connect@pmacs.in  with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com  to reset 
the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 
44 30  or send a request to (Amit Vishal, Asst Vice President) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@kannurairport.
aero.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to cs@kannurairport.aero. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE 
AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote 
e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above 
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM 
link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested 
to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/
OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will 
be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for 
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the AGM may 
register themselves as a speaker may send their request from their registered email address 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, PAN, mobile number at cs@
kannurairport.aero from 26 May 2022 (9.00 a.m. IST) to 30 May 2022 ( 5.00 p.m IST). Those 
shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.
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t\m«okv

Xmsg ]dbp¶ CS]mSpIÄ¡mbn I®qÀ CâÀ\mjWÂ FbÀt]mÀ«v enanäUnsâ Hmlcn 

DSaIfpsS amänhbv¡s¸« 12þmaXv hmÀjnI s]mXptbmKw 2022 Bv Pq¬ amkw 6þmw XobXn 

Xn¦fmgvN ]IÂ 11.30\v Zriy am[ya¯neqsS (VC) AYhm aäp {ihy Zriy am[ya¯neqsS (OAVM) 
\S¯phm³ Xocpam\n¨Xmbn Adnbn¡p¶p.

km[mcW  CS]mSpIÄ 

1. 	 2021 amÀ¨v 31Â Ahkm\n¨ km¼¯nI hÀj¯nsâ HmUnäv sNbvX _me³kv joäv, 

em`\ã IW¡pIÄ AhbpsS A\p_Ô§Ä, ]«nIIÄ, I¼\n UbdÎÀamcpsSbpw 

HmUnäÀamcpsSbpw dnt¸mÀ«v F¶nh kzoIcn¨p ]cnKWn¡pIbpw AwKoIcn¡pIbpw sN¿pI.

t_mÀUnsâ  D¯chp{]Imcw 

I®qÀ  CâÀ\mjWÂ  FbÀt]mÀ«v  enanäUn\p thn 

H¸v 

Pn. Úmt\{µIpamÀ 

I¼\n sk{I«dn

	 Xo¿Xn :  21 G{]nÂ 2022

	 Øew : I®qÀ 
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AwK§fpsS {i²¡v 

1	 tImhnUv - 19 almamcnbpsS ]Ým¯e¯nÂ MCA, 14 Unkw_À 2021  

]pd¯phn« P\dÂ kÀ¡peÀ 21/2021 {]Imcw I¼\nIfpsS s]mXptbmK§Ä 

Zriyam[ya§Ä (VC) hgntbm AYhm aäp {ihy Zriy am[ya¯neqsS (OAVM) 

hgntbm \S¯p¶Xn\mbpÅ AwKoImcw 30 Pq¬ 2022 hsc \o«n X¶ncp¶p. 

BbXn\mÂ I¼\nbpsS amänhbv¡s¸« s]mXptbmKw Zriyam[yaw hgn  

\S¯phm³ Xocpam\n¨ncn¡p¶p.

2	 tbmK¯nÂ ]s¦Sp¡m\pw thm«v sN¿m\pw AhImiapÅ HcwK¯n\p {]Xn]pcp 

js\ (t{]mI-vkn) \nban¡phm\pw X\n¡v ]Icw Cbmsf thms«Sp¸nÂ ]s¦Sp¸n¡m\pw 

AhImiapmbncn¡p¶XmWv. F¶mÂ Cu s]mXptbmKw Zriy am[yaw hgn \S¯p¶Xn 

\mÂ AwK§Ä¡v t\cn«v ]s¦Spt¡ kmlNcyanÃ. BbXn\mÂ {]Xn]pcpjs\  

\nbant¡ Bhiyw AwK§Ä¡v hcp¶nÃ AXpsImv Xs¶ t{]mI-vkn t^mapw 

Aäâ³kv Én¸pw t\m«okns\m¸w DÄs¸Sp¯nbn«nÃ.

3	 tbmK¯nsâ t\m«okv I¼\nbnÂ cPnÌÀ sNbvXn«pÅ Hmlcn DSaIfpsS hnemk¯nte¡v  

X]mÂ hgnbpw AXmXv CþsabnÂ sFUnbnte¡v CþsabnÂ hgnbpw Ab¡p¶XmWv. 

tbmK¯nsâ t\m«okv I¼\nbpsS websiteepw A]v temUv sNbvXn«pv.  

(www.kannurairport.aero)

4	 I¼\nbpsS AwKXz cPnÌdpw Hmlcn ssIamä ]pkvXIhpw 2022 tabv 31þmw XnbXn apXÂ 2022 

Pq¬ 6þmw XobXn hsc (CcpZnhkhpw DÄs¸sS) achn¸n¨ncn¡p¶XmWv. (Book Closure).

5	 t\m«okv Ab¨Xn\ptijw I«v Hm^v XobXnbmb 30 tabv 2022\v ap¼mbn I¼\nbpsS 

HmlcnIÄ Physical FormÂ ssIhiw hbv¡p¶htcm Unamäv cq]¯nÂ HmlcnIÄ 

hm§n I¼\nbpsS AwKXzw kzoIcn¡p¶ hyànIÄ AÃm¯ aäp Hmlcn DSaItfm 

Øm]\§Ä XpS§nbh temKn³ sFUnbpw PasswordDw e`n¡p¶Xn\mbn 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. F¶ CsabnenÂ At]£n¡pItbm I¼\ntbtbm I¼\n 

bpsS RTAtbtbm _Ôs¸SpItbm sNt¿XmWv. (NSDLsâbpw  CDSLsâbpw 

A¡uv DSaIÄ) F¶ncp¶mÂ Hmlcn DSaIÄ NSDLsâ remote-evoting knÌ¯nÂ  

ap³]v cPnÌÀ sNbvXn«ps¦nÂ \nehnepÅ USER-IDbpw PasswordDw D]tbmKn¨v 

thm«v tcJs¸Sp¯mhp¶XmWv. Password HmÀ½bnÃm¯ ]£w www.evoting.nsdl.
com F¶ websiteÂ e`yamb ‘‘Forgot User Details/password” or Physical User 
Reset Password” F¶ Ahkcw D]tbmKn¨v Password Reset sN¿mhp¶Xpw kwib 

\nhmcW¯n\mbn Toll Free \¼À Bb 1800 1020 990, 1800 22 44 30Â _Ôs¸Smhp¶XpamWv. 

t\m«okv Ab¨Xn\v tijw I«v Hm^v XobXnbmb 30 tabv 2022\v ap³]mbn Unamäv 

cq]¯nÂ HmlcnIÄ hm§n I¼\nbpsS AwKXzw kzoIcn¡p¶ hyànIÄ s]mXptbmK 

t\m«oknÂ ‘Access to NSDL/CDSL e-voting System” F¶ hn`mK¯nÂ ]dbp¶  

\nÀt±i§Ä ]ment¡XmWv.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To The Members,

    Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 12th Annual Report and Audited Accounts of your
    Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

1.	 COMPANY SPECIFIC  INFORMATION

1.1.	 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company has commenced its commercial operations on 9 December 2018:

Particulars
For the year ended  
31 March 2021  
(Rs.  in lakhs).

For the year ended  
31 March 2020 
(Rs.  in lakhs).

Revenue from operations 4,477.06 11,589.80
Other  income 550.93 185.57
I.   Total Income 5,027.98 11,775.37
II.  Total Expenses 22,876.31 22,617.32
III. Share of Loss of Joint
       Venture Company (88.52) (44.02)

IV  Loss before tax (I- (II + III) (17,936.84) (10,885.97)
V   Tax Expense
             Current tax - -

             Short Provision For Tax
              Relating To Prior Years - -

             Deferred tax 558 (1389.19)
          Share of Joint Venture 4.84 7.08
         Total Tax expenses/(benefit) 562.84 (1382.11)
Loss  for the year   ( IV - V) (18,499.68) (9503.86)

Total accumulated loss (32,453.69)

(a)	 Revenue from Operations for 2020-21

•	 The company started generating operational revenue effective from 9/12/2018, which 
consists of Aero Revenue and Non Aero Revenue.
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•	 The components of the Aero Revenue of Rs. . 3165.23  Lakhs are as below:-

•	 The components of the Non-Aero Revenue of Rs..1186.23  Lakhs are as below:-
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•	 	Expenditure for 2020-21 (Total Rs. 22,876.31)

(b)	 Change in nature of business

	 There has been no change in the business of the Company during the Financial Year 
 	 ended 31 March 2021.
	
(c)	  Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 

Company, having occurred since the end of the Year and till the date of the Report.

    	 There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21 . The Covid 19 pandemic has severely 
affected the financial position of the Company during the current year.
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MANAGEMENT

2.1	 DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)	 Directors
	 As per the provisions of the Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company the 

maximum strength of Board of Directors is 20. As per the Article 85 of Articles of Associa-
tion,  Hon’ble Chief Minister of Kerala will be the Chairman of the Company. As per the Ar-
ticle 89(i) of the AOA, Government of Kerala appoints Managing Director of the Company.   
As per the Article  63(iii) of the AOA, Government of Kerala has nominated one third of the 
total number of Directors. Government of Kerala has nominated 6 Directors including the 
Chairman( Hon’ble Chief Minister of Kerala ) and Managing Director.

	 As per the provisions of the Shareholders agreement entered between Kannur Airport & 
BPCL, BPCL can nominate 2 Directors when they hold 20% in the paid up equity capital of 
the Company. At present BPCL is holding 16.20% in the paid up capital and has nominated 
one Director in the Board of Directors of Kannur Airport. 

	 As per the provisions of the Shareholders agreement entered between Kannur Airport & 
AAL, AAI can nominate 2 Directors in the Board of Directors of Kannur Airport.

(b) 	 Key Managerial Personnel 

(i)	 Managing Director        :      Dr. V.Venu  IAS 
(ii)	 Chief Financial Officer :      Sri S Jayakrishnan ACA
(iii)	 Company Secretary       :      Sri  G Gnanendrakumar FCS

(c) 	 Change in Directors as on the date of the Report.

	 Your Directors hereby state that as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013  and  Articles 
of Association of the Company, from the date of the earlier report till this report,  no chang-
es have occurred in the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.2  	 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
	 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar (DIN:01122411)  and Smt. K. Parvathy Ammal (DIN: 07254970) 

are the   Independent Directors of the Company. 

2.3   	 DECLARATION   OF  INDEPENDENT  DIRECTORS

	 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar (DIN:01122411)   and Smt. K. Parvathy Ammal (DIN: 07254970), 
the independent directors of the Company have furnished declaration(s) to the Board that 
they meet the criteria of ‘independence’ as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of 
Companies Act, 2013.
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2.4   BOARD MEETINGS

	 Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period under review, on   
26 June 2020, 17 October 2020, 03 December 2020 and 26 March 2021. 

2.5   COMMITTEES

(a)	  Audit Committee

  	 The Audit Committee of Board of Directors of the Company was reconstituted and at pres-
ent the Committee comprises the following members:

	 Audit Committee of the Board met  on 02 December 2020  during the year under  
consideration.

(b)	 Nomination  & Remuneration  Committee

	 As per Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meet-
ings of Board & its Power) Rules, 2014, the Board had constituted Nomination & Remuner-
ation Committee. At present the Committee consists of following members:	

Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Smt. Parvathy Ammal K, Independent Director Chairperson

2 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar, Independent Director Member

3 Smt. Geeta Venkatesh Iyer, CGM, Finance (KR) ,BPCL Member

Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Sri. A.K. Saseendran, Hon’ble Minister of Forest & Wildlife Chairman

2 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar, Independent Director Member

3 Smt. Parvathy Ammal, Independent Director Member

	 No meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held during  the year under 
consideration.

( c ) 	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)
	
	 Board of Directors had decided not to take up new CSR activities till the Company starts 

making profit. It was also decided to incur the committed expenditure on CSR projects  
already approved. 

	 Company had spent Rs. 7,86,625/-  towards  Corporate Social Responsibility during the year 
under consideration.
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Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Sri. M.V. Govindan Master, Hon’ble Minister of Local Self 
Government, Rural Development  & Excise Chairman

2 Dr. V. Venu IAS, Managing Director, Kannur Airport Member

3 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar, IAS( Retd),  Independent Director Member

4 Smt. Geeta Venkatesh Iyer, CGM, Finance (KR), BPCL Member

	 Only one meeting of Share Allotment & Transfer Committee was held during the year  
under review on 15 January 2021. 

(e) 	 Technical Committee

	 This committee was formed to consider and take decisions pertaining to technical matters 
of the project and take appropriate decisions for early completion of the project. Technical 
committees was entrusted with the authority for approval of all tenders and proposals in-
cluding commercial tenders up to  Rs. 25 crores. The members of the Committee are :

	 The CSR Policy of the Company is available in the website of the company.

 (d ) 	 Share Allotment And Transfer Committee
	
	 This Committee is the approving authority relating to allotment and transfer of shares and 

allied matters. The Board had constituted Share Allotment and Transfer Committee with 
the following members:

	 The CSR Committee of Board of Directors of the Company  at present consists of  
following members:

Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Sri. A.K. Saseendran, Hon’ble Minister of Forest & Wildlife	 Chairperson

2 Dr. V. Venu IAS, Managing Director, Kannur Airport Member

3 Smt. K. Parvathy Ammal, Independent Director Member

2112TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Sri. M.V. Govindan Master, Hon’ble Minister of Local Self 
Government, Rural Development  & Excise Chairman

2 Dr. V. Venu IAS, Managing Director, Kannur Airport  Member

3 Sri. M. Madhavan Nambiar, IAS (Retd),  Independent Director Member

4 Smt. Geeta Venkatesh Iyer, CGM, Finance (KR), BPCL Member

	 Three meetings of HR & Selection Committee were held during the year under review on 15 
October 2020, 5 February 2021 and 20 March 2021.

2.6  	 COMPANY’S POLICY ON  DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

	 The policy relating to appointment of Directors other than Government nominees and 
nominee directors based on shareholder’s agreement, payment of managerial remuneration, 
Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related 
matters in compliance with section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has con-
stituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee for this purpose.

2.7   	 DIRECTORS’  RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
    

	 To the best knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations ob-
tained by us, your Directors make the following statement in terms of provisions of Section 
134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 :

Sl. No. Name of the Member Designation

1 Sri. M.V. Govindan Master, Hon’ble Minister of Local Self 
Government, Rural Development  & Excise Chairman

2 Dr. V. Venu IAS, Managing Director, Kannur Airport Member

3 Sri.  Madhavan Nambiar Independent Director Member

	 Only one  meeting of Technical Committee was held during the year under review on  
23 February 2021.   

(f) 	 HR & Selection Committee
	
	 This committee was formed to consider and take decisions  pertaining to all HR related 

matters of the Company. The committee at present consists of the following members:
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i.	 In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the 
applicable Accounting Standards and the instructions provided under Schedule III  of 
the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed.

ii.	 Accounting policies selected have been applied consistently and reasonably and pru-
dent judgments and estimates have been  made so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at the end of 31 March  2021, and of the profit and loss 
of the company for the year ended on that date.

iii.	 Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregular-
ities.

iv.	 The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

v.	   Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all ap-
plicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.   

2.8   	 FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR

 	 No frauds have been reported by the Auditors under  Section 143 (12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.  There are no  frauds to be reported to Central  Government.

3	 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT  
	 VENTURES   

 3.1 	REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE    ASSOCI-
ATE  COMPANIES

 	 BPCL –KIAL Fuel Farm Pvt Ltd is the Associate Company of Kannur Airport. A state-
ment containing the salient features of the financial statement of Associate Company in 
Form AOC-1, is attached as Annexure.

4     	 DEPOSITS
	 The Company has not accepted deposit from members or the general public as on 31 

March 	 2021. There are no small depositors in the Company.
  
5     	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

 		  There were no loans , guarantees and investments  made by the Company under Section 	
	 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.
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  6 	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH  
RELATED PARTIES    

      
	 Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred to in sub-section 

(1) of Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 24 are set out in the Notes forming 
part of the accounts. These transactions are not likely to have a conflict with the interest of 
the Company. All the related party transactions are negotiated on arm’s length basis and 
are intended to protect the interest of the Company. Disclosure of particulars of contracts/
arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties are given in Form AOC – 2 
as attached as Annexure  to this report.

7    	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED  DISCLOSURES
	 There were no employees of the Company who have drawn remuneration in excess of the 

limits set out under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5 (2) and 
5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 
2014.

8    	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,   
     	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
	 The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been 
furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company during the year 
under review.

	 Further, during the year under review, following are the details of Foreign Exchange  
Earnings and Outgo:

                                     
Foreign Exchange Earning    : 	 Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo       : 	 USD 8151

9   	 RISK  MANAGEMENT

	 The Company has adequate system for business risk evaluation and management to ensure 
stable and sustainable business growth and to promote pro-active approach in evaluating 
and resolving the risks associated with the business. The Company has identified the po-
tential risks such as financial risk, legal and statutory risks and the internal process risk and 
has put in place appropriate measures for its mitigation. At present, the Company has not 
identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

10   	 MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES /REGULATORS

	 There were no  significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
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11   	 AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

         	 Statutory Auditors

	 M/s Delloite Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants  was appointed by the Board of Direc-
tors   as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for 5 years .  Their report forms 
part of this report. 

	 Management’s response to the Statutory Auditor’s Qualification/comments on the Compa-
ny’s Financial Statements.

 Basis for Adverse Opinion – Internal  Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

SL DELOITTE COMMENT KANNUR AIRPORT REPLY
a) Ensuring compliance with the ap-

plicable accounting standards and 
generally accepted accounting 
principles, with regard to validat-
ing the completeness and accuracy 
of cost (including the direct costs 
eligible for capitalization) for re-
cording Property, Plant and Equip-
ment; establishing a process of pe-
riodic verification of property plant 
and equipment and reconciling the 
same with the fixed asset register 
and books of account; validating 
the correctness of classification of 
the Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Company’s process of evaluat-
ing completeness and accuracy of 
transactions relating to acquisition 
/ construction of Property, Plant 
and Equipment through confirma-
tions and their reconciliation with 
respective vendor(s) as per books 
of account at regular intervals

1.	 Capitalization of Property Plant and Equip-
ment had been completed in FY 2018-19 it-
self with the help of CA firm which was also 
reviewed and finalized after taking into con-
sideration the comments of statutory audi-
tors. Hence Financial Statements were com-
piled as per applicable standards from FY 
2018-19 onwards in so far as Property, Plant 
and Equipment. Thereafter, there are no ma-
terial impact on Financial Statements with 
respect to Property Plant and Equipment. 
Changes in Financial Statements during the 
review process were made only as per the re-
quirements of Statutory Auditors, for which 
there is a prior approval of the Board to make 
changes suggested by Statutory Auditors.  

2.	 The Company is having internal financial 
controls for maintenance of records, record-
ing of transactions, recording of receipts and 
expenditure which are with authorizations of 
the management and Board of Directors of the 
Company. There is no unauthorized acquisi-
tion or disposition of assets without approval 
of the management.
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3.	 Assets and expenditure are being ac-
quired and expenditure incurred 
based on approvals of Board/Techni-
cal/HR Committee/Managing Director. 

4.	 There are proper approvals in place, espe-
cially on construction contracts. Invoices are 
verified by Consultants, Engineers of Kannur 
Airport and cleared for payment after verifi-
cation by Finance and Accounts and approv-
al of Managing Director. Assets were capi-
talized based on these certified invoices and 
the classification and recording of Property, 
Plant and Equipment was carried out based 
on these invoices after an elaborate process 
taking cognizance of regulatory principles. 
Classification and Certification of the value 
of Property, Plant and Equipment was con-
firmed by the Contractor and Consultant. 

5.	 Reconciliation of vendors are carried out year-
ly and appropriate adjustments are carried out 
in the Balance Sheet for the carrying value. The 
Company is implementing quarterly reconcil-
iation of vendor accounts from FY 2022-23.

6.	 Company is also having an Internal Audit 
mechanism to supplement internal financial 
controls for identifying weaknesses, if any. 

7.	 In so far as physical verification is concerned,  
Property, Plant and Equipment such as Run-
way, Terminal Buildings, BHS, PBB, ACFTs, 
Escalators, Elevators, X Ray machines, ATC, 
etc., which are all high value items are iden-
tifiable in the airport. These assets are always 
physically available in the airport, which con-
stitutes more than 62.80 % of the value. The 
airport cannot operate without these. 
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The following is the composition of PPE on the 
total value (Rs 189738.67 Lakh) of fixed assets:
a) Land –  Rs 69874.45 Lakh –  36.83%
b)Pavements – Rs 26525.84   Lakh –  13.98%
c)Buildings, Roads,– Rs 63694.14  Lakh –  33.57%
Bridges, Culverts
d) Electrical Equipment  – Rs  24274.77 Lakh –  
12.79%
e) Fire & Safety   – Rs 2759.85 Lakh –  1.45%
Equipment 
f)Plant & Equipment – Rs 1914.47 Lakh   –  1.01%
g)Furniture & Fixtures  – Rs   656.39 Lakh –   0.35%
h)Computer & Accessories – Rs 14.14 Lakh –   
0.01%
i)Office Equipment  –  Rs 24.20 Lakh    –  0.01%
j)Vehicles  –  Rs 0.42 Lakh  –  0.00% 
 TOTAL –  Rs 189738.67  Lakh –100%  
a.	 The Company had taken over the land 

(36.83%) prior to Commercial Operations 
Date after conducting a survey and is secured 
by property boundary wall. As such physical 
verification was not carried out. However, the 
Company had established a programme of 
physical verification of assets once in every 
three years for conducting a survey of land as 
approved by the management on 13 January 
2021. Survey of land will be conducted in due 
course.

b.	 SL Nos. (b) to (e) above (62.80 %) –  These 
assets comprise operational assets, which are 
operationally critical and are under continu-
ous monitoring and periodical maintenance 
programme as per the Operations & Manage-
ment contracts of the Company. Most of these 
assets are subject to regulatory compliance for 
operational requirements, for e.g., Runway 
(DGCA), Security Equipment (BCAS), etc. 
However, a technical certification that these 
assets are physically available in the airport 
was obtained from the Engineer concerned for 
FY 2021-22.
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c.	 SL Nos, (g) to (i) above (0.37%) – The man-
agement had approved on 12 January 2021 
to engage an agency for conducting physical 
verification of construction and other assets 
including tagging/coding with appropriate 
coding mechanism. The Company had already 
completed physical verification of assets for 
these assets during FY 2021-22. Appropriate 
adjustments to these assets will be made in the 
books for FY 2021-22 after reconciliation of 
the same.

d.	 The Company has engaged a CA firm to study 
and evaluate existing control mechanisms, 
evaluate the internal control weaknesses, if 
any and advise the Company on the measures 
to be adopted for improving the internal fi-
nancial control systems, preparation of an 
SOP and Accounting Manual. The firm has 
already submitted draft SOPs on critical func-
tions. Draft SOPs have been rolled out for key 
functions, which is under review.

b) Financial book closing procedures 
to ensure preparation of timely, 
reliable and appropriate financial 
statements.

Year-end book closing have been carried out with 
reconciliation of vendors/customers for FY 2020-
21. Book closing mechanism and monthly accrual 
of costs  implemented w.e.f 30 September 2021 for 
FY 2021-22

c) The Company’s process of ensur-
ing the completeness and accuracy 
of Aero, Non-aero and other oper-
ating revenue recorded during the 
year ended March 31, 20.

The Company is having contracts with vendors for 
aero and non-aero activities and other operating 
revenue. These contracts were awarded based on 
competitive tenders and billing of these had been 
carried out based on these contracts. Source data 
provided to Finance by Account Management 
Department for aero and non-aero activities and 
these are checked by Finance for any inconsisten-
cies in data and rectified prior to invoicing.
Company had implemented RMS software as a tem-
porary billing solution from August 2019 for billing 
aero and non-aero revenues compared to earlier 
manual data collection system for timely, accurate 
billing data. The source data from Operations Wing 
entered into RMS Software for Aero Revenues are 
validated and checked by Finance and Accounts for 
inconsistencies and invoices are raised. Similarly 
source data provided by Engg Wing
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into the RMS software are being used for invoic-
ing for Electricity and Water Non aero revenues, 
viz., MMG, Space Rent, etc., are invoiced based 
on contractual arrangements. The above software 
is still being used for AERO Revenue billing and 
Utilities. This software was introduced as a sub-
stitute for ERP considering the huge investment 
required for AODB and ERP systems.

After the introduction of RMS software, there has 
been a significant reduction in data validation er-
rors. There is no material leakage of revenue. CA 
certificates are being obtained from concession-
aires and the same has been validated.

In the past the Company took a view to follow the 
practice adopted by Cochin Airport in their early 
years of operations, being a similar model, for Eg. 
Tally ERP for accounting software. As such a de-
cision was taken earlier not to invest substantially 
in AODB/ERP software for automation. Howev-
er, in view of audit comments the Company has 
decided to automate business processes to capture 
real time data from external data points such as 
airlines/concessionaires. The bids for AODB and 
ERP tenders for automating business processes 
were opened on 25 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 
respectively. Implementation of AODB and ERP 
systems to automate data capture from source for 
aero/non aero revenues will ensure data validation 
and completeness to the maximum extent possi-
ble.
Hence the company has a process of ensuring 
completeness and accuracy of Aero, Non aero and 
Other operative revenue. Source data provided 
from User Departments are validated, checked 
and invoice and therefore there are no material 
inconsistencies. As such there are controls over 
billing and receivables.

Receivables statements are being prepared pe-
riodically and frequently sent out and follow up 
of payments is being carried out regularly by Ac-
count management department.
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d) The Company’s process of validat-
ing certain claims related to car-
ried forward of business losses and 
deduction under Section 35 AD  of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 and ac-
counting of the related tax effects 
under the applicable accounting 
standards, including projections 
to support the availability of fu-
ture taxable profits for utilization 
against such unused business loss-
es.

Revenue projections have been furnished to De-
loitte. As per this projection the Company is gen-
erating surplus from FY 2024 onwards and there-
fore expects that business losses and losses under 
Section 35AD will be recovered from FY 2024. 
However, the Company has not recognized De-
ferred Tax Assets as a matter of prudence and will 
recognize the same as and when there is sufficient 
evidence (For eg. Point of Call Status or award 
of material land monetization contracts, etc.,) to 
demonstrate the Company’s ability to generate 
substantial revenues to recover un used tax lossess.

The Company has a process of validating the 
claims related to carry forward of business losses 
and deduction under Section 35 AD. There is no 
time limit for carry forward and set off deduction 
under Section 35AD and unabsorbed deprecia-
tion. 

e) The Company’s process of assess-
ing recoverability of overdue re-
ceivables and making valuation 
adjustments, as necessary

The Company has a process of assessing the re-
coverability of overdue receivables since these are 
being regularly monitored, discussed at the man-
agement level. Commercial decisions are taken 
after discussions and giving due consideration to 
business opportunities, strengths and weakness-
es of the airport. The fact that the Company has 
a process of assessing the recoverability and how 
to address the same is also evident from the fact 
that some of these overdue receivables were taken 
up and addressed in the appropriate forum to re-
cover the same. Further overdue receivable state-
ments are being regularly sent out to debtors and 
followed up by the Account management team.

The Company has also recovered a significant por-
tion of overdue receivables from AIASL, GoAir, 
which constituted a major portion of overdue re-
ceivables based on which Financial Statements for 
FY 2020-21 were compiled taking into consider-
ation subsequent events post Balance Sheet date.
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3)   ANNEXURE-B to the Independent Auditors Report

i (c) The Company has not performed 
physical verification of fixed assets 
and neither has a programme of 
verification of fixed assets to cover 
all the items in a phased manner.

The Company had established a programme of 
physical verification of assets once in every three 
years for conducting a survey of land as approved 
by the management on 13 January 2021. Survey of 
land will be conducted in due course. The Com-
pany had engaged an agency for conducting phys-
ical verification of construction and other assets 
including tagging/ coding through appropriate 
coding mechanism and the physical verification of 
assets have been completed during FY 2021-22.

Appropriate adjustments to carrying amount of 
fixed assets will be made after reconciliation of the 
same.

vii (b) Non remittance of statutory dues 
of Rs 8.95 Lakh on unpaid bills of 
ULCCS Ltd

This represent TDS on unpaid bills of ULCCS Ltd, 
which the company had recognized as a liability in 
pass through capacity for work done outside the 
Airport Project on behalf of the Government by 
virtue of a Tripartite Agreement between Minor Ir-
rigation Department, ULCCS Ltd and Kannur Air-
port. The Company has already taken a view that 
these unpaid bills will not be paid since payment of 
Rs 10.66 Crore made to ULCCS Ltd earlier is not 
reimbursed to the Company except an amount of 
Rs 6.26 Cr as equity, which cannot be used by the 
Company. As such due to uncertainties involved 
on the fate of Rs 10.66 Crore this was not paid. 

The Company is approaching the Board to with-
draw from the Tripartite Agreement between 
ULCCS Ltd, Minor Irrigation Department and 
Kannur Airport after which the liability will be 
de-recognised.

xiv Delay in payment of Term Loan 
Interest

Delay occurred during the pandemic period lock 
down and when the Company was negotiating 
with the banks for re-structuring the term loan. A 
moratorium was granted by RBI for interest servic-
ing interest from 1 March 2020 to 31 August 2020 
due to COVID-19 induced stress. Therefore, a de-
lay occurred in interest servicing during the dis-
cussions with banks for granting moratorium for
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the period from Sept 2020 to Dec 2020 for servic-
ing interest on original term loan as per the debt 
restructuring proposal discussions. Moratorium 
was granted from January 2021 ill December 2022.

xv The amounts raised by the Com-
pany during the year have not 
been applied for the purposes for 
which the funds were raised to the 
extent of Rs 5489.14 Lakh

The Company had utilized equity funds during the 
Financial Year 2020-21 hit by COVID-19 pandem-
ic revenues fell by 57%. This necessitated the use 
of equity funds for revenue expenditure including 
major OPEX such as Term Loan Interest, Power & 
Utilities, O & M Expenditure and House Keeping. 
The Board had taken note of such utilisation and 
approved the utilization of equity funds for opera-
tional expenditure in the meeting held on 26 June 
2020 and equity funds will be re-couped from rev-
enue surplus.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

SL DELOITTE COMMENT KANNUR AIRPORT REPLY
a) We refer to Note 38 (ii) to the 

standalone financial statements, 
regarding certain claims raised 
by a a consultant aggregating Rs. 
76.02 Lakh (As at March 31, 2020: 
Rs. 198.22 Lakh) which are in the 
process of review by the Manage-
ment. The Company has not yet 
concluded its review/assessment 
on the final claim (including cer-
tain matters which are pending 
reconciliation) and pending the 
quantification of the amount 
eventually payable, has disclosed 
the amount of Rs. 76.02 Lakh as 
contingent liability. We are unable 
to comment on the liability to be 
recognised towards these claims 
and the possible impact on the 
carrying value of the related prop-
erty plant and equipment, and its 
consequential impact on the de-
preciation and loss for the year.

The amount of Rs 76.02 Lakh comprises the fol-
lowing:

(i) EMD on Consultancy Appointment – Rs 10 
Lakh – This amount is already refunded – Consul-
tant has misplaced it. 

(iii) Claims not certified – Rs 66.02 Lakh – Not 
admissible as per Engineer’s certificate.

The Company has compiled their statement of ac-
count and final amount payable and the same has 
been sent to the Consultant for reconciliation and 
confirmation. The contract is not yet closed and 
will be settled in due course.
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This was also subject matter of 
qualification in the Auditor’s Re-
port on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 issued on Novem-
ber 12, 2021.  

b) We refer to Note 31 and Note 43 
to the standalone financial state-
ments, wherein the Company has 
de-recognised deferred tax asset 
of Rs. 2969.21 Lakh recognized in 
the previous years pursuant to the 
Management’s taxable profit pro-
jections made as part of prepara-
tion of these standalone financial 
statements whereby it is no lon-
ger probable that sufficient future 
taxable profits will be available for 
setting off the unused tax losses 
before the time period for set-off 
of such losses expire. The recog-
nition of the deferred tax asset as 
at March 31, 2019 was qualified 
in our audit report dated Decem-
ber 3, 2020 for the said year in the 
absence of projections to support 
the availability of sufficient future 
taxable profits. Further, the recog-
nition of the deferred tax asset as 
at March 31, 2020 was qualified in 
our audit report dated November 
12, 2021 for the said year as suf-
ficient and appropriate audit evi-
dence to demonstrate the reason-
ability of the projections of future 
taxable profits were not available 
to support the availability of suf-
ficient future taxable profit for the 
utilization against such losses.

Revenue projections have been furnished to De-
loitte. As per this projection the Company is gen-
erating surplus from FY 2024 onwards and there-
fore expects that unabsorbed business losses will 
be recovered from FY 2024. However, the Com-
pany has not recognized Deferred Tax Assets as 
a matter of prudence during the current year and 
previous year Deferred Tax Asset (DTA) has been 
de-recognised. DTA will recognized in future as 
and when there is sufficient appropriate evidence 
(For eg. Point of Call status or award of material 
land monetization contracts, etc.,) to demonstrate 
the Company’s ability to generate substantial rev-
enues to recover past losses. In the absence of this, 
the Company has de-recognized the Deferred Tax 
Asset during the current financial year. The Com-
pany will re-evaluate the probability of recovering 
these unused tax losses in future and Deferred Tax 
Asset will be recognized as and when conditions 
exist which gives an indication to a reasonable lev-
el of certainty that these can be recovered. 

Considering the above, in our 
opinion the de-recognition of 
deferred tax asset that has been 
recorded in the standalone finan-
cial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 should have been
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recorded during prior year(s), 
thereby requiring a restatement of 
the comparative amounts for the 
prior year(s) presented, in accor-
dance with Ind AS 8: Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors. Conse-
quently, the losses for the current 
year are overstated by Rs. 2969.21 
Lakh and the Earnings per Share 
are overstated by Rs.(2.22) per 
share.

SL DELOITTE COMMENT KANNUR AIRPORT REPLY
1 We draw attention to Note 3(5) to 

the standalone financial statements 
where for the reasons stated therein, 
353.98 acres of land given on lease 
to the Company has not been recog-
nized in these standalone financial 
statements as the Company is yet to 
enter into any lease agreement with 
the Government of Kerala.

KINFRA is the Nodal Agency for acquiring 
land on behalf of Government of Kerala (GOK) 
for the Airport. Government’s share in the eq-
uity of the Company is in the form of land. Af-
ter completion of Government’s equity capital, 
the remaining land is to be transferred by the 
Government on lease as per relevant Govern-
ment Orders. Of the total land acquired, 1193 
acres had been transferred to Kannur Air-
port on ownership basis and equity has been 
allotted. An extent of 353.98 acres within the 
boundary wall of the airport is to be to be giv-
en on lease to Kannur Airport against payment 
of lease rent. The original lease terms was for 
a period of 60 years on token lease rent. How-
ever, these terms were reviewed subsequently 
by the Government in March 2019 and it has 
been decided that land required for operational 
purposes will be on token lease rent, land for 
commercial purposes will be on lease rent of 
the Government with the lease rent to be re-
viewed every five years and a lease holiday of 
five years or until the Company reaches cash 
profit whichever is earlier.  
However in a meeting of the Company with the 
Government in Sept 2019, it was decided that 
land used for commercial activities will be on 
lease rent applicable for commercial activities. 
The relevant Government Order for this is yet 
to be issued and the Company had already tak-
en up this matter with the Government.

BASIS FOR EMPHASIS OF MATTER & OTHER MATTERS PARAGRAPH
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Hence the lease agreement will be entered into 
after the Government issues the relevant Gov-
ernment Orders with the revised terms of lease.

2 We draw attention to Note 2.3 and 
Note 36 of the standalone financial 
statements which describes the un-
certainties due to the outbreak of 
Covid-19 pandemic and the Manage-
ment’s assessment of impairment of 
carrying values of Property, Plant & 
Equipment (including Capital work-
in-progress) in the standalone finan-
cial statements of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date. 

Based on such assessment, the Man-
agement expects the carrying amount 
of Property, Plant & Equipment (in-
cluding Capital work-in-progress) 
will be recovered. The actual impact 
of the pandemic may be different 
from that considered in assessing the 
recoverability of these assets.

Management comments are given in Note 2.3 
and Note 36

3 Attention is invited to Note 41 of the 
standalone financial statements re-
garding the deficit in PSF (SC) which 
has not been recognized in these fi-
nancial statements as a liability since 
the Company is only acting in a pass 
through capacity of receiving the PSF 
(SC) from the airlines and utilizing 
the same towards the cost of deploy-
ment of CISF personnel and their re-
lated expenses and considering the 
fact that the responsibility of provid-
ing security personnel to the airport 
is with the Government of India.

Passenger Service Fee as approved by MoCA 
are billed to airlines for embarking passengers. 
PSF collections are used for meeting expendi-
ture towards cost of deployment of CISF per-
sonnel.  PSF Collections are kept in Escrow 
Accounts and cannot be used for Airport’s own 
expenditure and hence the same is accounted 
for in a pass through capacity.
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4 Attention is invited to Note 6 of the 
standalone financial statements re-
garding Management’s assessment of 
recoverability of deposit of Rs.982.03 
Lakh based on the reasons stated in 
the said Note.

Company had deposited an amount of Rs 
982.03 lakh as security deposit prior to com-
mencement of commercial operations towards 
cost of deployment of 613 CISF personnel at 
the airport. This was paid from term loan bor-
rowings. The cost of deployment of CISF per-
sonnel is to be met from PSF Collections from 
embarking passengers. Since PSF collections 
were inadequate due to low passenger volumes, 
this Security Deposit could not be recouped 
from PSF Collections. Hence the Company had 
requested MoCA to refund the same.

OTHER MATTERS PARAGRAPH
We draw attention to Note 44 of the 
standalone financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2021 on our 
appointment as statutory auditors of 
the Company by the members of the 
Company under section 139(2) of the 
Act for a term of five (5) years from 
the conclusion of the 9th annual gen-
eral meeting until the conclusion of 
the 14th annual general meeting (i.e. 
in respect of the financial year end-
ed March 31, 2019 until the financial 
year ending March 31, 2023).  We un-
derstand that the Company has filed 
a writ petition challenging the view of 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs that 
the Company is a government com-
pany as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013, and its direction that the 
Company’s auditors need to be ap-
pointed by the Comptroller and Au-
ditor General of India under section 
139(5) of the Act. 
We are informed that the aforesaid 
direction is currently under an inter-
im stay under order dated December 
3, 2019 issued by the Hon’ble High 
Court of Kerala and that the matter 
is sub-judice.  Our appointment as 
auditors of the Company is subject to 
the eventual outcome of this matter. 

The Company’s position with respect to ap-
pointment of Statutory Auditors have not 
changed since the last reporting date.
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This was also reported under Other 
Matters in the Auditor’s Report on the 
financial statements for the year end-
ed March 31, 2019 issued on Decem-
ber 3, 2020.  The Board of Directors of 
the Company continue to reaffirm our 
appointment as auditors of the Com-
pany based on legal advice obtained 
by them and also the shareholders of 
the Company in the Annual General 
Meeting held on December 28, 2020 
have noted the Other Matter on ap-
pointment of statutory auditors re-
ported in the audit report for the year 
ended March 31, 2019 as a part of ap-
proval of the Annual Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended March 
31, 2019 together with Directors’ Re-
port and Auditors’ Report thereon 
and did not have any reservations 
/ comments regarding the appoint-
ment of the statutory auditors.

Internal Auditors
The Board of Directors had appointed M/s Varma & Varma Chartered Accountants, Kannur as the 
Internal Auditors of the Company, as per the provisions of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, for the Financial Year 2020-21. 

Secretarial Auditor
The Board of Directors had appointed M/s PMA & Associates, (formerly M/s Ashique Sameer   
Associates) Company Secretaries Kozhikode as Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as per 
the provisions of Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies ( Appointment and  
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014,  for the Financial Years 2020-21 and 2021-22.  
The Secretarial Audit Report   in Form MR-3 for the Financial Year ended 2020-21  is attached with 
this report as Annexure. 

Cost Auditor
As per the provisions of Section 148 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, Rule (3) & (4) of  
Companies (Cost Records  & Audit) Rules 2014, Company maintains cost records, and M/s Sankara  
Kumar Associates, Cost Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram, was appointed as Cost Auditor for the  
FY 2020-21.

12    	 COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI     
	 The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Board of 

Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries  
of India and approved by the Central Government.
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13   	 ANNUAL  RETURN
	 The website of the Company is www.kannurairport.aero. The annual return of the company 

has been published in the website. Link of the same is given below:
	 https://kannurairport.aero/annual-return-financial-year-2020-21
	 The extract of Annual Return of the Company in the prescribed Form MGT-9 is annexed 

herewith as Annexure  to this Report.

14     	 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	 According to the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS 110) the consolidated audited financial statements are 
provided in the Annual Report. 

15    	 DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT  OF WOMEN AT  
	THE 	 WORKPLACE  (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

 
           The Company has in place a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the workplace in 

line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at the workplace (prevention, 
prohibition & redressal) Act, 2013.

         	 Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) 
are covered under this policy. The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints 
received and disposed during the year.

	 (a)	 Number of complaints received during the year           :  NIL
	 (b)	 Number of complaints disposed off during the year     : NIL
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Sd/-
Place: Kannur 	 Pinarayi Vijayan 
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                                                                                                         DIN: 0001907262
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Annexure FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate compa-

nies/joint ventures
(Pursuanttofirstprovisotosub-section(3)ofsection129readwithrule5of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules,2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

Sl.No. Particulars Details

1 Name of the subsidiary NA

2 Date on which subsidiary was acquired NA

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company's  reporting period

NA

4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsid-
iaries

NA

5 Share capital NA

6 Reserves &surplus NA

7 Total assets NA

8 Total Liabilities NA

9 Investments NA

10 Turnover NA

11 Profit before taxation NA

12 Provision for taxation NA

13 Profit after taxation NA

14 Proposed Dividend NA

15 % of shareholding NA

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1.	 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2.	 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Com-

panies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures BPCL-KIAL Fuel  
Farm Pvt Ltd

Name 2 Name 3

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2021

2.SharesofAssociate/Joint Ventures 
held by the company on the yearend
(a)	 Number 23,40,000
(b) Amount of Investment in Associ-
ates/Joint Venture

2,34,00,000

(c )Extend of Holding % 26%

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures BPCL-KIAL Fuel
Farm Pvt Ltd

Name 2 Name 3

3.Description of how there is signifi-
cant influence

Because of share-
holding

4.Reason why the associate/joint ven-
ture is not consolidated

5.Networth attributable to Sharehold-
ing as per latest audited Balance Sheet

(79,85,409.05)

6. Profit / Loss for the year (6,05,71,708.46)
i. Considered in Consolidation
i. Not Considered in Consolidation

1.	 Namesofassociatesorjointventureswhichareyettocommenceoperations.
2.	 Namesofassociatesorjointventureswhichhavebeenliquidatedorsoldduringtheyear.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

For and on behalf of the Board
							     

Sd/-
Place: Kannur 	 Pinarayi Vijayan 
Date: 21 April 2022 	 Chairman

                                                                                                         DIN: 0001907262
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Form AOC -2 
Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act  and Rule 8(2) of the Com-

panies (Accounts) Rule 2014
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.
Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name (s) of the related party Nil
2 Nature of relationship Nil
3 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil
4 Duration of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 
Nil

5 Salient terms of contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any

Nil

6 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or trans-
action

Nil

7 Date of approval by Board Nil
8 Amount paid as advance, if any Nil
9 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General Meeting as 

required under first proviso to Section 188
Nil

2.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis
Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name (s) of the related party BPCL-KIAL Fuel Farm Pvt Ltd
2 Nature of relationship  Joint Venture Company  with BPCL. Kannur 

Airport holds 26% equity in the JV Company 
(BPCL holds 74% equity)

3 Nature of contracts/arrangements/
transaction

Lease Agreement with BPCL KIAL Fuel 
Farm Ltd, JV Company

4 Duration of the contracts or arrange-
ments or transaction including the 
value, if any 

30 years

5 Salient terms of contracts or arrange-
ments or transaction including the 
value, if any

28,000sq.m  of land was leased out to the JV 
Company to build and operate Fuel Farm for 
Kannur Airport

6 Date of approval by Board 10 September 2014
7 Amount paid as advance, if any Nil

For and on behalf of the Board
							     

Sd/-
Place: Kannur 	 Pinarayi Vijayan 
Date: 21 April 2022 	 Chairman

                                                                                                         DIN: 0001907262

4112TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



To,

Members
KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office: 
KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (PO), 
MATTANNUR, KANNUR - 670708

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2020-21 is to be read along with 
this letter.
Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable  
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of  
Accounts of the company.
Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,  
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

							       For Ashique Sameer Associates
					   
							       Sd/-
Place: Calicut 	 PM Abdul Sameer FCS
Date: 18/01/2022 	 CP No: 7759

ASHIQUE SAMEER ASSOCIATES ANNEX
COMPANY SECRETARIES

IInd Floor, SG Arcade, K T Gopalan Road, Kottooli, Calicut 
Ph : +91 495 274 1533, 3633, 4633

E-mail: asaannex@gmail.com
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Form MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial year ended 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

Members
KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Regd. Office: 
KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (PO), 
MATTANNUR, KANNUR - 670708

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED 
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the  
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial au-
dit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter

1.	 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

	 a.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
	 b.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
	 c.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
	 d.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

ASHIQUE SAMEER ASSOCIATES ANNEX
COMPANY SECRETARIES

IInd Floor, SG Arcade, K T Gopalan Road, Kottooli, Calicut 
Ph : +91 495 274 1533, 3633, 4633
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2.	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards 
on meeting of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting 
(SS-2) (together referred to as Secretarial Standards) as approved by central government, 
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1.	 Board Meeting held on 26/03/2021 has appointed Mr. Venu Vasudevan (DIN: 01105099) as 
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 12/03/2021 as per the Article No. 89(i) of AOA of 
the Company based on GO dated 11/02/2021 issued by Govt of Kerala. The Company has 
not filed MR-1 (Return of appointment of key managerial personnel) with the Registrar of 
Companies with respect to the appointment of Managing Director as per sec 196(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

2.	 The Company has reappointed Mr. Maniedath Madhavan Nambiar (DIN: 01122411) and 
Ms. Krishnaiyer Parvathyammal (DIN: 07254970) as Independent Directors of the Compa-
ny w.e.f 07/07/2020.  As per the information available to us, Independent Directors have not 
enrolled their name in the data bank of Independent Directors as per rule 6 of The Compa-
nies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

We further report that 

1.	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the compo-
sition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

2.	 As informed by management, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a  
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. The company is 
also following the system of circulating the minutes of the Board Meeting in draft form to 
all Directors within the time stipulated in the secretarial standards and get confirmation 
thereon

3.	 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

•	 As informed, the company has responded appropriately to notices received from various  
statutory / regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever 
found necessary.

For Ashique Sameer Associates
					   
							       Sd/-
Place: Calicut 	 PM Abdul Sameer FCS
Date: 18/01/2022 	 CP No: 7759

UDIN: F007060C002197996
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Form No.MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on The Financial Year Ended on 31 March 2021   

[ Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.          REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
1 CIN U63033KL2009PLC025103
2 Registration Date 3 December 2009
3 Name of the Company KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIR-

PORT LIMITED
4 Category/Sub-Category of the company Company Limited by Shares 

Unlisted Public Company
5 Address of the Registered Office & Contact 

Details
Kannur International Airport, Kan-
nur International Airport P.O., Mat-
tannur, Kannur - 670708

6 Whether Listed Company No
7 Name, Address & Contact Details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, If any.
SKDC Consultants Limited,  “Surya” 
35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind 
Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, 
Coimbatore – 641028, TN, India

II.          PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY DETAILS:
(All the business activities Contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company 
shall be stated)
S. No Name and Description of main products / 

Services 
NIC code of the 
product / Service

% the total 
turnover of the 
Company

1 Supporting services to Air transport, like 
operation of airports flying facilities, ra-
dio beacons, flying control centres, radar 
stations etc. 

52231 98.42

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and Address 
of the Company

CIN / GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 
Associate

% of Shares 
held 

Section

1 BPCL-KIAL Fuel 
Farm Private  
Limited

U23200KL2015PTC038487 Associate      26% 2(6)
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IV.       SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
               (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)

i)	 Category – wise Share Holding

Category of 
Share Hold-
ers

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
[As on 01-April-2020]

No of Shares held at the  
end of the year [As on 
31-March-2021]

%  
Change 
During  
the year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
total 
shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a)Individual/ 
HUF

0

b) Central 
Govt 

0

c) State 
Govt(s)

525,00, 000 0 525,00,000 39.23 525,00,000 0 525,00,000 Nil

d) Bodies 
Corp.

0

e) Banks/FI 0

f) Any Other 
(Top 50  
Share  
Holders)

0

Sub total (A)
((1)

525,00, 000 0 525,00,000 39.23 525,00,000 0 525,00,000 Nil

(2) Foreign 0

a) NRI      In-
dividuals 

0

b) Other  
Individuals 

0

c) Bodies 
Corp.

0

d) Any Other

Sub Total  
(A) (2) 

525,00,000 0 525,00,000 39.23 525,00,000 0 525,00,000 Nil

TOTAL (A) 525,00,000 0 525,00,000 39.23 525,00,000 0 525,00,000 Nil
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B. Public 
Share 
holding 

1. Institu-
tions

0

a) Mutual 
Funds

0

b) Banks / FI 0

c) Central 
Govt

0

d) State Govt 
(s)

0

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds

0

f) Insurance 
Companies

0

g) FIIs 0

h) Foreign 
Venture 
Funds

0

i) Others 0

Sub-Total (B) 
(1)

0

2. Non-Insti-
tutions

a) Bodies 
Corp.

i) Indian  
(PSUs, 
Banks, Com-
panies 
Co-op 
Banks, soci-
eties)

15,82,544 4,14,79,500 4,30,62,044 32.18 15,82,544 4,14,79,500 4,30,62,044 Nil

ii) Overseas NIL

b) Individ-
uals
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i) Individual 
Sharehold-
ers holding 
nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 1 
Lakh

33,300 45,58,100 45,91,400 3.44 33,300 45,58,100 45,91,400 Nil

ii) Individual 
sharehold-
ers holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh

1,39,500 54,42,056 55,81,556 4.17 1,39,500 54,42,056 55,81,556 Nil

Foreign 
Nationals
(NRIs)

89300 2,79,87,800 280,77,100 20.98 89300 2,79,87,800 280,77,100 Nil

Clearing 
Members

0

Trusts 0

Foreign Bod-
ies – D R

0

Sub-Total 
(B) (2)

0

Total Pub-
lic(B)

8,13,12,100 60.77 8,13,12,100 Nil

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

5,43,44,644 7,94,67,456 13,38,12,100 100 5,43,44,644 7,94,67,456 13,38,12,100 Nil
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(iv)   Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and 	
Holders of  GDRs and ADRs)
Sl N For each of the 

Top 10 share-
holders

Date Reason Shareholding at the be-
ginning of the year 

Cumulative Sharehold-
ing during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares

1 Bharat Petro-
leum Corpora-
tion Limited
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

216,80,000 16.20 216,80,000 16.20

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl 
No.

Sharehold-
er’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year (01.04.2020)

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(31.03.2021)

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
Com-
pany

% of 
Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum-
bered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
Compa-
ny

% of 
Shares 
Pledged/
encum-
bered 
to total 
Shares

% 
Chang-
ing in 
Share-
holding 
during 
the year

2 Government 
of Kerala, 
(On behalf 
of Govt. of 
Kerala)

525,00,000 39.23 51 525,00,000 39.23 51 NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Share Holding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year
Cumulative sharehold-
ing during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

Govt: of 
Kerala

At the be-
ginning of 
the year

525,00,000 39.23 525,00,000 39.23

Changes 
during the 
year

0 0 0 0

At the end 
of the year

525,00,000 39.23
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Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

216,80,000 16.20

2 Airports Au-
thority of India
At the begin-
ning of the 
year
Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 100,00,000 7.47

3 Federal bank
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

25,00,000 1.87 25,00,000 1.87

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

- - 0 0 25,00,000 1.87

4 Adeeb Ahamed
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

15,00,000 1.12 15,00,000 1.12

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 15,00,000 1.12

5 State Bank of 
India
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

15,00,000 1.12 15,00,000 1.12

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 15,00,000 1.12

6 The Mookkan-
nur Service 
Co-operative 
Bank
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At the begin-
ning of the 
year

11,00,000 0.82 11,00,000 0.82

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 11,00,000 0.82

7 Eloor Service 
Cooperative 
Bank
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

10,25,000 0.77 10,25,000 0.77

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 10,25,000 0.77

8 Canara Bank
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

10,00,000 0.75 10,00,000 0.75

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 10,00,000 0.75

9 Kerala State 
Industrial 
Development 
Corporation
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

10,00,000 0.75 10,00,000 0.75

Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

0 0 10,00,000 0.75

10 Kerala State 
Bevarages (M 
& M) Corpora-
tion Ltd
At the begin-
ning of the 
year

8,06,000 0.60 8,06,000 0.60
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Changes 
during the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of 
the year

8,06,000 0.60

(V)     Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial personnel during the period under 
consideration;
SN Share holding of 

each Directors 
and each Key 
Managerial Per-
sonnel

Date Reason Share holding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative share-
holding during the 
year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares

No. of 
shares

% of 
total 
shares

1 Sri MA Yusuffali
At the beginning 
of the year

115,00,000 8.59 115,00,000 8.59

Changes during 
the year

0 0

At the end of the 
year

115,00,000 8.59

2 Dr. Hassan Kunhi 
M P 
At the beginning 
of the year

50,00,000 3.74 50,00,000 3.74

Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

0 0 50,00,000 3.74

3. Sri. Abdul Qadir 
Theruvath
At the beginning 
of the year

25,00,000 1.87 25,00,000 1.87

Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

25,00,000 1.87

4. Dr. Shamsheer 
V P
At the beginning 
of the year

25,00,000 1.87 25,00,000 1.87

5312TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

25,00,000 1.87

5. Sri. V. Thulasidas 
At the beginning 
of the year

2000 0.001 2000 0.001

Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

2000 0.001

6. Sri. Pinarayi Vi-
jayan
At the beginning 
of the year

1000 0.001 1000 0.0007

Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

1000 0.0007

7 E. Chan-
drasekharan
At the beginning 
of the year

1000 0.001 1000 0.0007

Changes during 
the year

0 0 0 0

At the end of the 
year

1000 0.0007

V.          INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for pay-
ment-NIL
Particulars Secured Loan ex-

cluding deposits 
(in lakhs)

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebted-
ness   (in lakhs)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year.
i)  Principal    
Amount

89,567.04 NIL NIL 89,567.04

ii) Interest due 
but not paid

NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii)Interest ac-
crued  but not 
due

673.97 NIL NIL 673.97
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Total (i+ii+iii) 90,241.01 NIL NIL 90,241.01
Change in the Indebtedness during the financial year
*    Addition
*    Reduction
Net change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)   Principal 
Amount

95,166.78 NIL NIL 95,166.78

ii) interest due 
not paid

NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest 
accrued but not 
due 

61.40 NIL NIL 61.40

Total (i+ii+iii) 95,228.18 NIL NIL 95,228.18

VI.      REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 	 PERSONNEL
A.           Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time Directors and /or Manager NIL
SN Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/

WTD/MANAGER Total Amount 

V. Thulasidas
1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions con-
tained in Section 17(1) of the Income 
–tax Act,1961

35,92,462/-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income- tax ACT, 1961 4,71,774/-

(C) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17 (3) Income –tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Operation
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission  

–as % of profit  
-others, specify

5 Others, please specify – IAS Officer’s 
Allowance
Total (A) 40,64,236/- 40,64,236/-
Ceiling as per Act
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SN Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount (Rs.)

1 Independent Directors Madhavan Nam-
biar

Parvathy Ammal

Fee for attending board /com-
mittee meetings

Rs 65,000/- Rs 45,000/- Rs 1,10,000/-

Commission NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total (1)

2 Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL
Fee for attending board com-
mittee meetings

NIL NIL NIL

Commission NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL
Total (B)=(1+2) Rs 65,000/- Rs 45,000/- Rs 1,10,000/-
Total Managerial Remuneration Rs 65,000/- Rs 45,000/- Rs 1,10,000/-
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

SN Particular of Remuner-
ation

Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount  
(Rs.)

Name S. Jayakrishnan G. Gnanendrakumar
Designation CFO CS

1 Gross Salary
(a)   salary as per provi-
sions contained in sec-
tion 17(1) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

Rs 34,30,052/- Rs: 14,61,308/- Rs 48,91,360/-

(b)  Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) Income Tax, 
1961
© Profits in lieu of sal-
ary under section 17(3) 
Income –tax Act,191

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission  

-as % of profit 
-others, specify

5 Others, please specify 
Total Rs 34,30,052/- Rs: 14,61,308/- Rs 48,91,360/-
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VII.              PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
TYPE: Section of 

the Compa-
nies Act

Brief  
Description

Details of 
Penalty /
Punishment/ 
Compound-
ing fees 
imposed

Authority [ 
RD/NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal 
made, if any 
(give details)

A.      COMPANY 
Penalty NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
							     

Sd/-
Place: Kannur 	 Pinarayi Vijayan 
Date: 21 April 2022 	 Chairman

                                                                                                         DIN: 0001907262
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Qualified Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of KANNUR INTERNA-
TIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the State-
ment of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a sum-
mary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section below, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in con-
formity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other ac-
counting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2021, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
	
(a)	 We refer to Note 38(ii) to the standalone financial statements, regarding certain claims raised 

by a consultant aggregating Rs. 76.02 Lakh (As at March 31, 2020: Rs. 198.22 Lakh) which are 
in the process of review by the Management.  The Company has not concluded its review/as-
sessment on the final claim (including certain matters which are pending reconciliation) and 
pending the quantification of the amount eventually payable, has disclosed the amount of Rs. 
76.02 Lakh as contingent liability. We are unable to comment on the liability to be recognised 
towards these claims and the possible impact on the carrying value of the related property, 
plant and equipment, and its consequential impact on the depreciation and loss for the year. 

This was also subject matter of qualification in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the stand-
alone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 issued on November 12, 2021.

  
(b)	 We refer to Note 31.2 and Note 43 to the standalone financial statements, wherein the Com-

pany has de-recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 2969.21 Lakh recognized in the previous 
years pursuant to the Management’s taxable profit projections made as part of preparation of 

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  

Opp. Oberon Mall, NH-47 Bypass, Edapally, Kochi-682024 
Ph : +91 484 6649 100, Fax: +91 484 6649 150
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these standalone financial statements whereby it is no longer probable that sufficient future 
taxable profits will be available for setting off the unused tax losses before the time period for 
set-off of such losses expire. The recognition of the deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2019 
was qualified in our audit report dated December 3, 2020 for the said year in the absence of 
projections to support the availability of sufficient future taxable profits. Further, the recogni-
tion of the deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2020 was qualified in our audit report dated No-
vember 12, 2021 for the said year as sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to demonstrate 
the reasonability of the projections of future taxable profits were not available to support the 
availability of sufficient future taxable profit for the utilization against such losses.  

 
	 Considering the above, in our opinion the de-recognition of deferred tax asset that has been 

recorded in the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 should 
have been recorded during prior year(s), thereby requiring a restatement of the comparative 
amounts for the prior year(s) presented, in accordance with Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Consequently, the losses for the current year 
are overstated by Rs. 2969.21 Lakh and the Earnings per Share are overstated by Rs.(2.22) per 
share.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Fi-
nancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us, subject to our comments in paragraph 1(a) of the section 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the standalone financial statements:

1.	 Note 3.5 to the standalone financial statements where for the reasons stated therein, 353.98 
acres of land given on lease to the Company has not been recognised in these standalone 
financial statements as the Company is yet to enter into any lease agreement with the Gov-
ernment of Kerala. 

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
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2.	 Note 36 of the standalone financial statements which describes the uncertainties due to the 
outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and the Management’s assessment of impairment of car-
rying values of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) in the 
standalone financial statements of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

	 Based on such assessment, the Management expects the carrying amount of Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) will be recovered. The actual impact of 
the pandemic may be different from that considered in assessing the recoverability of these 
assets.

3.	 As explained in Note 41 of the standalone financial statements regarding the deficit in Pas-
senger Service Fee (Security Component) [PSF (SC)] which has not been recognized in these 
financial statements as a liability since the Company is only acting in a pass through capacity 
of receiving the PSF (SC) from the airlines and utilizing the same towards the cost of deploy-
ment of CISF personnel and their related expenses and considering the fact that the respon-
sibility of providing security personnel to the airport is with the Government of India.

4.	 As stated in Note 6.1 of the standalone financial statements, regarding Management’s assess-
ment of recoverability of deposit of Rs.982.03 Lakh based on the reasons stated in the said 
Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

•	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other in-
formation comprises the information included in the board of directors report, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

•	 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	 In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

•	 The Director’s Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s 
report.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements		

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of  adequate 
accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  appli-
cation  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting re-
cords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to go-
ing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial state-
ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a mate-
rial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain pro-
fessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  

Opp. Oberon Mall, NH-47 Bypass, Edapally, Kochi-682024 
Ph : +91 484 6649 100, Fax: +91 484 6649 150

6112TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omis-
sions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to de-
sign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account-
ing estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of account-
ing and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to contin-
ue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial state-
ments, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individ-
ually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiali-
ty and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rel-
evant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relation-
ships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

We draw attention to Note 44 of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 
2021 on our appointment as statutory auditors of the Company by the members of the Company 
under section 139(2) of the Act for a term of five (5) years from the conclusion of the 9th annual 
general meeting until the conclusion of the 14th annual general meeting (i.e. in respect of the fi-
nancial year ended March 31, 2019 until the financial year ending March 31, 2023). We understand 
that the Company has filed a writ petition challenging the view of the Ministry of Corporate Af-
fairs that the Company is a Government Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, and 
its direction that the Company’s auditors need to be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India under section 139(5) of the Act.  

We are informed that the aforesaid direction is currently under an interim stay under order dated 
December 3, 2019 issued by the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala and that the matter is sub-judice. 
Our appointment as auditors of the Company is subject to the eventual outcome of this matter.  

This was also reported under Other Matters in the Auditor’s Report on the financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2019 issued on December 3, 2020 and in the Auditor’s Report on the fi-
nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 issued on November 12, 2021.  The Board of 
Directors of the Company continue to reaffirm our appointment as auditors of the Company based 
on legal advice obtained by them and also the shareholders of the Company (a) in the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting held on December 28, 2020 have noted the Other Matter on appointment of statutory 
auditors reported in the audit report for the year ended March 31, 2019 as a part of approval of the 
Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 together with Directors’ Re-
port and Auditors’ Report thereon; (b) in the Annual General Meeting held on December 23, 2021 
have noted the Other Matter on appointment of statutory auditors reported in the audit report for 
the year ended March 31, 2020 as a part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2020 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon, and 
did not have any reservations / comments regarding the appointment of the statutory auditors. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a)	 We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion sec-
tion paragraph (a) above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opin-
ion section above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Loss, 
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account.

d)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section above, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply 
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e)	 The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, in our opinion, may 
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from all the directors as on 
March 31, 2021, except from one Director, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 

the directors, who have given the written representations, are disqualified as on March 31, 
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g)	 The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected there-
with are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above.

h)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses adverse opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated therein.

i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act.

j)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a state-
ment on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

	 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 (Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
	
		
	 Sd/- 
	 Sumit Trivedi 
	 Partner
Place: SECUNDERABAD				    Membership No. 209354
Date: April 21, 2022		  (UDIN: 22209354AHMZOX4308)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our 
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kannur International 
Airport Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the stand-
alone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, imple-
mentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accu-
racy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial report-
ing of the Company based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.  Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
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on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and pro-
cedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, includ-
ing the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstate-
ments due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following 
material weaknesses have been identified in the Company’s internal financial controls over finan-
cial reporting as at March 31, 2021. The Company did not have an appropriate internal control 
system for:
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a)	 ensuring compliance with the applicable accounting standards and generally accepted ac-
counting principles, with regard to validating the completeness and accuracy of cost (includ-
ing the costs eligible for capitalisation) for recording Property, Plant and Equipment (includ-
ing Capital-Work -in Progress); establishing a process of periodic verification of property 
plant and equipment and reconciling the same with the fixed asset register and books of 
account.

	 The Company’s process of evaluating completeness and accuracy of transactions relating 
to acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital-Work-in 
Progress) through confirmations and their reconciliation with respective vendor(s) as per 
books of account at regular intervals.

b)	 financial book closing procedures to ensure preparation of timely, reliable and appropriate fi-
nancial statements including the Company’s process of obtaining balance confirmations and 
statement of accounts from vendors and customers, and their reconciliation with the books 
of account at regular intervals.

c)	 the Company’s process of ensuring the completeness and accuracy of Aero, Non-aero and 
other operating revenue recorded during the year ended March 31, 2021.

d)	 the Company’s process of validating certain claims related to carry forward of business losses 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accounting of the related tax effects under the applica-
ble accounting standards, including timely evaluation of reasonability of the projections to 
support the availability of future taxable profits for utilisation against such unused business 
losses and the accounting of the consequential de-recognition of deferred tax asset in the 
prior years financial statements requiring re-statement of such financial statements under 
Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

e)	 the Company’s process of assessing recoverability of overdue receivables and making valua-
tion adjustments, as necessary.

  
A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control 

over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstate-
ment of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or de-
tected on a timely basis.

Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
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because of the effect of the material weakness described in Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraph 
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not main-
tained adequate and effective internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were not operating effectively as of March 31, 2021, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consid-
ering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the na-
ture, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the material weakness has affected our 
opinion on the said standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a qualified 
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

	

	 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 (Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
	
		
	 Sd/- 
	 Sumit Trivedi 
	 Partner
Place: SECUNDERABAD				    Membership No. 209354
Date: April 21, 2022		  (UDIN:22209354AHMZOX4308)
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph (2) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report of even date)

i.	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

	 (b) 	 The Company has not performed physical verification of fixed assets during the year. 
However, some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the previous year 
by the Management. According to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is in the process of formulating a programme of verification of fixed as-
sets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 3 years, which policy 
and programme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in 
their meeting held on November 12, 2021.  In respect of the assets physically verified 
during the previous year, according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Management is in the process of ascertaining discrepancies, if any. 

	 (c)  	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records exam-
ined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / 
conveyance deed / Government orders provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, 
comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name 
of the Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable properties of land whose title 
deeds have been pledged as security for loans are held in the name of the Company 
based on the confirmations directly received by us from lenders.

		
		  In respect of immovable properties of land admeasuring 353.98 acres, occupied by the 

Company, the terms of lease are yet to be finalized with the Government of Kerala and 
the leasehold land has not been recognized in these standalone financial statements 
(also refer to paragraph 1 in the Emphasis of Matter section of the Independent Audi-
tor’s Report on the standalone financial statements)

ii.	 As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Manage-
ment at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verifica-
tion.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 
of the Companies Act, 2013.                 
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iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as 
applicable.

v.	 The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed 
deposits as at March 31, 2021 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

vi.	 The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sec-
tion 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Aeronautical Services of the Company. 
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the 
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We 
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, in-
cluding Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service 
Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months except for 
the dues referred below.
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Name of Stat-
ute

Nature of 
Dues

Amount (Rs. 
In Lakh)

Period to 
which the 

Amount Re-
lates

Due Date
Date of 

subsequent 
payment

Income Tax 
Act 1961

Tax Deducted 
at Source 8.95 March 31, 

2020 April 30, 2020 Amount is 
unpaid

(c)	 There are no dues of Income tax Sales tax and Value added tax which have not been 
deposited as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes.
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viii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard 
to restructuring of the loan (refer Note 17 to the standalone financial statements) the Com-
pany has not defaulted in the repayment of loans to banks, except as under:

Particulars
Amount of default in Repay-

ment of interest 
(Rs. In Lakh)

Period of default
(in days)

Canara Bank 580.23 17

Canara Bank 561.98 13

Canara Bank 579.44 17

Canara Bank 561.62 84

The Federal Bank Limited 70.38 15

The Federal Bank Limited 72.95 81

The South Indian Bank Limited 89.41 15

The South Indian Bank Limited 92.72 10

The South Indian Bank Limited 89.63 15

The South Indian Bank Limited 92.72 81

ix.	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments), In our opinion and according to the information and explana-
tions given to us, money raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company 
during the year for the purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary deploy-
ment pending utilisation.

x.	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 
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xi.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company 
is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for 
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made  
private placement of shares during the year under audit.

	 In respect of private placement of shares during the previous year, we report that the amounts 
raised have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the 
funds were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application, except for: 

Nature of 
securities

Purpose for   
which funds 

raised

Opening 
Unutilised 

Balance 
(Rs. in Lakh)

Amount uti-
lized for the 
other pur-

pose 
(Rs. in Lakh)

Amount uti-
lised for the 
purpose for 
which fund 

has been 
raised 

(Rs. in Lakh)

Un-utilized 
balance as 
at Balance 
sheet date 
including 
temporary 

deployment 
pending ap-

plication  
(Rs. in Lakh)

Equity shares

For long term 
financial 

needs of the 
Company

11,630.96 
(Refer Note 

11.2)

6,163.12 
(utilised for 

meeting reve-
nue expenses) 

* 

2,131.84 3,336.00

* The Board of Directors in their meeting held on June 26, 2020 have ratified the utilisation of such funds to meet the revenue 	
    expenditure.

xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or  
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Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  

Opp. Oberon Mall, NH-47 Bypass, Edapally, Kochi-682024 
Ph : +91 484 6649 100, Fax: +91 484 6649 150
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directors of its joint venture or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi.	 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934.

	

	 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP	
Chartered Accountants

	 (Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
	
		
	 Sd/- 
	 Sumit Trivedi 
	 Partner
Place: SECUNDERABAD				    Membership No. 209354
Date: April 21, 2022		  (UDIN: 22209354AHMZOX4308)

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  

Opp. Oberon Mall, NH-47 Bypass, Edapally, Kochi-682024 
Ph : +91 484 6649 100, Fax: +91 484 6649 150
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 
No.

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

ASSETS
I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 189,738.67                  195,154.76                  
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 1,184.49                       2,204.70                       
(c) Intangible assets 4 17.54                            16.35                            
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investment in joint venture 5 234.00                          234.00                          
(ii) Other financial assets 6 1,153.93                       1,100.15                       

(e) Other non-current assets 7 454.34                          1,270.44                       
(f) Non current tax assets (net) 8 258.92                          1,159.28                       
(g) Deferred tax assets (Net) 31 4,485.50                       5,043.49                       

Total non‑‑current assets 197,527.39                  206,183.17                  

II Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 36.68                            11.43                            
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 10 3,544.39                       2,431.05                       
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 4,984.09                       12,507.22                     
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 211.97                          266.24                          
(iv) Other financial assets 13 2,225.67                       2,237.67                       

(c) Other current assets 14 2,364.23                       1,559.50                       
Total current assets 13,367.03                     19,013.11                     

TOTAL ASSETS (I + II) 210,894.42                  225,196.28                  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 133,812.10                  133,812.10                  
(b) Other equity 16 (32,219.69)                   (13,813.34)                   

Total equity 101,592.41                  119,998.76                  

II LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 95,166.78                     89,567.04                     
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 643.89                          644.02                          

(b) Provisions 19 124.59                          97.06                            
(c) Other Non current liabilities 20 1,000.00                       1,000.00                       

Total non‑‑current liabilities 96,935.26                     91,308.12                     

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 21
(A) Dues of micro and small enterprises 31.92                            36.35                            
(B) Dues of other than micro and small enterprises 3,134.39                       1,858.99                       

(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 8,397.65                       11,327.43                     
(b) Provisions 23 18.60                            16.29                            
(c) Other current liabilities 24 784.19                          650.34                          

Total current liabilities 12,366.75                     13,889.40                     
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 + 2) 109,302.01                  105,197.52                  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (I + II) 210,894.42                  225,196.28                  
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements -                                -                                
In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number: 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

Sd/- Sd/-
S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022

Particulars
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

I Income
Revenue from operations 25 4,477.06                    11,589.80                  
Other income 26 550.93                       185.57                       
Total Income 5,027.99                    11,775.37                  

II Expenses
Airport operating expenses 27 4,505.73                    4,851.43                    
Employee benefits expense 28 1,156.81                    1,144.26                    
Finance costs 29 8,905.19                    8,634.51                    
Depreciation and amortization expense 3.8 6,865.41                    6,879.46                    
Other expenses 30 1,443.17                    1,107.66                    
Total expenses 22,876.31                  22,617.32                  

III Loss before tax (I - II) (17,848.32)                (10,841.95)                
IV Tax expense/(Benefit)

(1) Current tax -                            -                            
(2) Deferred tax 31 558.00                      (1,389.19)                  
Total tax expense/(Benefit) 558.00                      (1,389.19)                  

V Loss for the year (III - IV) (18,406.32)                (9,452.76)                  

VI Other Comprehensive loss
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss: (0.04)                         (19.28)                       

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 0.01                          5.62                          

Total other comprehensive loss for the year (0.03)                         (13.66)                       
VII Total comprehensive loss for the year (V + VI) (18,406.35)                (9,466.42)                  

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.100/-
Basic and diluted EPS (Rs.) 32 (13.76)                       (7.34)                         

In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal 
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

Sd/- Sd/-
S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022

Particulars

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial 
statements
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

A Equity Share Capital

Balance at March 31, 2019 116,050,000      116,050.00      
Changes in equity share capital during the year:

Issue of equity shares 17,762,100        17,762.10        
Balance at March 31, 2020 133,812,100      133,812.10      
Changes in equity share capital during the year:

Issue of equity shares -                     -                   
Balance at March 31, 2021 133,812,100      133,812.10      

B Other Equity

Particulars Securities 
Premium

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Loss

Total Other
Equity

Balance at March 31, 2019 -             30.70               (4,504.77)     (6.52)                  (4,480.59)        
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020                -   -                   (9,452.76)     -                     (9,452.76)        
Securities Premium        133.67 -                   -               -                     133.67             
Other comprehensive Loss for the year, net of income 
tax                -   -                   -               (13.66)                (13.66)             

Balance at March 31, 2020 133.67       30.70               (13,957.53)   (20.18)                (13,813.34)      
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 (18,406.32)   (18,406.32)      
Other comprehensive Loss for the year, net of income 
tax (0.03)                  (0.03)               

Balance at March 31, 2021 133.67       30.70               (32,363.85)   (20.21)                (32,219.69)      

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

In terms of our Report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

Sd/- Sd/-
S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN AGPPS4585B) (PAN AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans - Gain/Losses arising on Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans are recognised in
the Other Comprehensive Loss as per IND AS 19 and shall not be reclassified to the standalone statement of Profit and Loss in the
subsequent years.

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Standalone Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Loss before tax (17,848.32)                    (10,841.95)                    
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,854.29                       6,873.17                       
Amortisation of intangible assets 11.12                            6.29                              
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 40.91                            83.06                            
Finance Cost 8,818.87                       8,551.45                       
Interest Income (308.26)                         (59.54)                           
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.44                              -                                
Fair value adjustments (45.45)                           (442.99)                         
Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables (118.27)                         (150.56)                         
Credit impaired Trade Receivables written off (500.49)                         (333.20)                         
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (3,095.16)                      3,685.73                       

Working capital adjustments for:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (494.58)                         (290.71)                         
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 1,270.97                       999.69                          
(Increase) / Decrease  in other financial assets (53.78)                           (502.89)                         
Increase / (Decrease)  in other financial liabilities (116.23)                         449.61                          
(Increase) / Decrease in other Current Assets 11.37                            1,184.39                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Bank balances other than 
cash and cash equivalents 54.27                            -                                
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (25.25)                           (11.43)                           
Increase / (Decrease) in other Current Liabilities 133.85                          547.49                          
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 29.84                            48.35                            
Cash generated from operations (2,284.70)                      6,110.23                       
Income tax paid (net) 900.36                          (630.29)                         
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from 
operating activities (A) (1,384.34)                      5,479.94                       

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,577.40)                      (5,305.02)                      
Payments for Intangible assets (8.50)                             (6.49)                             
Interest received 308.26                          59.54                            
Government Grants towards purchase of equipment -                                1,000.00                       
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.53                              -                                
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (2,277.11)                      (4,251.97)                      

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital -                                17,895.77                     
Proceeds from borrowings -                                443.20                          
Interest paid (3,831.65)                      (7,920.75)                      
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) (3,831.65)                      10,418.22                     
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash 
equivalents (A+B+C) (7,493.10)                      11,646.19                     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,477.19                     831.00                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
(Refer Note : 11.3) 4,984.09                       12,477.19                     

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

Note:
Reconcilation of Borrowings:
Opening Balance 89,567.04                     88,440.73                     
Proceeds from borrowings  -                                443.20                          
Funded interest term loan (FITL) 2,135.87                       -                                
Interest capitalized into Loan 3,463.87                       683.11                          
Closing balance 95,166.78                     89,567.04                     

In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sumit Trivedi Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal 
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership No. 209354) (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)

Sd/- Sd/-
S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Kannur International Airport Limited (“KIAL” or “the Company”) was incorporated on December 3, 2009 in
India as a Private Limited Company and later converted into a Public Limited Company effective from
August 2010. The Company is having its registered office in Kara – Peravoor, Mattannur, Kannur District,
Kerala. The Company has been incorporated for designing, financing, construction, operation and
maintenance of an international airport at Kannur, Kerala. The project is promoted by Kerala State
Government holding 39.23% of the equity shares of the Company as at March 31, 2021. 

The standalone financial statements were reviewed by Audit Committee, and approved by the Board of
Directors at their meeting held on April 21, 2022.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act'). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use. 

2.3 Going Concern
The COVID-19 pandemic impacted across major airports of India affecting the total passenger traffic,
aircraft movements and cargo freight. The traffic handled by the Company was also impacted due to
COVID-19 pandemic and on account of the consequent travel restrictions in international travel and
domestic travel, leading to substantial fall in the number of passengers and air traffic movements. This
position is expected to return to normalcy over the next 2-3 years.

Due to reduced revenue and continued incurrence of fixed costs, the Company’s performance was
adversely impacted, and losses were incurred during the year. Also refer Note 36 which describes the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Company. 

During the current year, the repayment of the borrowings are scheduled to begin from the fourth quarter
of the financial year 2022-23 (the loan has been restructured under resolution framework for exposures
other than personal loans under stress due to COVID Pandemic, also refer Note 17), capital commitments 
towards the ongoing office and cargo complex and other pending payments to the contractors which
requires major cash flow requirement in the coming years.

Kannur International Airport Limited
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

The Government of Kerala has provided a Letter of Comfort dated June 8, 2015 to Canara Bank in
connection with the term loan sanctioned to take appropriate action in the case of any shortfall in the
project term loan repayment obligations.
Further, the Government of Kerala has given an undertaking to the Company vide GO (MS) No 01/2014
/Tran. dated January 4, 2014 to mitigate the cash short fall in the first five years of operation (from 2016-
17 to 2020-21) by a budgetary support of Rs.13268 Lakh.  However, there were no circumstances of cash 
shortfall requiring such support from the Government during that period. The Company is confident that
as the Airport commencement date is December 2018, it will be able to secure such support in the
unlikely event of cash shortfall in future also. 
The Company has initiated various actions in relation to saving cost, optimize revenue Management
opportunities and enhance revenues is expected to result in improved operating performance.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the subsequent years and has
deferred its obligations pertaining to contractor payments, the ongoing capital expansion and any other
financial obligations. Further, due care has been exercised to determine the recoverability of the carrying
values of its assets and based on current estimates, the Company expects to recover majority of the
carrying amount of all of its assets.
For this assessment, Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of known
events arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. The unprecedented nature of the pandemic makes the
future business environment uncertain, however, the Company will continue to carry out the impact
assessment on its assets and closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Accordingly, the liquidity risk and cash flow shortages of the Company are mitigated. 

The above instances are expected to be temporary in nature and hence do not have any impact on the
Going Concern assumption on the basis of which these financial statements are prepared. 

2.4 Change and use of Estimate and judgment

In the preparation of the standalone financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the standalone financial statements, which may
cause material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is
in respect of impairment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, valuation of
deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, fair value measurements of financial instruments
and retirement benefit obligations as discussed below.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

The few critical estimations and judgments made in applying accounting policies are:

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities:

Some of the assets and liabilities of the Company are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. Fair value measurement that are based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) requires
estimates of discount rate, future growth rate, etc. based on Management’s best estimate about future
developments.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Depreciation on the property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the Management (except in case of airport assets which are
prescribed by AERA as mentioned below), which coincides with the lives prescribed under Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority ("the Authority") has issued a consultation
paper viz.05/2014-15 in the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in Economic Regulation of
Major Airports wherein it, inter alia, mentioned that the Authority proposes to lay down, to the extent
required, the depreciation rates for airport assets, taking into account the provisions of the useful life of
assets given in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, for such assets that have not been clearly
mentioned in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or may have a useful life justifiably different
than that indicated in the Companies Act, 2013 in the specific context to the airport sector. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Part B of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Authority has issued
order no. 35/2017-18 on January 12, 2018 which is further amended on April 9, 2018, in the matter of
Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets, which is effective from April 1, 2018 ("AERA Order").

Accordingly, the Management has adopted useful life in respect of airport assets as prescribed in the
aforesaid order.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets:

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities/assets at the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions (except retirement benefits and leave encashments) are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the standalone
financial statements but are disclosed separately.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Land development cost incurred in freehold and lease hold land
is added to the cost of the land. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
development as at the balance sheet date net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment under installation or under construction as at balance sheet date are shown as capital work-in-
progress, intangible assets under development as at balance sheet date are shown as intangible assets
under development and the related advances are shown as loans and advances.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Further, when each major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
standalone statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company has identified the assets based on the documents and certificates provided by the
consultant and the cost of each component / part of the asset is arrived separately in the same manner.
The asset classification of the component / part that has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the
asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset is grouped and
classified separately.

Spare parts that can only be used in connection with a particular item of property, plant and equipment,
and whose use is expected to be irregular, are capitalized. Such spare parts are depreciated over a
period, not exceeding the remaining useful life of the principal asset.
All spare parts, stand-by and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment (PPE) if they
meet the definition of PPE i.e. if the Company intends to use these during more than a period of 12
months.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Incidental expenditure during construction period (net of related income arising during that period) directly
related to the project, incurred prior to commencement of commercial operations is carried forward and
allocated to the extent identifiable with any particular fixed asset else it has been allocated to various fixed
assets in proportion to their cost on commencement of commercial operations. Incidental expenditure not
related to construction, and corporate expenses are recognised as expense when incurred.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when asset is
derecognised. 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the Management (except in case of airport assets which are
prescribed by AERA as mentioned below), which coincides with the lives prescribed under Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The components identified by the Company are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the
remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The useful life adopted by the Company as per the AERA guidelines are as under;
Description of the Asset                                                                               Estimated Useful life
Terminal Building                                                                                                      30 years
Building In Operational Area                                                                                     30 years
Utility Building                                                                                                           30 years
Roads, Roads in operational area, Boundary wall and Security fencing                  10 years
Baggage Handling System/ Escalators/ Elevators/  HVAC Equipment                    15 years
X-Ray Machine, RT set, DFMD, HHMD Security Equipment                                   15 years
Office Equipment                                                                                                       5 years
Furniture & Fixtures - Other than trolleys                                                                   7 years
Furniture & Fixtures - Trolleys                                                                                    3 years
Computers - End User Devices                                                                                  3 years
Electrical Installation and Equipment including Runway lighting system                  10 years
Flight Information System, AOCC Equipment                                                             6 years
Light Motor Vehicles                                                                                                   8 years
Crash Fire Tenders, Other Fire Equipment including pumps and sprinklers            15 years
Intangible assets - Computer Software                                                                       3 years
Runway, Taxiway, Apron                                                                                          30 years

Depreciation on fixed assets added/disposed off during the period is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of addition/disposal. The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. The resulting impairment loss if any is
recognised in the Standalone  Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.6 Operating Cycle 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use are treated as
intangible assets.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any profit or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets are amortised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use. Accordingly, at
present, these are being amortised on straight line basis for 3 years.

  2.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Such provisions are determined based on Management’s estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as an asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed on the basis of judgment of Management / independent experts. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current Management estimate.

2.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

The standalone financial statements of Company are presented in INR, which is also the functional
currency. In preparing the standalone financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at that date.

2.10 Cash Flows and Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of standalone statement of cash flows)

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7.
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, cash in Bank, cheques and drafts on hand, deposits held with Banks, other short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
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2.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
Government.

Income from services

Revenue from airport operations i.e., Aeronautical and Non-Aeronautical operations are recognised on
accrual basis, net of Goods and Service Tax (GST), and applicable discounts when services are
rendered. Aeronautical operations include user development fees (UDF), ground handling, Baggage, X-
ray Charges, Landing and Parking of aircraft, fuel farm and Common User Terminal Equipment (CUTE)
counter charges. The main streams of non-aeronautical revenue includes retail, advertisement, food and
beverages,  car parking and land and space- rentals.

Interest is recognised using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the transaction. 
Award fees and tender fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
relevant arrangement. 

Land and Space- rentals pertains to granting right to use land and space primarily for catering to the
needs of passengers, air traffic services and air transport services.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability, when calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the standaolne
statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income if any, is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which
is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

2.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.13 Employee Benefits
a Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, leave, incentives etc., are recognized during
the period in which the employee renders related services and are measured at undiscounted amount
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident
fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an
expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

b Defined Benefit plan

For defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning
of the period to the net defined benefit liability. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);
• net interest expense or income; and
• remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted
for as past service costs. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Company's defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

2.14 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the Standaolne Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a Current Tax

Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under Special provision (i.e., Minimum Alternate
Tax) or normal provision of Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax on Income for the current period is determined on
the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of
relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/ appeals.

86 12TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

b Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets are
realised or deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed
losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed
depreciation can be utilised. Deferred tax assets, unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised or reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable,
respectively, that the related tax benefit will be realised.

2.15 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are
recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets (including property, plant and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
balance sheet and transferred to standaolne statement of profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Company with no future related costs are recognised in standaolne statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they become receivable. 

2.16 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period, the impact of such events if any is adjusted with the Ind AS standalone
financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.

2.17 Earnings per share
i Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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2.18 Operating Segments 

The Company operates in the Indian domestic market by providing airport services to passengers and
various airline operators which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, is considered as the
only segment. 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company is reported at an overall level, and hence there are no
separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

2.19 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants
would take those into consideration. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these
standalone financial statements is determined in such basis except for transactions in the scope of Ind
AS 36. Normally at initial recognition, the transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

2.20 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a financial asset or financial
liability in its balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. 

a Financial Assets

A financial asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or
contractual obligation to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or financial
liability under condition that are potentially favourable to the Company.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances, Investments in
equity shares of companies, investment other than equity shares, loans/ advances to employee / related
parties / others, security deposit, claims recoverable etc.
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Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs if any, of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Investments in equity instruments other than investment in Joint Venture are classified as Fair value
through profit and loss, unless the related instruments are not held for trading and the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income.

b Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, accrued expenses and other payables. 

The Company initially recognises financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition which are
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial liabilities if any, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of the financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

1 the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or 

2 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement; and a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured
at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in standalone statement of profit
and loss. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled /
expired. 

Impairment of financial assets: The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using
expected credit loss model which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical
credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109.  

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 

8912TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss
allowance on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

2.21 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

2.22 Leases 

Company as a Lessor: 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Company as a Lessee: 

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. At the
commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. 

The Government of Kerala has not finalised on the underlying terms and conditions for the lease of land
to the Company and in the absence of a details as to extent of land and the lease rentals the Company
has not recognised any right of use asset or lease liabilities though the Company is still using small
portions of land owned by Government of Kerala. (Refer Note 3.5)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

The Company has the option under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of three to
five years. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or
not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy). 
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

4 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer 
Software

Cost
At April 1, 2019 20.98                   

Additions 6.49                     
Disposals -                         

At March 31, 2020 27.47                   
Additions 8.50                     
At March 31, 2021 35.97                   

Amortization
Up to April 1, 2019 4.83                     
Charge for the year 6.29                     

At March 31, 2020 11.12                   
Charge for the year 7.31                     

At March 31, 2021 18.43                   

Carrying amount
At March 31, 2020 16.35                   
At March 31, 2021 17.54                   

5 Investment in Joint Venture

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Unquoted investments in Equity Shares (fully paid)
BPCL-KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 234.00              234.00              

(23,40,000 Equity Shares of BPCL-KIAL FUEL FARM PRIVATE
LIMITED at par (Previous year 23,40,000 Equity shares of Rs.10
each) fully paid up unquoted non traded stated at cost being 26% of
the total equity)

Total 234.00                 234.00                 

6 Other financial assets (Non-Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Security Deposits (refer Note 6.1 below)               1,135.93               1,082.15 

Earmarked deposits with remaining maturity period greater than 
12 months (Refer Note 6.2 below)

                   18.00                    18.00 

Total 1,153.93              1,100.15              

BPCL-KIAL FUEL FARM PRIVATE LIMITED (BKFFPL) was incorporated in May 2015 with an equity
participation of 74% by Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL) and 26% by Kannur International
Airport Limited. BKFFPL was formed to design, construct, commission and operate the Fuel Farm at
Kannur International Airport for the supply of Aviation Turbine Fuel (ATF) on an exclusive basis. BKFFPL
started operations from December 9, 2018 along with the commissioning of the airport. It is being
managed under joint control mechanism, hence in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent, the
financials of BKFFPL has been consolidated as Joint Venture as per the requirements of Ind AS
accounting standards.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

6.1

6.2

7 Other Non Current Assets 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

GST input credit 454.34              1,270.44           
Total 454.34                 1,270.44              

8 Non current tax assets (net)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Advance Income tax (including TDS receivable)                  258.92               1,159.28 
Total                  258.92               1,159.28 

9 Inventories

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Stock of fuel                      8.83                    11.43 
Stores and spares                    27.85                          -   

Total                    36.68                    11.43 

10 Trade Receivables 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade receivables
Secured

Considered Good 193.57    630.90              
Considered Doubtful -          -                    

Unsecured
Considered Good 3,350.82 1,800.15           
Considered Doubtful 136.04    150.56              

Less: Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables                  136.04                  150.56 

              3,544.39               2,431.05 

From related party                                   143.98                           48.34 
From others                                                                  3,400.41               2,382.71 

Total 3,544.39              2,431.05              

Balances held as security deposit for Customs authorities for cargo related operations.

The Company based on demand letter dated May 7, 2018 placed a security deposit of Rs.982.03 Lakh with 
the Ministry of Home Affairs (MoH), towards deployment of CISF staff induction. Subsequently, the
Company requested vide letter dated October 29, 2019 for a refund of such deposit from MoH. The MoH
has responded vide letter dated December 2, 2019, that upon clearance from Ministry of Civil Aviation
(MoCA) for refunding the deposit the same shall be processed. As per the discussions held with the  MoCA 
on June 4, 2021, the Company was informed that the matter was taken up with the MoH and they stated
that the fund was deposited in the consolidated fund of India and the fund is non-refundable. The
Company was advised to make a case to MoCA, which MoCA will take up appropriately. 

The Management of the Company is confident of recovering the said deposit and hence no provision has
been considered against the same since Company is of the view that the Security Deposit was paid from
its own resources and this deposit was to be recouped from PSF collections after commencement of
operations. Due to low passenger volumes since Government of India is not allowing foreign carriers, PSF
collections were inadequate to recoup the Security Deposit and meet the Cost of Deployment of CISF
personnel and their related expenses. Hence the Company is of the view that since security function is also 
a sovereign function and considering the fact that PSF cannot be used for Company’s own expenditure,
CISF cost is to be borne by the Government of India.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

11 Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
i) In Treasury Savings Bank Account with Department of 
Treasuries, Government of Kerala (Refer Note 11.1 and 11.2 
below)

                     0.02             11,424.07 

ii) In Current Account                  120.84                      8.98 
iii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts               4,863.23               1,074.17 

Total 4,984.09              12,507.22            

11.1

11.2

11.3 Cash and Cash equivalents considered for cash flow statement

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
i) In Treasury Savings Bank Account with Department of 
Treasuries, Government of Kerala                      0.02             11,424.07 

ii) In Current Account                  120.84                      8.98 
iii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts               4,863.23               1,074.17 

              4,984.09             12,507.22 

Less: Book overdraft (Refer Note. 22) -                       30.03                   
Total 4,984.09              12,477.19            

12 Bank balances other than (Cash and cash equivalents) above

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
In earmarked deposit accounts- original maturity of more than 3 
months (Refer Note 12.1 below)                      1.29                    55.56 

PSF Escrow Account (Refer Note 12.2 below)                  210.68                  210.68 

Total 211.97                 266.24                 

12.1

12.2 Escrow account balance for Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) [PSF (SC)] collected as
referred in Note No. 41

Balances held as security against guarantees issued to:
(a) Kerala State Electricity Board - Rs.Nil  (Previous year: Rs.54.35 Lakh ); and
(b) Department of telecommunication - Rs.1.29 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.1.21 Lakh ).

Balance as at March 31, 2020 includes, cheque issued to the contractor but not presented till March 31,
2020 - Rs.206.90 Lakh

Balance as at March 31, 2020 includes, Rs.11,620.96 Lakh reversed from this account by the Government
of Kerala on March 31, 2020. Subsequently, the Company has pointed out to the Government of Kerala
that the reversal of the said amount of Rs.11,620.96 Lakh is a discrepancy and the amount should be
credited back to the Company. Pursuant to the aforesaid communication, during the year the Government
of Kerala has credited back the amount of Rs.11,620.96 Lakh to the Company on April 28, 2020.
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13 Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Contractually reimbursable expenses (Refer Note 13.1)
(Receivable from Kerala State Government Departments) 2,225.67              2,237.67              

Total 2,225.67              2,237.67              

13.1

14 Other Current Assets

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Prepaid expenses 249.97                 212.28                 
GST Input Credit 1436.78 797.78                 
Unbilled Revenue 389.17                 424.69                 
Receivable from NASFT (Refer Note No. 41) 232.80                 122.94                 
Other Advances 55.51                   1.81                     

Total 2,364.23              1,559.50              

The Company had based on the Kerala Government Order No.13/2017/TRANS dated February 2, 2017
and the tripartite agreement between the Company, Superintending Engineer, Minor Irrigation, Kozhikode
Circle and Uralungal Labour Contract Society Limited (ULCC) made payments aggregating to Rs.1514.46
Lakh (Previous year: Rs.1514.46 Lakh) to various Government departments towards the electrification,
monsoon mitigation, storm water drain, construction / extension of water pipeline, blasting compensation,
land acquisition etc. for the roads and areas surrounding the airport which were to be paid back to the
Company on conclusion of the various infrastructure jobs by the respective departments.

The Company has vide its communication dated June 6, 2020 requested the Government of Kerala to
authorize the release of these amounts paid to ULCC.The Company has received Rs.626 Lakh as
reimbursement of amount paid to ULCC on June 4, 2021. As per the order of the Government, the amount
reimbursed is to be treated as Equity of the Government in the Company. The Company has requested
vide letter dated July 1, 2021, to the Government to treat the said reimbursement as an expenditure of
Government and not as Equity contribution of Government.

The Management is confident of receiving the balance amount of Rs. 888.46 Lakh (Previous year: 888.46
Lakh) and has accordingly not considered it necessary to make any allowances towards impairment of
these balances.
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15 Equity Share Capital

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

 Authorized share capital          350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 
 (Equity shares of Rs.100/- each) 
 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
shares         133,812,100           133,812.10         133,812,100           133,812.10 

 (Equity shares of Rs.100/- each) 

15.1

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

 Authorised Share Capital 

 Balance as at  the beginning of the year         350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 

 Changes in  Authorised Equity Share 
capital during the year                          -                            -                            -                            -   

 Balance as at  the end of the year         350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
Share Capital 

 Balance as at  the beginning of the year         133,812,100           133,812.10         116,050,000           116,050.00 

 Changes in  Equity Share capital during 
the year -                                          -             17,762,100             17,762.10 

 Balance as at  the end of the year 133,812,100             133,812.10         133,812,100           133,812.10 

Details of number of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

No of Shares % No of Shares %

 Government of Kerala  52,500,000          39.23%           52,500,000 39.23%

 Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 21,680,000          16.20%           21,680,000 16.20%

 Airports Authority of India  10,000,000          7.47%           10,000,000 7.47%
 M A Yusufali 11,500,000          8.59% 11,500,000          8.59%

Shares Issued for consideration other than cash:

The company has issued 31594038 No's of shares to Government of Kerala towards the cost of land transferred to the
company for construction of the airport. 

Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

During the previous year, the Company made an allotment of 125 Lakh numbers of equity shares to Governor of
Kerala, based on the Government Order vide GO (Rt) No. 334/2019/Trans dated July 23, 2019. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
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16 Other Equity

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Retained Earnings 
Balance at beginning of year (13,957.53)          (4,504.77)            
Less: Loss for the year (18,406.32)          (9,452.76)            
Balance at end of year (32,363.85)          (13,957.53)          

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Balance at beginning of year (20.18)           (6.52)                    

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (0.03)                    (13.66)                 
Balance at end of year (20.21)                 (20.18)                 

Capital Reserve 
Balance at beginning of year 30.70                   30.70                   
Addition during the year -                 -                       
Balance at end of year 30.70                   30.70                   

Securities Premium (Refer note No 16.1 below)
Balance at beginning of year 133.67                 -                       
Addition during the year -                 133.67                 
Balance at end of year 133.67                 133.67                 

Opening balance of other equity (13,813.34)          (4,480.59)            
Closing balance of other equity (32,219.69)          (13,813.34)          

16.1

17 Borrowings

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Secured- at amortised cost
Term loans:

Canara Bank             72,214.47             69,559.33 
The Federal Bank Limited               9,357.88               9,002.97 
The South Indian Bank Limited             11,458.56             11,004.74 

Funded interest term loan (FITL) :
Canara Bank               1,653.13                          -   
The Federal Bank Limited                  210.39                          -   
The South Indian Bank Limited                  272.35                          -   

Total 95,166.78            89,567.04            

Security and terms of repayment in respect of above borrowings are as follows:

Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The
utilisation of the securities premium is governed by Section 52 of the Act.

Term loan borrowings are from a consortium of banks with Canara Bank as the lead bank. Member banks
involved in the consortium are The South Indian Bank Limited and The Federal Bank limited.

The Company agreed to borrow from the Consortium the sums to the maximum extent of Rs.89200 Lakh
out of which Rs. 69200 Lakh is from Canara Bank, Rs.11000 Lakh from The South Indian Bank Limited
and Rs. 9000 Lakh from The Federal Bank Limited, on the security of immovable properties and other
securities mentioned hereunder;
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Bank Name

Base Rate /MCLR 
plus Spread on 
the base rate as 
at March 31, 2021

Base Rate /MCLR 
plus Spread on 
the base rate as 
at March 31, 2020

Canara Bank (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%) 9.30% 9.45%
The South Indian Bank Ltd (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%)

9.30% 9.55%
The Federal Bank Ltd (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%) 9.30% 9.55%
Canara Bank FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.30%) 10.30% -
The South Indian Bank Ltd  FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 
10.30%) 10.30% -
The Federal Bank Ltd FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.30%)

10.30% -

As per the supplementary term loan agreement dated April 27, 2021, interest accrued from March 1, 2020
till August 31, 2020 was capitalized to the original term loan under COVID 19 Regulatory Package.

The Company is liable to pay penal interest at the rate of 2% per annum or at such other rate as is
specified by the lending banks, over and above the normal rate of interest, from the date of default until
due repayment in addition to and irrespective of any other consequences and remedies available to the
lending Banks. 
During the current year, the company was late in paying interest on its loans. The delay arose because of a
temporary lack of funds on the date interest was payable. The lender did not request accelerated
repayment of the loan.
The bankers have charged penal interest amounting to Rs.3.07 Lakh during the year ended March 31,
2021 (Previous year Rs.8.71 Lakh ) on the loans due to delays in servicing of interest.

d) The company has created an equitable mortgage (EM) of 1192.54 acres of land as security for term
loan sanctioned by Canara Bank. 

Collateral security: Further the Government of Kerala has pledged 1,78,49,960 equity shares held in the
Company with the lenders as security to the term loan.

Initially the tenor of the loan was fixed at 44 quarterly instalments starting from the third quarter of Financial
Year 2020-21 till the 2nd quarter of Financial Year 2030-31. The loan has been restructured under
resolution framework for exposures other than personal loans under stress due to Covid Pandemic by
extending the moratorium period by 2 years with the repayment of the loan starting from 4th Quarter of
Financial Year 2022-23. The repayment of the loan has to be made in 52 quarterly installments as per the
resolution plan as against 44 quarterly installments as per original sanction order. 
Further to this, the Company has been sanctioned a funded interest term loan of Rs.19,617 Lakh to fund
the interest accrued and future interest accruing from December 29, 2020 to December 28, 2022 which
also needs to be repaid with interest as per the revised repayment schedule of the original loan. The
funded interest term loan carries an additional interest rate of 1% over and above the original term loan.

The Government of Kerala has provided a Letter of Comfort dated June 8, 2015 to Canara Bank in 
connection with the term loan sanctioned to take appropriate action in the case of any shortfall in the 
project term loan repayment obligations.

Current maturities of the long term debt is not reclassified as the repayment will begin only after the end of
the moratorium period.

a)  pari passu first charge on all immovable and moveable assets of the Company both present and future.

Agreed rate of Interest are as under

b) Assignment of all the project related documents, contracts, rights, interests, insurance contracts and all
the benefits incidental to project activities on a pari passu basis.

c)   First pari passu charge on all the bank accounts pertaining to the project.
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18 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Security deposits at amortized cost 643.89                 644.02                 

Total 643.89                 644.02                 

19 Provisions (Non Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Gratuity                  124.59                    97.06 

Total 124.59                 97.06                   

20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Deferred Income:

Total 1,000.00              1,000.00              
20.1

21 Trade Payables

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises* 31.92                   36.35                   
Dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3,134.39              1,858.99              

Total 3,166.31              1,895.34              

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

                   31.92                    36.35 

the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year;

                         -                            -   

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006;

                         -                            -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and

                     0.36                      0.36 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

                         -                            -   

 *Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon
by the auditors.

 Grant received from Ministry of Commerce and Industry, 
Government of India (Refer Note 20.1 below) 

1,000.00              1,000.00              

Receipt of grant for the construction of cargo complex under the Trade Infrastructure for Exports Scheme
(TIES). The construction of the Cargo Complex is under progress as on the balance sheet date. The
income will be recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the
useful life of the related asset. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to this
grant.
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22 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 7,543.81              9,699.47              
Security Deposits 136.47                 97.78                   
Retention Payable 165.15                 343.42                 
Other Payables 490.82                 482.76                 
Book overdraft (Refer Note. 11.3) -                       30.03                   
Interest Accrued and due 61.40                   673.97                 

Total 8,397.65              11,327.43            

23 Provisions (Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Gratuity 8.21                     4.14                     
Leave encashment 10.39                   12.15                   

Total 18.60                   16.29                   

24 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Statutory Liabilities 172.19                 82.61                   
Payable for passenger security services 276.52                 256.35                 
Deferred revenue on fair valuation of liabilities 214.70                 260.14                 
Advance from customers 120.78                 51.24                   

Total 784.19                 650.34                 
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25 Revenue from Operations

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Aero revenue (Refer Note 25.2 below)               3,165.23               8,535.39 
Non Aero Revenue

Space Rentals                  373.78                  439.75 
Revenue share from Concessionaire                  380.67               1,265.79 
Car Parking                    22.74                  147.61 
Fuel Throughput Royalty (Refer Note 25.3 below)                         -                    376.34 
Visitor's Entry Pass                      2.51                    61.85 
Common User Infrastructure Charges (CAM Charges)                    51.23                  227.29 
Others - utility charges                    56.90                  111.61 

Other Operating Income
License Fee for Unpaved Land from BKFFPL, Joint Venture 
Company (Income from Related parties)                  424.00                  424.17 

Total 4,477.06              11,589.80            

25.1

25.2

25.3

26 Other Income

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Interest on Fixed Deposits                  308.26                    59.54 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 87.77                                       -   

Net (gain) / loss on Foreign currency transactions and translations 1.90                                         -   

Insurance claim received 58.23                                       -   
Miscellaneous Income                    49.32                    35.39 
Deferred income on fair valuation on financial liabilities                    45.45                    90.64 

Total 550.93                 185.57                 

The Company earned entire income from operations in India.

Out of the Aero Revenue an amount of Rs.158.62 Lakh (Previous Year: Rs.398.59 Lakh) pertains to
unbilled revenue in connection with Terminal Navigational Landing Charges, Parking Charges etc. which
was billed after the close of the financial year.

As per the direction from Ministry of Civil Aviation, levy of fuel throughput charges has been discontinued
w.e.f. January 15, 2020 on the condition that the revenue will be compensated through an enhanced rate of 
User Development Fees.
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27 Airport Operating Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Power and Fuel                  865.15               1,281.52 
Insurance on Assets                  106.20                    70.59 
Repairs and Maintenance                  259.14                  255.48 
House Keeping                  893.22                  950.32 
Operations & Maintenance Expenses                  621.75                  488.69 
Customs Cost Recovery Charges                  878.40                  864.91 
Aviation Meteorological Support Services                  108.24                    97.82 
Communication, Navigation and Surveillance and Air Traffic 
Management Services                  621.87                  678.28 
Other operational expenses                    19.28                    10.80 
Security Service                    45.43                    45.40 
Trolley Retrieval Services                    54.55                    50.32 
Water Charges                    32.50                    57.30 

Total 4,505.73              4,851.43              

28 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Salaries & Allowances               1,039.75                  973.92 
Contribution to provident and other funds 36.79               36.41               
Gratuity 35.76               32.05               
Staff Welfare Expenses                    44.51                  101.88 

Total 1,156.81              1,144.26              

29 Finance Cost

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Interest on Term Loans               8,777.91               8,549.04 
Unwinding of discount relating to Long Term Liabilities                    40.91                    83.06 
Interest on delayed payment of Income Tax                      0.05                      2.41 
Interest on delayed payment of Customs costs                    86.32                         -   

Total 8,905.19              8,634.51              
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30 Other Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Administrative Expenses 8.58                 17.11               
Advertisement 20.61               44.33               
Payment to Auditors 
      - For Audit 21.00               21.00               
Consultancy Charges -                   71.80               
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure 7.87                 77.60               
Collection Charges-Prebooked Taxi 3.61                 
Employee Training expenses 8.62                 12.65               
Insurance-operations 19.75               15.83               
Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables 118.27             150.56             
Postage and Courier charges 0.40                 4.45                 
Printing and Stationery 5.30                 8.31                 
Legal and Professional charges              221.66                81.45 
Recruitment Expenses 3.67                 33.15               
Rates and Taxes (refer Note 30.1 below) 394.65             133.01             
Rent 3.60                 3.40                 
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 3.93                 2.75                 
Sitting Fees 1.10                 0.60                 
Travelling Expenses 59.34               79.58               
Website Maintenance Charges 2.64                 4.09                 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.44                 -                   
Credit impaired Trade Receivables written off (refer note 30.2) 500.49             333.20             
Miscellaneous Expenses 37.64               12.79               

Total 1,443.17              1,107.66              
30.1

30.2

31 Deferred Tax

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended
March 31, 2020 

Opening balance               5,037.87               3,646.00 
Opening balance recognized in other comprehensive loss                      5.62                      2.68 

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles             29,968.81             32,394.95 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity               8.22                    12.47 
Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables             28.47                    39.15 
Brought forward business losses                         -                 2,969.21 
Deduction under section 35AD of the Income Tax Act 34,189.02            34,189.02            

MAT Credit
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement                  220.29                  220.29 

Recognised in other comprehensive Loss
Tax expense during the year recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Loss                      8.31                      8.30 

Net deferred tax (liability) / asset 4,485.50              5,043.49              
Deferred tax expense / (Income) 557.99                (1,394.81)            

Includes Rs.187.61 Lakh (Previous year Rs. Nil ) being one time building tax remitted to Tahsildar,
Thalassery Taluk
The Company has written off a total of Rs. 633.28 Lakh (Previous year 333.20 Lakh) during the year of
which Rs. 132.79 Lakh (Previous year Nil) is against the provision made in the previous year.
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Recognized in Statement of profit and loss 558.00                (1,389.19)            
Recognized in other comprehensive loss (0.01)                   (5.62)                   
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31.1

31.2

31.3

32 Earnings Per Share

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company           (18,406.32)             (9,452.76)
Weighted average number of equity shares         133,812,100 128,867,975       
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (of face value Rs.100) (Rs.) (13.76)                 (7.34)                   

33 Corporate Social Responsibility

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended
March 31, 2020 

Gross amount required to be spend during the year
Amount spent during the year:                         -                           -   
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset                         -                           -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 7.87                     77.60                   
(iii) Unpaid amount out of (i) and (ii) above                         -                           -   

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate
social responsibility (CSR) Activities. A CSR Committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act.
The funds were primarily allocated to the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company has been meeting these expenditure as part of its commitment with Ministry of Environment,
Forest and Climate Change for environmental clearance for the construction of an International Airport at
the location whereby the Company has to spend 5% of the project cost towards environment, energy and
water conservation measures over the years.

The Company has recognised a deferred tax asset of Rs.34,189.02 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.34,189.02
Lakh) on unused tax losses arising from its claim under section 35 AD of Income Tax Act, 1961 considering
the unlimited carry forward period for set off against future taxable profits.  

The Management reviewed the carrying amount of deferred tax asset recognised on brought forward
business losses as at March 31, 2021, and in view of revised traffic forecasts considering the continuing
COVID19 impact, the revenue/cost/profit and taxable profit projections were re-estimated by the
Management. Pursuant thereto, the Management decided to de-recognise the deferred tax asset
recognised in earlier years on brought forward business losses aggregating Rs. 2,969.21 Lakh and not
recognise any further deferred tax asset on current year business tax losses, as it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available for setting off the unused tax losses before the time
period for set-off of such losses expire. The impact of such de-recognition of deferred tax asset on brought
forward business losses has been accounted in the Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March
31, 2021.  

Subsequent to the year end on March 31, 2020, on filing of the revised return of income claiming the
aforesaid deduction under section 35 AD of the Income tax Act, 1961 in respect of Assessment Year 2019-
20, the Company received Intimation under 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 dated January 16, 2021,
rejecting its claim in the revised return. The Management has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) in respect of the above disallowance which is pending adjudication. The
Management has been advised that the case for its appeal is tenable and therefore is confident of a
favourable outcome.

Unused tax losses i.e. brought forward unabsorbed income tax business losses on which no deferred tax 
asset has been created as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 21,730.91 Lakh (As at March 31, 2020 - Rs. Nil).
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34 Related Party Disclosure

Names of related parties and nature of relationship are as under:
(a) Joint Venture Company

BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
(b) Names of other related parties and nature of relationship

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Thulasidas V (up to March 11, 2021) Managing Director
Dr. Venu Vasudevan (from March 12, 2021) Managing Director
Mr. S Jayakrishnan Chief Financial Officer
Mr. G Gnanendra Kumar Company Secretary

Parties with substantial interest and its affiliates
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited
Government of Kerala

Transactions with related parties

Mr. Thulasidas V
     Salary 40.64 40.78                   
Mr. S Jayakrishnan
     Salary 34.3 34.06                   
Mr. G  Gnanendra Kumar
     Salary 14.61 14.49                   
BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
     License fess on unpaved land 125.59 162.01                 
     Fuel Through Put Charges                         -   444.08                 
     Utility Charges 13.16 15.12                   

Government of Kerala (GoK)
     Expenses met by Company on behalf of Government of Kerala                         -   447.57                 
     Equity shares issued                         -   17,500.00            

BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
     License fees receivable

                 140.06 43.30                   

     Utility Charges receivable                      3.92 4.89                     
     Fuel Throughput Charges receivables                         -   0.14                     
     Security Deposit                    11.00 11.00                   
Government of Kerala (GoK)
     Amount receivable from Government of Kerala               2,225.67 2,237.67              

(c )

(d)

(e )

35

In accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 24 on "Related Party Disclosures" the names of the related
parties where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions/
year end balance  with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

Related Party
     Nature of Transaction

2020-2021 2019-2020

Transactions during the year

Outstanding Balances

The Company has transactions (not included in the list above) with other Government of Kerala-controlled
entities / departments and these transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of business on terms
comparable to those with other entities that are not Government of Kerala-controlled entities.

Capital Management
The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders
through continuing growth and maximise the share holders' value. The Company sets the amounts of
capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

Government of Kerala in connection with the term loans of the Company has pledged its shares with the 
lenders and also provided a Letter of Comfort, refer Note 17 for details.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, and as per Government of Kerala Order
dated February 11, 2021 the Managing Director, Dr. Venu Vasudevan was appointed w.e.f. March 12,
2021, which was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 26, 2021. This
appointment was subsequently approved by the shareholders in their meeting held on December 23, 2021.
The aforesaid Government order has not specified the remuneration and other terms of his appointment.
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For the purpose of the Company's Capital Management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. 
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Particulars

Debt             95,166.78             89,567.04 
Equity           101,592.41           119,998.76 
Debt to Equity ratio 93.68% 74.64%

The Company manages its capital structure by balanced mix of debt and equity. The Company's capital
structure is influenced by the changes in the airport economic regulatory framework, Government policies,
available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position of the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Company's debt to equity ratio is analysed as follows:

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However,
they are under constant review by the Board. The Company has been sanctioned a funded interest term
loan of Rs.19,617 Lakh to fund the interest accrued and future interest accruing from December 29, 2020
to December 28, 2022 which also needs to be repaid with interest as per the revised repayment schedule
of the original loan.
Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristic of each customer. The Company's risk Management activity focuses on
actively securing the Company’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to volatile
financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The Company
does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purpose nor does it opt for
options. The most significant financial risk to which the Company is exposed are described below: -
     
The Company has assessed market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk to its financial instruments.

Market Risk

Is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or cash flows that may result from a change in the price of
a financial instrument, as a result of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risks, primarily include loans and borrowings, investments and foreign
currency receivables, payables and borrowings.       

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
effect of change in the interest rate will affect profit or loss of the Company also the interest cost had a
direct bearing on the borrowing cost capitalised. The impact of increase or decrease of 100 basis points on
the loan will affect the loss of the Company by Rs.895.32 Lakh (Previous year Rs.898.01 Lakh) and value
of Plant property of equipment by Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.0.89 Lakh).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the purchase of assets from abroad. The Company’s only exposure at
the end of the year is an outstanding balance amounting to US$ 88,080 (Rs. 66.39 Lakh) (Previous year
US$ 88,080 [Rs. 66.39 Lakh]). The impact of increase or decrease of 100 basis points on the outstanding
balance will change the fair value of assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) by Rs. Nil (Previous year 0.66
Lakh). 

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and short term loans.
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Ageing of Trade receivables

Particulars

0-180 Days               2,873.77               2,325.12 
181-365 Days                  188.59                  244.30 
366-730 Days                  472.94                    12.19 
More than 730 Days                  145.13                         -   
Total               3,680.43               2,581.61 

Movement of allowance for credit impaired trade receivables 

Particulars

Opening balance                  150.56                         -   
Add : Created during the year                  118.27                  150.56 
Less : Utilised/Reversed during the year (refer Note 30.2)                  132.79                         -   
Closing balance                  136.04                  150.56 

Trade Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term Loans (Other current financial assets)    

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of institution, market reputation and service
standard to select the banks with which deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are maintained
with the institutions with which the Company has been transacting for years. Therefore, the Company does
not expect any material credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents and other current financial
assets.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily from trade receivables
amounting to Rs. 3680.43 Lakh as of March 31, 2021 (Previous year Rs. 2581.60 Lakh). The credit
quality of the Company's customers is monitored on an on going basis and assessed for impairment where
indicators of such impairment exist. Therefore, the Company does not expect any material risk on account
of non performance by any of the Company's counterparties. In the current year the Company has made
a provision of Rs.118.27 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 150.56 Lakh)as impairment due to long outstanding from
few parties, which the Management is confident of its recovery.

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

The unprecedented nature of the pandemic has caused disruption in the operations of the concessionaires
resulting in their incapacity to meet the monthly minimum guarantee fee as per the contractual terms. The
Company had to waive off various dues of the concessionaires pertaining to the year and several balances
were written off to ensure continuity of the business of the concessionaires in the Airport. These risks are
primarily in connection with the impact of the COVID pandemic which the Management is closely
monitoring.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises
due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure. The objective of liquidity risk
Management, is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirements. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The
Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank loans and other contracts. The Company has mitigated the risk by placing funds in short term
deposits with banks to match with the lead time for the disbursement of loans from the banks. The
Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can
be rolled over with existing lenders. Also the mitigation of the cash flow shortages due to the COVID-19
Pandemic and the pending commitments are detailed in Note 2.3.
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities:

Particulars

Maturity less than 1 year
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents (including other Bank balances)        5,196.06      12,773.46 
Trade Receivables        3,544.39        2,431.05 
Other Financial assets        2,225.67        2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables        3,166.31        1,895.34 
Other Financial liabilities        8,397.65      11,327.43 

Maturity 1 year to 3 years
Financial Assets

Security Deposits        1,153.93        1,100.15 
Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits             40.59                    68.95 
Borrowings        1,687.11                  562.10 

Maturity more than 3 years
Financial Assets                         -                           -   
Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits           603.30                  575.07 
Borrowings      93,479.67             89,004.94 

36 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and assets with agreed repayment periods. The table have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and financial assets based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay. The table include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which
the Company may be required to pay.

The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Company’s liquidity risk Management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

In March 2020, COVID-19, an infectious disease was declared a pandemic by the Word Health
Organization. On March 24, 2020, the Indian Government announced a strict 21-day lockdown which was
further extended across the country to contain the spread of the virus.

The traffic handled by the Company was also impacted due to COVID-19 pandemic and on account of the
consequent travel restrictions in international travel and domestic travel, leading to substantial fall in the
number of passengers and air traffic movements. This position is expected to return to normalcy over the
next 2-3 years.

Several countries across the world have been announcing travel restrictions, partial or complete lockdown
to contain the spread of virus and to avoid the crisis. The extended lockdown period had seen an adverse
impact on the Indian economy. The gradual reopening of activities across the country has seen some
improvement in the economy, but the return to pre-Covid levels would take some time.

The COVID-19 pandemic impacted across major airports of India affecting the total passenger traffic,
aircraft movements and cargo freight. The drop in traffic can be attributed to suspension of domestic air
services for 2 months, reduced demand for air travel post resumption of services as leisure & business
travel is avoided in the near term with only essential travel being undertaken, suspension of scheduled
international flights with limited non-scheduled flights operating through Vande Bharat mission, charter, and
air bubble flights, cap on domestic flight capacity imposed by the Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA) which
has been gradually relaxed now and suspension of visas announced by various countries.
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37 Capital and other commitments
The Company has the following capital commitments: 

Software Development Costs 6.77 6.77
Construction contracts (office and cargo complex , others) 7,576.64              8,093.12
Total 7,583.41              8,099.89

38 Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

39 The Company has the following investment in joint venture
Name of the Company

Principal place of business
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020
Unquoted investments in Equity instruments (fully paid) in Rs. Lakh                  234.00                  234.00 
No of shares of face value Rs.10             2,340,000             2,340,000 
% of holding 26% 26%

Particulars of Contract As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

i) In the earlier years L&T (Contractor) had raised claims towards subsumed taxes due to the change from
service tax regime to the GST regime because of which the tax rates have increased beyond what they
have estimated at the time of tendering. The Company had disputed the claims of the contractor and the
difference in the rates of subsumed taxes amounted to Rs. 498.24 Lakh as at March 31, 2020.
Subsequently, the Company has negotiated and settled these claims with the Contractor and the
necessary entries have been recorded in the books of account in the current year.

BPCL-KIAL Fuel Farm Private 
Limited

ii) AECOM India Private Limited (AECOM), consultant for runway and airside works, has submitted a
revised statement of account (including claims/matters in respect of interest on delayed / non-payment of
invoices for services rendered, EMD deposit, variation in retention money and other deductions by the
Company). Pending negotiation of the above matters/ claims and consequent reconciliation of balance, the
Company has not acknowledged claims of Rs. 76.02 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.198.22 Lakh) as debt and
reflected it as a contingent liability

Due to reduced revenue and continued incurrence of fixed costs, the Company’s performance was
adversely impacted, and losses were incurred during the year. 

The Company has considered the possible impact of the pandemic up to the date of approval of these
standalone financial statements in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the
current estimates, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of trade receivables, property
plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) and other assets and does not anticipate any
additional liabilities. The judgment, estimates and assumptions impacted by the global health pandemic
may be different from that estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements.

For this assessment, Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of known
events arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. The unprecedented nature of the pandemic makes the future
business environment uncertain, however, the Company will continue to carry out the impact assessment
on its assets and closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

There have been no other significant events subsequent to the Balance Sheet date that would impact the
carrying values of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Also refer Note 2.3 in respect of appropriateness of Going concern assumption adopted in preparing these
financial statements. 

India
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40 Employee Benefits

40.1 Defined contribution plans

40.2 Defined benefit plans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. Assumption

Discount Rate 7.11% 6.82%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition Rate 6.00% 2.00%
Mortality rate  Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 
(Ultimate) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 
(Ultimate) 

2. Table showing changes in the present value of Obligation
Present value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 101.20    53.25                  
Interest Cost 7.05        3.51                    
Current Service Cost 28.71      28.54                  
Benefits paid (4.20)                    (3.38)                   
Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation 0.04        19.28                  
Present value of Obligation as at the end of the year 132.80                  101.20                

3. Table showing changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets*
4. Table showing fair value of Plan assets*
* As the Gratuity plan is unfunded, there are no disclosures related 
to fair value of plan assets
5. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized

Opening cumulative other comprehensive Income 28.48          9.20                    
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 0.04            19.28                  
Actuarial (gain) / Loss on Plan assets -             -                      
Total Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 28.52                    28.48                  

6. The amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and loss

Present value of Obligation at the end of the year 132.80        101.20                
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year -                       -                      
Funded Status -                       -                      
(Net Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 132.80                  101.20                

7. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 28.71          28.54                  
Interest Cost 7.05            3.51                    
Expected Return on Plan assets -             -                      
Net Actuarial (gain) / Loss recognised in the year 0.04                      19.28                  
Weighted average duration of the D B O 15.24                    19.82                  

The Company makes provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plan, for qualifying
employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs.36.79 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.36.41
Lakh ) for provident fund contribution in the standalone Statement of profit and loss. The contributions
payable to this plan by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the said scheme.

The Company offers Gratuity Benefit scheme to its employees.

The valuation results for the defined benefit gratuity plan as at March 31, 2021 are produced in the 
tables below:

The cost of providing Gratuity Benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The gratuity benefit scheme is
unfunded.
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Sensitivity Analysis for the year ended March 31, 2021
% increase in DBO Liability  Increase in

DBO (Rs.) 
Discount Rate +100 basis points                        -9.90% 119.65                  -13.15                 
Discount Rate -100 basis points                          11.95% 148.68                  15.87                  
Salary Growth +100 basis points                        11.34% 147.86                  15.05                  
Salary Growth -100 basis points                        -9.45% 120.25                  -12.55                 
Attrition Rate +100 basis points                           0.95% 134.07                  1.26                    
Attrition Rate -100 basis points                           -1.23% 131.18                  -1.63                   
Mortality Rate 10% up                                         0.05% 132.87                  0.06                    
Effect of no ceiling                                              1.99% 135.44                  2.64                    

Sensitivity Analysis for the year ended March 31, 2020
% increase in DBO Liability  Increase in

DBO (Rs.) 
Discount Rate +100 basis points                        -11.80% 8.92                      -11.93                 
Discount Rate -100 basis points                          14.59% 11.60                    14.76                  
Salary Growth +100 basis points                        13.83% 11.52                    13.99                  
Salary Growth -100 basis points                        -11.27% 8.98                      -11.40                 
Attrition Rate +100 basis points                           0.93% 102.21                  0.94                    
Attrition Rate -100 basis points                           -1.25% 9.99                      -1.26                   
Mortality Rate 10% up                                         0.05% 101.25                  0.05                    
Effect of no ceiling                                              1.04% 102.25                  1.05                    

41 Passenger Service Fee (PSF) 

During the Financial Year 2019-20, this arrangement has been changed by Ministry of Civil Aviation w.e.f.
July 1, 2019 wherein the name of PSF (SC) has been changed as Aviation Security Fees which will be
collected by a separate national level Trust by name National Aviation Security Fee Trust (NASFT).
Accordingly from July 1, 2019 onwards, the Aviation Security Fees collected by the airlines will be paid
directly by the airlines to the bank accounts of NASFT (instead of the earlier policy of paying them through
the Airport) and the cost of deployment charges (Salary and allowance etc.) of CISF personnel in the
airport will be met out of that fund. The Company will have to meet other expenses of CISF from its own
funds and claim its reimbursement from NASFT. As on the date of Balance Sheet, the amount
recoverable in respect of other security related expenses incurred by the Company w.e.f. July 1, 2019
pending reimbursement aggregated Rs. 232.80 Lakh (Previous year : Rs.122.94 Lakh) is included under
Other Current Assets (refer Note 14). Meanwhile, the erstwhile PSF (SC) fund account maintained by the
Company is yet to be merged with NASFT funds.

The Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) [PSF (SC)] is collected by the airlines from the
passengers embarking from the Company and subsequently paid by the airlines to the Company from the
Airport Opening Date (AOD). The Company is receiving these amounts from the airlines on behalf of
Government of India. The receipt of amounts towards the PSF (SC) are credited/maintained in an escrow
account maintained by the Company only for utilisation towards security expenditure, pertaining to cost of
deployment of Central Industrial Security Forces (CISF) personnel and their related expenses. As such,
the PSF (SC) and the related security expenditure do not form part of revenues and expenditure
respectively, of the Company.
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42 Fair Values

Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets 

At Amortized cost

Deposits         1,153.93              1,153.93 
Previous year               1,100.15              1,100.15 

Trade Receivables                3,544.39              3,544.39 
Previous year               2,431.05              2,431.05 

Cash and Cash equivalents including other bank balances                5,196.06              5,196.06 
Previous year             12,773.46            12,773.46 

Other financial assets                2,225.67              2,225.67 
Previous year               2,237.67              2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities 
At Amortized cost
Borrowings              95,166.78            95,166.78 

Previous year             89,567.04            89,567.04 
Security Deposits                   780.36                 780.36 

Previous year                  741.80                 741.80 
Trade Payables                3,166.31              3,166.31 

Previous year               1,895.34              1,895.34 
Other Financial Liabilities                8,261.18              8,261.18 

Previous year             11,229.65            11,229.65 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2021

The management assessed the cash and cash equivalent, trade receivable, trade payable and other
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these
instruments .

From the AOD till June 30, 2019, the PSF (SC) received by the Company from the airlines is Rs.361.44
Lakh (Rs. 227.31 Lakh from April 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019) and the cost of deployment of CISF
personnel and their related expenses for the said period was Rs.2169.93 Lakh (Rs.1224.91 Lakh from
April 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019) resulting in a deficit of Rs.1808.49 Lakh (Rs. 997.60 Lakh from April 1,
2019 to June 30, 2019), which deficit has not been recognized in these standalone financial statements as
a liability since the Company is only acting in a pass through capacity of receiving the PSF (SC) from the
airlines and utilizing the same towards the cost of deployment of CISF personnel and their related
expenses and considering the fact that the responsibility of providing security personnel to the airport is
with the Government of India. The Company has received a letter dated October 9, 2019 from the
National Aviation Security Fee Trust (NASFT) asking the Company to settle the cost of deployment bills of
CISF in respect of the aforesaid deficit. The Company has written to the Ministry of Civil Aviation on
October 29, 2019 citing shortfall between the PSF collected and the amount payable to CISF due to the
low passenger traffic in the airport. The Company has requested that the NASFT may settle the shortfall
using the surplus PSF funds available with the Government.

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities appearing in the standalone financial statements
is reasonable approximation of fair values

Breakup of Financial assets and Liabilities 

11512TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Level 1 
Financial Assets                          -                           -   
Financial Liabilities                          -                           -   

Level 2
Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash equivalents                5,196.06            12,773.46 
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings              95,166.78            89,567.04 
Level 3

Financial Assets 
Security Deposits  1,153.93              1,100.15 
Trade Receivables  3,544.39              2,431.05 
Other financial assets  2,225.67              2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits     780.36                 741.80 
Trade Payables  3,166.31              1,895.34 
Other Financial Liabilities  8,261.18            11,229.65 

43 Income Tax

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Current Income Tax Charge                          -                           -   

b) Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences                 (558.00)              1,389.19 

Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) as per Standalone statement of
profit and loss

                  558.00             (1,389.19)

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax liability

On difference between book balance and tax balance of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 29,968.81             32,394.95           

Deferred tax liability 29,968.81                        32,394.95 

Deferred Tax Assets 
Arising on account of temporary differences due to 
disallowances 36.69                    51.61                  
Brought forward business losses -                       2,969.21             
Deduction under section 35AD of the Income Tax Act 34,189.02             34,189.02           

Deferred tax asset 34,225.71             37,209.84           

Deferred tax asset (Net) 4,256.90              4,814.90             
Add: Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement                   220.29 220.29                
Tax expense during the year recognized in the OCI                       8.31                     8.30 
Deferred Tax asset (unutilised tax credit)                4,485.50              5,043.49 

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The fair valuation of the security deposits are computed using the current applicable discounting rate
(10%).

Level 1 : Fair Value measurement using Quoted prices in Active Markets
Level 2 : Fair Value measurement using significant observable inputs
Level 3 : Fair Value measurement using significant unobservable inputs
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44 Dispute relating to the appointment of statutory auditors

•
•
•

Quashing the said letter
Declaration that the provisions of  section 139 (5) and (7) of the Act are not applicable to the Company;  

The Hon’ble High Court of Kerala by interim Order dated December 3, 2019 has granted interim stay on
the operation of the aforesaid Letter pending disposal of the writ petition. 

Accordingly the Board of Directors have approved the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019, at its meeting held on December 3, 2020, and submitted the same to its
auditors, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, for their audit report thereon, in accordance with the requirements
of section 134(1) of the Act. 

Direction to MCA to refrain from insisting upon appointment of statutory auditor by C&AG in terms of Sec
139(5) and (7) of the Act.

The Company was originally incorporated  as a  Government Company and later it became  a deemed 
Government Company under the provisions of section 619B of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 (the
“Old Act”). Accordingly, from the inception of the Company, auditors appointed by the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (“C&AG”) carried out the statutory audit of the Company. This position continued
up to the financial year ended March 31, 2018. On enactment of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
replacing the Old Act, and sections139(5) and 139(7) of the 2013 Act, deal with appointment of statutory
auditors by the C&AG were notified on April 1, 2014. 

The Company in its letter dated August 14, 2017 to the Principal Accountant General (C&AG office)
stated that it is not a Government Company as defined under the 2013 Act, nor is it a Company owned or
controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Central Government, or State Government or partly by the Central
Government, or the State Government or partly by the Central Government and partly by the State
Government; and that as Section 139(5) of the Act was not applicable, and that the Company was entitled
to appoint its statutory auditors by its General Meeting . 

The Company additionally obtained a legal opinion on February 2, 2018, to that effect which confirmed
that the provisions of section 139(5) of the Act do not apply to the Company. On the strength of the
aforesaid legal opinion, the Board of Directors on June 28, 2018, authorised the Managing Director to
seek an expression of interest from audit firms for appointment as statutory auditors of the Company.
Consequently, in pursuance of a resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on
January 19, 2019, the Company appointed the current statutory auditors (i.e., Deloitte Haskins & Sells
LLP) on March 28, 2019 for a period of five years, i.e., from financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23.

The Office of C&AG vide their letter dated October 21 2019 (the “Letter”) informed that the Company
cannot exempt itself from the provisions of Section 139(5) of the Act which are applicable to a ‘deemed
Government Company’ by virtue of the Circular referred to above. Further, vide letter dated November 25,
2019, the MCA informed that the Company is required to comply with sections 139(5) and 139(7) of the
Act. MCA further directed the Company to take appropriate steps to get the audit of the Company carried
out in terms of section 139(5) and (7) of the Act (i.e., by an auditor appointed by the C&AG)

The Company filed a writ petition on December 2, 2019 with the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala at
Ernakulam for: 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Managing Director Director
(DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)

Sd/- Sd/-
S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code) which would impact the contributions by the Company
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity has received Presidential assent in September 2020. However, the
date from which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Ministry of Labour and
Employment (Ministry) has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020 and has invited
suggestions from stake holders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will
complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which
the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

Based on legal opinion received, the Company’s Board of Directors is of the view that the appointment of
statutory auditors is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company continue to reaffirm the appointment Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
as auditors of the Company based on legal advice obtained by them and also the shareholders of the
Company (a) in the Annual General Meeting held on December 28, 2020 have noted the Other Matter
paragraph on appointment of statutory auditors reported in the audit report for the year ended March 31,
2019 as a part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019
together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon; (b) in the Annual General Meeting held on
December 23, 2021 have noted the Other Matter paragraph on appointment of statutory auditors reported
in the audit report for the year ended March 31, 2020 as a part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report
thereon, and did not have any reservations / comments regarding the appointment of the statutory
auditors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of KANNUR INTERNA-
TIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (“the Parent”/”the Company”) which includes the Parent’s share of 
loss in its jointly controlled entity, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), 
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of 
the jointly controlled entity referred to in the Other Matters section below, except for the effects/
possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section below, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Parent and its jointly 
controlled entity as at March 31, 2021, and their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their con-
solidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
	
(a)	 We refer to Note 38 (ii) to the consolidated financial statements, regarding certain claims 

raised by a consultant aggregating Rs. 76.02 Lakh (As at March 31, 2020: Rs. 198.22 Lakh) 
which are in the process of review by the Management.  The Company has not concluded its 
review/assessment on the final claim (including certain matters which are pending reconcil-
iation) and pending the quantification of the amount eventually payable, has disclosed the 
amount of Rs. 76.02 Lakh as contingent liability. We are unable to comment on the liability 
to be recognised towards these claims and the possible impact on the carrying value of the 
related property plant and equipment, and its consequential impact on the depreciation and 
loss for the year. 
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This was also subject matter of qualification in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consoli-
dated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 issued on November 12, 2021.  

(b)	 We refer to Note 31.2 and Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, wherein the 
Company has de-recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 2969.21 Lakh recognized in the previ-
ous years pursuant to the Management’s taxable profit projections made as part of prepara-
tion of the standalone financial statements of the Parent whereby it is no longer probable that 
sufficient future taxable profits will be available for setting off the unused tax losses before 
the time period for set-off of such losses expire. The recognition of the deferred tax asset as at 
March 31, 2019 was qualified in our audit report dated December 3, 2020 for the said year in 
the absence of projections to support the availability of sufficient future taxable profits. Fur-
ther, the recognition of the deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2020 was qualified in our audit 
report dated November 12, 2021 for the said year as sufficient and appropriate audit evidence 
to demonstrate the reasonability of the projections of future taxable profits were not available 
to support the availability of sufficient future taxable profit for the utilization against such 
losses.  

Considering the above, in our opinion the de-recognition of deferred tax asset that has been re-
corded in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 should 
have been recorded during prior year(s), thereby requiring a restatement of the comparative 
amounts for the prior year(s) presented, in accordance with Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Consequently, the losses for the current year 
are overstated by Rs. 2969.21 Lakh and the Earnings per Share are overstated by Rs.(2.22) 
per share.

(c)	 The auditors of the Company’s jointly controlled entity (the “JCE”) have made certain quali-
fications in their audit report on the financial statements of the JCE for the year ended March 
31, 2021. The extract of qualifications impacting the financial statements of the JCE are as 
follows:

	 •	 Adequacy of maintenance of books of account in electronic form.

	 •	 Inappropriate depreciation charge on assets constructed over leased property based on the 
useful life of assets specified in Schedule II to the Act rather than over the lease period and 
non-capitalisation of decommissioning expenses which are not in accordance with Ind AS 
16- Property, Plant and Equipment. However, the amounts impacting the financial state-
ments have not been quantified in the Audit Report of the JCE.
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We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Parent and its jointly con-
trolled entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoun-
tants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, subject to our com-
ments in paragraph 1(a) of the section ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’, 
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the 
sub-paragraph (b) of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements:

1.	 Note 3.5 to the consolidated financial statements where for the reasons stated therein, 353.98 
acres of land given on lease to the Company has not been recognised in these consolidated 
financial statements as the Company is yet to enter into any lease agreement with the Gov-
ernment of Kerala. 

2.	 Note 36 of the consolidated financial statements which describes the uncertainties due to 
the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic and the Management’s assessment of impairment of car-
rying values of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) in the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

	 Based on such assessment, the Management expects the carrying amount of Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) will be recovered. The actual impact of 
the pandemic may be different from that considered in assessing the recoverability of these 
assets.

3.	 As explained in Note 41 of the consolidated financial statements regarding the deficit in 
PSF (SC) which has not been recognized in these financial statements as a liability since the 
Company is only acting in a pass through capacity of receiving the PSF (SC) from the airlines 
and utilizing the same towards the cost of deployment of CISF personnel and their related 
expenses and considering the fact that the responsibility of providing security personnel to 
the airport is with the Government of India.
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4.	 As stated in Note 6.1 of the consolidated financial statements, regarding Management’s as-
sessment of recoverability of deposit of Rs.982.03 Lakh based on the reasons stated in the 
said Note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

•	 The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other infor-
mation comprises the information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our au-
ditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ Report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor’s report.

•	 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	 In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information, identified above when it becomes available, compare with the 
financial statements of the jointly controlled entity, to the extent it relates to this entity and, 
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other 
information, identified above when it becomes available, is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the 
jointly controlled entity, is traced from their financial statements audited by the other audi-
tor.

•	 When we read the Directors report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as 
required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements	

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated  financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other 
comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Parent and 
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its jointly controlled entity in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its jointly controlled 
entity are  responsible for  maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Parent and its jointly controlled entity and 
for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other irregularities; selection and application of appro-
priate accounting  policies; making  judgments  and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, rele-
vant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Parent, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Parent 
and its jointly controlled entity are responsible for assessing the ability of the Parent and its jointly 
controlled entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its jointly controlled entity are also responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Parent and its jointly controlled entity.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial state-
ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a mate-
rial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain pro-
fessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
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than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omis-
sions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account-
ing estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of account-
ing and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relat-
ed to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Parent and 
its jointly controlled entity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Parent and 
its jointly controlled entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial state-
ments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements repre-
sent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the en-
tities or business activities within the Parent and its jointly controlled entity to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, su-
pervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and perfor-
mance of the audits carries out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, in-
dividually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowl-
edgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
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results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidat-
ed financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entity includ-
ed in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rel-
evant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relation-
ships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a)	 We draw attention to Note 44 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2021 on our appointment as statutory auditors of the Company by the members of 
the Company under section 139(2) of the Act for a term of five (5) years from the conclusion 
of the 9th annual general meeting until the conclusion of the 14th annual general meeting 
(i.e. in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2019 until the financial year ending 
March 31, 2023). We understand that the Company has filed a writ petition challenging the 
view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs that the Company is a Government company as 
defined under the Companies Act, 2013, and its direction that the Company’s Auditors need 
to be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the 
Act.  

	 We are informed that the aforesaid direction is currently under an interim stay under order 
dated December 3, 2019 issued by the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala and that the matter is 
sub-judice. Our appointment as auditors of the Company is subject to the eventual outcome 
of this matter.  

This was also reported under Other Matters in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 issued on December 3, 2020.  The Board of 
Directors of the Company continue to reaffirm our appointment as auditors of the Compa-
ny based on legal advice obtained by them and also the shareholders of the Company (a) in 
the Annual General Meeting held on December 28, 2020 have noted the Other Matter on 
appointment of statutory auditors reported in the audit report for the year ended March 31, 
2019 as a part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 
31, 2019 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon; (b) in the Annual 
General Meeting held on December 23, 2021 have noted the Other Matter on appointment 
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of statutory auditors reported in the audit report for the year ended March 31, 2020 as a 
part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 
together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon, and did not have any reserva-
tions / comments regarding the appointment of the statutory auditors.  

(b)	 The consolidated financial statements also include the Parent’s share of net loss of Rs.93.36 
Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2021 (subject to the matters described in paragraph (c) of 
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above), as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of one jointly controlled entity, whose financial statement have not 
been audited by us. These financial statements and the qualified audit report thereon have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the 
jointly controlled entity, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of section 143 of the Act, 
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entity is based solely on the report of 
the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters including 
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the 
report of the other auditor on the separate financial statements of the jointly controlled entity 
referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

	 a)	 We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid con-
solidated financial statements.

	 b)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law re-
lating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books and the report of the other auditor.

	 c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss includ-
ing Other Comprehensive Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consol-
idated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
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the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consoli-
dated financial statements.

	 d)	 Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

	 e)	 The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, in our opinion, 
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Parent and its jointly controlled 
entity.

	 f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from all the directors of the Parent 
as on March 31, 2021, except from one Director of the Parent, and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Parent and the reports of the statutory auditors of its jointly 
controlled entity incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Parent and its jointly 
controlled entity incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 g)	 The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above.

	 h)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “An-
nexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent company and jointly 
controlled entity incorporated in India. Our report expresses an adverse opinion on 
the operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting, for the 
reasons stated therein.

	 i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuner-
ation paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provi-
sions of section 197 of the Act.

	 j)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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	 i. 	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on 
the consolidated financial position of the Parent and its joint controlled entity; 

	 ii. 	 The Parent and its joint controlled entity did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivatives for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

	 iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Ed-
ucation and Protection Fund by the Parent and its jointly controlled entity incor-
porated in India.

	 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 (Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
	
		
	 Sd/-						    
	 Sumit Trivedi					   
	 Partner
Place: SECUNDERABAD	 Membership No. 209354
Date: April 21, 2022	 (UDIN: 22209354AHMZOX4308)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and 
for the year March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial report-
ing of Kannur International Airport Limited (hereinafter referred to as (“the Parent”/”the Compa-
ny”) and its jointly controlled company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the parent and jointly controlled company, which are com-
panies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respec-
tive companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial informa-
tion, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial re-
porting of the Parent, and jointly controlled company, which are companies incorporated in India 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Insti-
tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial con-
trols. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors of the jointly controlled company, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of 
their reports referred to in the Other Matter Paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to pro-
vide a basis for our adverse  audit opinion on the  internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting of the Parent, and its jointly controlled company, which are companies incorporated in 
India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and pro-
cedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedure may deteriorate.

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  
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Basis for Adverse Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following 
material weaknesses have been identified in the Parent’s and jointly controlled entity’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting as at March 31, 2021. The Company did not have an 
appropriate internal control system for:

	 a)	 ensuring compliance with the applicable accounting standards and generally accepted 
accounting principles, with regard to validating the completeness and accuracy of cost 
(including the costs eligible for capitalisation) for recording Property, Plant and Equip-
ment (including Capital-Work -in Progress); establishing a process of periodic verifi-
cation of property plant and equipment and reconciling the same with the fixed asset 
register and books of account.

		  The Company’s process of evaluating completeness and accuracy of transactions relat-
ing to acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capi-
tal-Work-in Progress) through confirmations and their reconciliation with respective 
vendor(s) as per books of account at regular intervals.

	 b)	 financial book closing procedures to ensure preparation of timely, reliable and appro-
priate financial statements including the Company’s process of obtaining balance con-
firmations and statement of accounts from vendors and customers, and their reconcili-
ation with the books of account at regular intervals.

	 c)	 the Company’s process of ensuring the completeness and accuracy of Aero, Non-aero 
and other operating revenue recorded during the year ended March 31, 2021.

	 d)	 the Company’s process of validating certain claims related to carry forward of business 
losses under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accounting of the related tax effects un-
der the applicable accounting standards, including timely evaluation of reasonability of 
the projections to support the availability of future taxable profits for utilisation against 
such unused business losses and the accounting of the consequential de-recognition of 
deferred tax asset in the prior years financial statements requiring re-statement of such 
financial statements under Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Esti-
mates and Errors.

	 e)	 the Company’s process of assessing recoverability of overdue receivables and making 
valuation adjustments, as necessary

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control 
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants, 9th Floor, Prestige, TMS Square,  
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Adverse Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter 
paragraph below, the Parent, because of the effect of the material weakness described in Basis for 
Adverse Opinion paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 
Parent has not maintained adequate and effective internal financial controls over financial report-
ing and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were not operating effectively as 
of March 31, 2021, and the jointly controlled company which is a company incorporated in India, 
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to its financial 
statements and such internal controls were operating effectively as of March 31, 2021, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Parent considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Con-
trols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the na-
ture, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, and the material weakness has affected our 
opinion on the said consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Other Matter 

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effective-
ness of the internal financial control over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one jointly 
controlled entity, which is a company incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

	 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 (Firm‘s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
	
		
	 Sd/-						    
	 Sumit Trivedi					   
	 Partner
Place: SECUNDERABAD	 Membership No. 209354
Date: April 21, 2022	 (UDIN: 22209354AHMZOX4308)
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 
No.

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

ASSETS
I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 189,738.67                  195,154.76                  
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 1,184.49                      2,204.70                      
(c) Intangible assets 4 17.54                           16.35                           
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investment in joint venture 5 -                               93.36                           
(ii) Other financial assets 6 1,153.93                      1,100.15                      

(e) Other non-current assets 7 454.34                         1,270.44                      
(f) Non current tax assets (net) 8 258.92                         1,159.28                      
(g) Deferred tax assets (Net) 31 4,485.50                      5,043.49                      

Total non‑‑current assets 197,293.39                  206,042.53                  

II Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 36.68                           11.43                           
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 10 3,544.39                      2,431.05                      
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 4,984.09                      12,507.22                    
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 211.97                         266.24                         
(iv) Other financial assets 13 2,225.67                      2,237.67                      

(c) Other current assets 14 2,364.23                      1,559.50                      
Total current assets 13,367.03                    19,013.11                    

TOTAL ASSETS (I + II) 210,660.42                  225,055.64                  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 133,812.10                  133,812.10                  
(b) Other equity 16 (32,453.69)                  (13,953.98)                  

Total equity 101,358.41                  119,858.12                  

II LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 95,166.78                    89,567.04                    
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 643.89                         644.02                         

(b) Provisions 19 124.59                         97.06                           
(c) Other Non current liabilities 20 1,000.00                      1,000.00                      

Total non‑‑current liabilities 96,935.26                    91,308.12                    

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 21
(A) Dues of micro and small enterprises 31.92                           36.35                           
(B) Dues of other than micro and small enterprises 3,134.39                      1,858.99                      

(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 8,397.65                      11,327.43                    
(b) Provisions 23 18.60                           16.29                           
(c) Other current liabilities 24 784.19                         650.34                         

Total current liabilities 12,366.75                    13,889.40                    
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 + 2) 109,302.01                  105,197.52                  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (I + II) 210,660.42                  225,055.64                  
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements -                               -                               
In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number: 117366W/W-100018)

Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 
No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

I Income
Revenue from operations 25 4,477.06                    11,589.80                  
Other income 26 550.93                       185.57                       
Total Income 5,027.99                    11,775.37                  

II Expenses
Airport operating expenses 27 4,505.73                    4,851.43                    
Employee benefits expense 28 1,156.81                    1,144.26                    
Finance costs 29 8,905.19                    8,634.51                    
Depreciation and amortization expense 3.8 6,865.41                    6,879.46                    
Other expenses 30 1,443.17                    1,107.66                    
Total expenses 22,876.31                  22,617.32                  

III Share of Loss of Joint Venture (88.52)                       (44.02)                       
IV Loss before tax (I - (II+III)) (17,936.84)                (10,885.97)                
V Tax expense/(Benefit)

(1) Current tax -                            -                            
(2) Deferred tax 31 558.00                      (1,389.19)                  
(3) Share of Joint Venture 4.84                          7.08                          
Total tax expense/(Benefit) 562.84                      (1,382.11)                  

VI Loss for the year (IV - V) (18,499.68)                (9,503.86)                  

VII Other Comprehensive loss
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss: (0.04)                         (19.28)                       

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 0.01                          5.62                          

Total other comprehensive loss for the year (0.03)                         (13.66)                       
VIII Total comprehensive loss for the year (VI + VII) (18,499.71)                (9,517.52)                  

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.100/-
Basic and diluted EPS (Rs.) 32 (13.83)                       (7.37)                         

In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal 
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram

Particulars

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial 
statements

Place : Secunderabad	 Place : Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022	 Date : April 21, 2022
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

A Equity Share Capital

Balance at March 31, 2019 116,050,000         116,050.00      
Changes in equity share capital during the year:

Issue of equity shares 17,762,100           17,762.10        
Balance at March 31, 2020 133,812,100         133,812.10      
Changes in equity share capital during the year:

Issue of equity shares -                        -                   
Balance at March 31, 2021 133,812,100         133,812.10      

B Other Equity

Particulars Securities 
Premium

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Loss

Total Other
Equity

Balance at March 31, 2019 -             30.70               (4,594.31)     (6.52)                    (4,570.13)        
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020                -   -                   (9,503.86)     -                        (9,503.86)        
Securities Premium        133.67 -                   -               -                        133.67            
Other comprehensive Loss for the year, net of 
income tax                -   -                   -               (13.66)                  (13.66)             

Balance at March 31, 2020 133.67       30.70              (14,098.17)   (20.18)                  (13,953.98)      
Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 (18,499.68)   (18,499.68)      
Other comprehensive Loss for the year, net of 
income tax (0.03)                    (0.03)               

Balance at March 31, 2021 133.67       30.70              (32,597.85)   (20.21)                  (32,453.69)      

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our Report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Sumit Trivedi Managing Director Director
Partner (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)
(Membership No. 209354)

S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN AGPPS4585B) (PAN AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans - Gains / Losses arising on Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans are recognised
in the Other Comprehensive Loss as per IND AS 19 and shall not be reclassified to the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in
the subsequent years.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Loss before tax (17,936.84)                    (10,885.97)                    
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,854.29                       6,873.17                       
Share of Loss of Joint Venture 88.52                            44.02                            
Amortisation of intangible assets 11.12                            6.29                              
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 40.91                            83.06                            
Finance Cost 8,818.87                       8,551.45                       
Interest Income (308.26)                         (59.54)                           
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.44                              -                                
Fair value adjustments (45.45)                           (442.99)                         
Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables (118.27)                         (150.56)                         
Credit impaired Trade Receivables written off (500.49)                         (333.20)                         
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (3,095.16)                      3,685.73                       

Working capital adjustments for:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (494.58)                         (290.71)                         
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 1,270.97                       999.69                          
(Increase) / Decrease  in other financial assets (53.78)                           (502.89)                         
Increase / (Decrease)  in other financial liabilities (116.23)                         449.61                          
(Increase) / Decrease in other Current Assets 11.37                            1,184.39                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Bank balances other than 
cash and cash equivalents 54.27                            
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (25.25)                           (11.43)                           
Increase / (Decrease) in other Current Liabilities 133.85                          547.49                          
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 29.84                            48.35                            
Cash generated from operations (2,284.70)                      6,110.23                       
Income tax paid (net) 900.36                          (630.29)                         
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from 
operating activities (A) (1,384.34)                      5,479.94                       

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,577.40)                      (5,305.02)                      
Payments for Intangible assets (8.50)                             (6.49)                             
Interest received 308.26                          59.54                            
Government Grants towards purchase of equipment -                                1,000.00                       
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.53                              -                                
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (2,277.11)                      (4,251.97)                      

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital -                                17,895.77                     
Proceeds from borrowings -                                443.20                          
Interest paid (3,831.65)                      (7,920.75)                      
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) (3,831.65)                      10,418.22                     
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash 
equivalents (A+B+C) (7,493.10)                      11,646.19                     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,477.19                     831.00                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
(Refer Note : 11.3) 4,984.09                       12,477.19                     

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Note:
Reconcilation of Borrowings:
Opening Balance 89,567.04                     88,440.73                     
Proceeds from borrowings  -                                443.20                          
Funded interest term loan (FITL) 2,135.87                       -                                
Interest capitalized into Loan 3,463.87                       683.11                          
Closing balance 95,166.78                     89,567.04                     

In terms of our Report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Number:117366W/W-100018)

Sumit Trivedi Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal 
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership No. 209354) (DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)

S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Secunderabad Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022 Date : April 21, 2022
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

1 GENERAL INFORMATION
Kannur International Airport Limited (“KIAL” or “the Company” or "Parent") was incorporated on
December 3, 2009 in India as a private limited Company and later converted into a public limited
Company effective from August 2010. The Company is having its registered office in Kara –
Peravoor, Mattannur, Kannur District, Kerala. The Company has been incorporated for designing,
financing, construction, operation and maintenance of an international airport at Kannur, Kerala.
The project is promoted by Kerala State Government holding 39.23% of the equity shares of the
Company as at March 31, 2021. 

The consolidated financial statements were reviewed by Audit Committee, and approved by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 21, 2022.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Parent have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements include accounts of Kannur International Airport Limited
(“the Company”/"the Parent")) and its joint venture company BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private
Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
with the exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by
Ind AS. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

The results and assets and liabilities of the joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the share of loss of
each of the joint venture has been deducted from the cost of investments

2.3 Going Concern
The COVID-19 pandemic impacted across major airports of India affecting the total passenger
traffic, aircraft movements and cargo freight. The traffic handled by the Parent was also
impacted due to COVID-19 pandemic and on account of the consequent travel restrictions in
international travel and domestic travel, leading to substantial fall in the number of passengers
and air traffic movements. This position is expected to return to normalcy over the next 2-3 years.

Due to reduced revenue and continued incurrence of fixed costs, the parent’s performance was
adversely impacted, and losses were incurred during the year. Also refer Note 36 which
describes the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the parent. 

During the current year, the repayment of the borrowings are scheduled to begin from the fourth
quarter of the financial year 2022-23 (the loan has been restructured under resolution framework
for exposures other than personal loans under stress due to COVID Pandemic, also refer Note
17), capital commitments towards the ongoing office and cargo complex and other pending
payments to the contractors which requires major cash flow requirement in the coming years.

Kannur International Airport Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

The Government of Kerala has provided a Letter of Comfort dated June 8, 2015 to Canara Bank
in connection with the term loan sanctioned to take appropriate action in the case of any shortfall
in the project term loan repayment obligations.
Further, the Government of Kerala has given an undertaking to the parent vide GO (MS) No
01/2014 /Tran. dated January 4, 2014 to mitigate the cash short fall in the first five years of
operation (from 2016-17 to 2020-21) by a budgetary support of Rs.13268 Lakh. However, there
were no circumstances of cash shortfall requiring such support from the Government during that
period. The parent is confident that as the Airport commencement date is December 2018, it will
be able to secure such support in the unlikely event of cash shortfall in future also. 

The parent has initiated various actions in relation to saving cost, optimize revenue Management
opportunities and enhance revenues is expected to result in improved operating performance.

The Parent has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the subsequent years and
has deferred its obligations pertaining to contractor payments, the ongoing capital expansion and
any other financial obligations. Further, due care has been exercised to determine the
recoverability of the carrying values of its assets and based on current estimates, the Parent
expects to recover majority of the carrying amount of all of its assets.
For this assessment, Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of
known events arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. The unprecedented nature of the pandemic
makes the future business environment uncertain, however, the Parent will continue to carry out
the impact assessment on its assets and closely monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions.
Accordingly, the liquidity risk and cash flow shortages of the Parent are mitigated. 

The above instances are expected to be temporary in nature and hence do not have any impact
on the Going Concern assumption on the basis of which these financial statements are prepared. 

2.4 Change and use of Estimate and judgment

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Parent makes judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods affected. 

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements,
which may cause material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, is in respect of impairment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, fair value
measurements of financial instruments and retirement benefit obligations as discussed below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

The few critical estimations and judgments made in applying accounting policies are:

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities :

Some of the assets and liabilities of the Parent are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. Fair value measurement that are based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
requires estimates of discount rate, future growth rate, etc. based on Management’s best
estimate about future developments.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Depreciation on the property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the
rates arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the Management (except in case of airport
assets which are prescribed by AERA as mentioned below), which coincides with the lives
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority ("the Authority") has issued a
consultation paper viz.05/2014-15 in the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in
Economic Regulation of Major Airports wherein it, inter alia, mentioned that the Authority
proposes to lay down, to the extent required, the depreciation rates for airport assets, taking into
account the provisions of the useful life of assets given in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013, for such assets that have not been clearly mentioned in the Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 or may have a useful life justifiably different than that indicated in the Companies Act,
2013 in the specific context to the airport sector. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Part B of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Authority has
issued order no. 35/2017-18 on January 12, 2018 which is further amended on April 9, 2018, in
the matter of Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets, which is effective from April 1, 2018
("AERA Order").

Accordingly, the Management has adopted useful life in respect of airport assets as prescribed in
the aforesaid order.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Liabilities/Assets:

The Parent reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities/assets at the end of each
reporting period.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Parent has a present obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (except retirement benefits and leave
encashments) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent assets and
liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed
separately.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Land development cost incurred in freehold and lease
hold land is added to the cost of the land. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under
development as at the balance sheet date net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property,
plant and equipment under installation or under construction as at balance sheet date are shown
as capital work-in-progress, intangible assets under development as at balance sheet date are
shown as intangible assets under development and the related advances are shown as loans
and advances.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Parent and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Further, when 
each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Parent has identified the assets based on the documents and certificates provided by the
consultant and the cost of each component / part of the asset is arrived separately in the same
manner. The asset classification of the component / part that has a cost which is significant to
the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining
asset is grouped and classified separately.

Spare parts that can only be used in connection with a particular item of property, plant and
equipment, and whose use is expected to be irregular, are capitalized. Such spare parts are
depreciated over a period, not exceeding the remaining useful life of the principal asset.
All spare parts, stand-by and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment (PPE)
if they meet the definition of PPE i.e. if the Parent intends to use these during more than a period
of 12 months.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Incidental expenditure during construction period (net of related income arising during that
period) directly related to the project, incurred prior to commencement of commercial operations
is carried forward and allocated to the extent identifiable with any particular fixed asset else it has
been allocated to various fixed assets in proportion to their cost on commencement of
commercial operations. Incidental expenditure not related to construction, and corporate
expenses are recognised as expense when incurred.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss when asset is derecognised. 
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the
rates arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the Management (except in case of airport
assets which are prescribed by AERA as mentioned below), which coincides with the lives
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

The components identified by the Parent are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the
remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The useful life adopted by the Parent as per the AERA guidelines are as under;
Description of the Asset                                                                               Estimated Useful life

Terminal Building                                                                                                      30 years
Building In Operational Area                                                                                     30 years
Utility Building                                                                                                           30 years
Roads, Roads in operational area, Boundary wall and Security fencing                  10 years
Baggage Handling System/ Escalators/ Elevators/  HVAC Equipment                    15 years
X-Ray Machine, RT set, DFMD, HHMD Security Equipment                                    15 years
Office Equipment                                                                                                        5 years
Furniture & Fixtures - Other than trolleys                                                                    7 years
Furniture & Fixtures - Trolleys                                                                                     3 years
Computers - End User Devices                                                                                  3 years
Electrical Installation and Equipment including Runway lighting system                 10 years
Flight Information System, AOCC Equipment                                                            6 years
Light Motor Vehicles                                                                                                   8 years
Crash Fire Tenders, Other Fire Equipment including pumps and sprinklers            15 years
Intangible assets - Computer Software                                                                       3 years
Runway, Taxiway, Apron                                                                                           30 years

Depreciation on fixed assets added/disposed off during the period is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition/disposal. The assets residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. 
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Parent reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. The resulting
impairment loss if any is recognised in the consolidated  Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.6 Operating Cycle 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Parent and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Parent has determined
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-current.
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2.7 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Software (not being an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use are treated
as intangible assets.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any profit or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets are amortised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for
use. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised on straight line basis for 3 years.

  2.8 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined based on Management’s estimate
of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the Parent
expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as an asset only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions.
An onerous contract is considered to exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of Management / independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
Management estimate.

2.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

The consolidated financial statements of Parent are presented in INR, which is also the
functional currency. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.

2.10 Cash Flows and Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
flows)

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in the Ind
AS 7. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, cash in Bank, cheques and drafts on hand, deposits held with Banks,
other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. 
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2.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Parent and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the Government.

Income from services

Revenue from airport operations i.e., Aeronautical and Non-Aeronautical operations are
recognised on accrual basis, net of Goods and Service Tax (GST), and applicable discounts
when services are rendered. Aeronautical operations include user development fees (UDF),
Baggage, X-ray Charges, ground handling, Landing and Parking of aircraft, fuel farm and
Common User Terminal Equipment (CUTE) counter charges. The main streams of non-
aeronautical revenue includes retail, advertisement, food and beverages, car parking and land
and space- rentals.

Interest is recognised using the time proportion method based on rates implicit in the transaction. 
Award fees and tender fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
the relevant arrangement. 

Land and Space- rentals pertains to granting right to use land and space primarily for catering to
the needs of passengers, air traffic services and air transport services.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability, when calculating the effective interest rate, the Parent estimates the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the standaolne  statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income if any, is recognised when the Parent's right to receive dividend is established,
which is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

2.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2.13 Employee Benefits
a Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, leave, incentives etc., are
recognized during the period in which the employee renders related services and are measured
at undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The
Parent makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Parent’s
contribution is recognised as an expense in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b Defined Benefit plan

For defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);
• net interest expense or income; and
• remeasurement

The Parent presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Parent's defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

2.14 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is
recognized in the Standaolne Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a Current Tax

Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under Special provision (i.e., Minimum
Alternate Tax) or normal provision of Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax on Income for the current period
is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance
with the provisions of relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/
appeals.
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b Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax assets are realised or deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets, unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised or reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable, respectively, that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

2.15 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Parent will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government
grants are recognised in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Parent recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Specifically, Government grants whose primary condition is that the Parent should
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and equipment) are
recognised as deferred income in the balance sheet and transferred to standaolne statement of
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Parent with no future related costs
are recognised in standaolne statement of profit and loss in the period in which they become
receivable. 

2.16 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events if any is adjusted with the Ind AS
consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size
or nature are only disclosed.

2.17 Earnings per share
i Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional
equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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2.18 Operating Segments 

The Parent operates in the Indian domestic market by providing airport services to passengers
and various airline operators which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, is
considered as the only segment.

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Parent is reported at an overall level, and hence there
are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

2.19 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Parent takes into account the characteristics of asset and
liability if market participants would take those into consideration. Fair value for measurement
and / or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined in such
basis except for transactions in the scope of Ind AS 36. Normally at initial recognition, the
transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Parent uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

2.20 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Parent recognizes a financial asset or
financial liability in its balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. 

a Financial Assets

A financial asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or
contractual obligation to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under condition that are potentially favourable to the Parent.

Financial assets of the Parent comprise cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances, Investments
in equity shares of companies, investment other than equity shares, loans/ advances to
employee / related parties / others, security deposit, claims recoverable etc.

146 12TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Kannur International Airport Limited

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs if any, of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Investments in equity instruments other than investment in Joint Venture are classified as Fair
value through profit and loss, unless the related instruments are not held for trading and the
Parent irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income.

b Financial Liabilities

The Parent’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, accrued expenses and other
payables. 

The Parent initially recognises financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition
which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial liabilities if any, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are
added to the fair value on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of the financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

1 the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or 

2 the Parent has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
pass-through arrangement; and a) the Parent has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or b) the Parent has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged /
cancelled / expired. 

Impairment of financial assets: The Parent recognises impairment loss on trade receivables
using expected credit loss model which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the
basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109.  

The Parent follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 
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The application of simplified approach does not require the Parent to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Parent evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss
allowance on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

2.21 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.

2.22 Investment in Joint Venture

A Joint Venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of Joint Venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations .

Under the equity method, an investment in a Joint Venture is recognised initially in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Parent's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Joint Venture. When the Parent’s share of
losses of a Joint Venture exceeds the Parent’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Parent’s net investment in the Joint
Venture), the Parent discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Parent has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the Joint Venture.
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2.23 Leases 

Parent as a Lessor: 

Leases for which the Parent is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Parent as a Lessee: 

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities

The Parent recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. At the commencement of the lease, the Parent recognizes lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 

The Government of Kerala has not finalised on the underlying terms and conditions for the lease
of land to the Parent and in the absence of a details as to extent of land and the lease rentals the
Parent has not recognised any right of use asset or lease liabilities though the Parent is still using
small portions of land owned by Government of Kerala. (Refer Note 3.5)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options 

The Parent determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

The Parent has the option under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of
three to five years. The Parent applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Parent reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business
strategy). 
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4 Intangible assets

Particulars Computer 
Software

Cost
At April 1, 2019 20.98                   

Additions 6.49                     
Disposals -                         

At March 31, 2020 27.47                   
Additions 8.50                     
At March 31, 2021 35.97                   

Amortization
Up to April 1, 2019 4.83                     
Charge for the year 6.29                     

At March 31, 2020 11.12                   
Charge for the year 7.31                     

At March 31, 2021 18.43                   

Carrying amount
At March 31, 2020 16.35                   
At March 31, 2021 17.54                   

5 Investment in Joint Venture (accounted for using equity method)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

BPCL-KIAL FUEL FARM PRIVATE LIMITED
Investment in KIAL-BPCL Fuel Farm Private Limited 234.00              234.00              
Percentage of interest 26% 26%

Reconciliation to carrying amounts
Opening carrying amount 93.36                144.46              
Investment in Joint venture during the year -                    -                    
 Loss for the year (inclusive of deferred tax of Rs. 4.84 Lakh 
(Previous year: Rs.7.08 Lakh) (93.36)                 (51.10)                 
 Other comprehensive income
Carrying amount of investment in Joint Venture -                       93.36                

Total -                       93.36                   

6 Other financial assets (Non-Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Security Deposits  (refer Note 6.1 below)               1,135.93               1,082.15 

Earmarked deposits with remaining maturity period greater than 
12 months (Refer Note 6.2 below)

                   18.00                    18.00 

Total 1,153.93              1,100.15              

BPCL-KIAL FUEL FARM PRIVATE LIMITED (BKFFPL) was incorporated in May 2015 with an equity
participation of 74% by Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL) and 26% by Kannur International
Airport Limited. BKFFPL was formed to design, construct, commission and operate the Fuel Farm at
Kannur International Airport for the supply of Aviation Turbine Fuel (ATF) on an exclusive basis.
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6.1

6.2

7 Other Non Current Assets 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

GST input credit 454.34              1,270.44           
Total 454.34                 1,270.44              

8 Non current tax assets (net)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Advance Income tax  (including TDS receivable)                  258.92               1,159.28 
Total                  258.92               1,159.28 

9 Inventories

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Stock of fuel                      8.83                    11.43 
Stores and spares                    27.85                          -   

Total                    36.68                    11.43 

10 Trade Receivables 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade receivables
Secured

Considered Good 193.57    630.90              
Considered Doubtful -          -                    

Unsecured
Considered Good 3,350.82 1,800.15           
Considered Doubtful 136.04    150.56              

Less: Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables                  136.04                  150.56 

              3,544.39               2,431.05 

From related party                                   143.98                           48.34 
From others                                                                  3,400.41               2,382.71 

Total 3,544.39              2,431.05              

Balances held as security deposit for Customs authorities for cargo related operations.

The Parent based on demand letter dated May 7, 2018 placed a security deposit of Rs.982.03 Lakh with
the Ministry of Home Affairs (MoH), towards deployment of CISF staff induction. Subsequently, the Parent
requested vide letter dated October 29, 2019 for a refund of such deposit from MoH. The MoH has
responded vide letter dated December 2, 2019, that upon clearance from Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA)
for refunding the deposit the same shall be processed. As per the discussions held with the MoCA on
June 4, 2021, the Parent was informed that the matter was taken up with the MoH and they stated that the
fund was deposited in the consolidated fund of India and the fund is non-refundable. The Parent was
advised to make a case to MoCA, which MoCA will take up appropriately. 

The Management of the Parent is confident of recovering the said deposit and hence no provision has
been considered against the same since Parent is of the view that the Security Deposit was paid from its
own resources and this deposit was to be recouped from PSF collections after commencement of
operations. Due to low passenger volumes since Government of India is not allowing foreign carriers, PSF
collections were inadequate to recoup the Security Deposit and meet the Cost of Deployment of CISF
personnel and their related expenses. Hence the Parent is of the view that since security function is also a
sovereign function and considering the fact that PSF cannot be used for Parent’s own expenditure, CISF
cost is to be borne by the Government of India.
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11 Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
i) In Treasury Savings Bank Account with Department of 
Treasuries, Government of Kerala (Refer Note 11.1 and 11.2 
below)

                     0.02             11,424.07 

ii) In Current Account                  120.84                      8.98 
iii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts               4,863.23               1,074.17 

Total 4,984.09              12,507.22            

11.1

11.2

11.3 Cash and Cash equivalents considered for cash flow statement

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
i) In Treasury Savings Bank Account with Department of 
Treasuries, Government of Kerala                      0.02             11,424.07 

ii) In Current Account                  120.84                      8.98 
iii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts               4,863.23               1,074.17 

              4,984.09             12,507.22 

Less: Book overdraft (Refer Note. 22) -                       30.03                   
Total 4,984.09              12,477.19            

12 Bank balances other than (Cash and cash equivalents) above

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Balances with Banks
In earmarked deposit accounts- original maturity of more than 3 
months (Refer Note 12.1 below)                      1.29                    55.56 

PSF Escrow Account (Refer Note 12.2 below)                  210.68                  210.68 

Total 211.97                 266.24                 

12.1

12.2 Escrow account balance for Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) [PSF (SC)] collected as
referred in Note No. 41

Balances held as security against guarantees issued to:
(a) Kerala State Electricity Board - Rs.Nil  (Previous year: Rs.54.35 Lakh ); and
(b) Department of telecommunication - Rs.1.29 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.1.21 Lakh ).

Balance as at March 31, 2020 includes, cheque issued to the contractor but not presented till March 31,
2020 - Rs.206.90 Lakh

Balance as at March 31, 2020 includes, Rs.11620.96 Lakh reversed from this account by the Government
of Kerala on March 31, 2020. Subsequently the Parent has pointed out to the Government of Kerala that
the reversal of the said amount of Rs.11620.96 Lakh is a discrepancy and the amount should be credited
back to the Parent. Pursuant to the aforesaid communication, during the year the Government of Kerala
has credited back the amount of Rs.11620.96 Lakh to the Parent on April 28, 2020.
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13 Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Contractually reimbursable expenses (Refer Note 13.1)
(Receivable from Kerala State Government Departments) 2,225.67              2,237.67              

Total 2,225.67              2,237.67              

13.1

14 Other Current Assets

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Prepaid expenses 249.97                 212.28                 
GST Input Credit 1436.78 797.78                 
Unbilled Revenue 389.17                 424.69                 
Receivable from NASFT (Refer Note No. 41) 232.80                 122.94                 
Other Advances 55.51                   1.81                     

Total 2,364.23              1,559.50              

The Parent had based on the Kerala Government Order No.13/2017/TRANS dated February 2, 2017 and
the tripartite agreement between the Parent, Superintending Engineer, Minor Irrigation, Kozhikode Circle
and Uralungal Labour Contract Society Limited (ULCC) made payments aggregating to Rs.1514.46 Lakh
(Previous year: Rs.1514.46 Lakh) to various Government departments towards the electrification, monsoon 
mitigation, storm water drain, construction / extension of water pipeline, blasting compensation, land
acquisition etc. for the roads and areas surrounding the airport which were to be paid back to the Parent on
conclusion of the various infrastructure jobs by the respective departments.

The Parent has vide its communication dated June 6, 2020 requested the Government of Kerala to
authorize the release of these amounts paid to ULCC.The Parent has received Rs.626 Lakh as
reimbursement of amount paid to ULCC on June 4, 2021. As per the order of the Government, the amount
reimbursed is to be treated as Equity of the Government in the Parent. The Parent has requested vide
letter dated July 1, 2021, to the Government to treat the said reimbursement as an expenditure of
Government and not as Equity contribution of Government.

The Management is confident of receiving the balance amount of Rs. 888.46 Lakh (Previous year: 888.46
Lakh) and has accordingly not considered it necessary to make any allowances towards impairment of
these balances.
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15 Equity Share Capital

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

 Authorized share capital          350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 
 (Equity shares of Rs.100/- each) 
 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
shares         133,812,100           133,812.10         133,812,100           133,812.10 

 (Equity shares of Rs.100/- each) 

15.1

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

 Authorised Share Capital 

 Balance as at  the beginning of the year         350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 

 Changes in  Authorised Equity Share 
capital during the year                          -                            -                            -                            -   

 Balance as at  the end of the year         350,000,000           350,000.00         350,000,000           350,000.00 

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
Share Capital 

 Balance as at  the beginning of the year         133,812,100           133,812.10         116,050,000           116,050.00 

 Changes in  Equity Share capital during 
the year -                                          -             17,762,100             17,762.10 

 Balance as at  the end of the year 133,812,100             133,812.10         133,812,100           133,812.10 

Details of number of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

No of Shares % No of Shares %

 Government of Kerala  52,500,000          39.23%           52,500,000 39.23%

 Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 21,680,000          16.20%           21,680,000 16.20%

 Airports Authority of India  10,000,000          7.47%           10,000,000 7.47%
 M A Yusufali 11,500,000          8.59% 11,500,000          8.59%

During the previous year, the Parent made an allotment of 125 Lakh numbers of equity shares to Governor of Kerala,
based on the Government Order vide GO (Rt) No. 334/2019/Trans dated July 23, 2019.

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Parent has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the Parent after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

Shares Issued for consideration other than cash:

The Parent has issued 31594038 No's of shares to Government of Kerala towards the cost of land transferred to the
Parent for construction of the airport. 

Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
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16 Other Equity

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Retained Earnings 
Balance at beginning of year (14,098.17)          (4,594.31)            
Less: Loss for the year (18,499.68)          (9,503.86)            
Balance at end of year (32,597.85)          (14,098.17)          

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Balance at beginning of year (20.18)           (6.52)                    

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (0.03)                    (13.66)                 
Balance at end of year (20.21)                 (20.18)                 

Capital Reserve 
Balance at beginning of year 30.70                   30.70                   
Addition during the year -                 -                       
Balance at end of year 30.70                   30.70                   

Securities Premium (Refer note No 16.1 below)
Balance at beginning of year 133.67                 -                       
Addition during the year -                 133.67                 
Balance at end of year 133.67                 133.67                 

Opening balance of other equity (13,953.98)          (4,570.13)            
Closing balance of other equity (32,453.69)          (13,953.98)          

16.1

17 Borrowings

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Secured- at amortised cost
Term loans:

Canara Bank             72,214.47             69,559.33 
The Federal Bank Limited               9,357.88               9,002.97 
The South Indian Bank Limited             11,458.56             11,004.74 

Funded interest term loan (FITL) :
Canara Bank               1,653.13                          -   
The Federal Bank Limited                  210.39                          -   
The South Indian Bank Limited                  272.35                          -   

Total 95,166.78            89,567.04            

Security and terms of repayment in respect of above borrowings are as follows:

Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The
utilisation of the securities premium is governed by Section 52 of the Act.

Term loan borrowings are from a consortium of banks with Canara Bank as the lead bank. Member banks
involved in the consortium are The South Indian Bank Limited and The Federal Bank limited.

The Parent agreed to borrow from the Consortium the sums to the maximum extent of Rs.89200 Lakh out
of which Rs. 69200 Lakh is from Canara Bank, Rs.11000 Lakh from The South Indian Bank Limited and
Rs. 9000 Lakh from The Federal Bank Limited, on the security of immovable properties and other
securities mentioned hereunder;
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Bank Name

Base Rate /MCLR 
plus Spread on 
the base rate as 
at March 31, 2021

Base Rate /MCLR 
plus Spread on 
the base rate as 
at March 31, 2020

Canara Bank (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%) 9.30% 9.45%
The South Indian Bank Ltd (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%)

9.30% 9.55%
The Federal Bank Ltd (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.40%) 9.30% 9.55%
Canara Bank FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.30%) 10.30% -
The South Indian Bank Ltd  FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 
10.30%) 10.30% -
The Federal Bank Ltd FITL (Agreed rate of Interest p.a. is 10.30%)

10.30% -

Current maturities of the long term debt is not reclassified as the repayment will begin only after the end of
the moratorium period.

a) Pari passu first charge on all immovable and moveable assets of the Parent both present and 
future

.

Agreed rate of Interest are as under

b) Assignment of all the project related documents, contracts, rights, interests, insurance contracts and all
the benefits incidental to project activities on a pari passu basis.

c)   First pari passu charge on all the bank accounts pertaining to the project.

As per the supplementary term loan agreement dated April 27, 2021, interest accrued from March 1, 2020
till August 31, 2020 was capitalized to the original term loan under COVID 19 Regulatory Package.

The Parent is liable to pay penal interest at the rate of 2% per annum or at such other rate as is specified
by the lending banks, over and above the normal rate of interest, from the date of default until due
repayment in addition to and irrespective of any other consequences and remedies available to the lending
Banks. 
During the current year, the Parent was late in paying interest on its loans. The delay arose because of a
temporary lack of funds on the date interest was payable. The lender did not request accelerated
repayment of the loan.
The bankers have charged penal interest amounting to Rs.3.07 Lakh during the year ended March 31,
2021 (Previous year Rs.8.71 Lakh ) on the loans due to delays in servicing of interest.

d) The Parent has created an equitable mortgage (EM) of 1192.54 acres of land as security for term loan
sanctioned by Canara Bank.

Collateral security: Further the Government of Kerala has pledged 1,78,49,960 equity shares held in the
Parent with the lenders as security to the term loan.

Initially the tenor of the loan was fixed at 44 quarterly instalments starting from the third quarter of Financial
Year 2020-21 till the 2nd quarter of Financial Year 2030-31. The loan has been restructured under
resolution framework for exposures other than personal loans under stress due to Covid Pandemic by
extending the moratorium period by 2 years with the repayment of the loan starting from 4th Quarter of
Financial Year 2022-23. The repayment of the loan has to be made in 52 quarterly installments as per the
resolution plan as against 44 quarterly installments as per original sanction order. 
Further to this, the Parent has been sanctioned a funded interest term loan of Rs.19617 Lakh to fund the
interest accrued and future interest accruing from December 29, 2020 to December 28, 2022 which also
needs to be repaid with interest as per the revised repayment schedule of the original loan. The funded
interest term loan carries an additional interest rate of 1% over and above the original term loan.

The Government of Kerala has provided a Letter of Comfort dated June 8, 2015 to Canara Bank in
connection with the term loan sanctioned to take appropriate action in the case of any shortfall in the
project term loan repayment obligations.
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18 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Security deposits at amortized cost 643.89                 644.02                 

Total 643.89                 644.02                 

19 Provisions (Non Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Gratuity                  124.59                    97.06 

Total 124.59                 97.06                   

20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Deferred Income:

Total 1,000.00              1,000.00              
20.1

21 Trade Payables

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises* 31.92                   36.35                   
Dues to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 3,134.39              1,858.99              

Total 3,166.31              1,895.34              

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

                   31.92                    36.35 

the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year;

                         -                            -   

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006;

                         -                            -   

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and

                     0.36                      0.36 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

                         -                            -   

 *Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Parent and relied upon by
the auditors.

 Grant received from Ministry of Commerce and Industry, 
Government of India (Refer Note 20.1 below) 

1,000.00              1,000.00              

Receipt of grant for the construction of cargo complex under the Trade Infrastructure for Exports Scheme
(TIES). The construction of the Cargo Complex is under progress as on the balance sheet date. The
income will be recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over
the useful life of the related asset. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to
this grant.
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22 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 7,543.81              9,699.47              
Security Deposits 136.47                 97.78                   
Retention Payable 165.15                 343.42                 
Other Payables 490.82                 482.76                 
Book overdraft (Refer Note. 11.3) -                       30.03                   
Interest Accrued and due 61.40                   673.97                 

Total 8,397.65              11,327.43            

23 Provisions (Current)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Gratuity 8.21                     4.14                     
Leave encashment 10.39                   12.15                   

Total 18.60                   16.29                   

24 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Statutory Liabilities 172.19                 82.61                   
Payable for passenger security services 276.52                 256.35                 
Deferred revenue on fair valuation of liabilities 214.70                 260.14                 
Advance from customers 120.78                 51.24                   

Total 784.19                 650.34                 
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25 Revenue from Operations

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Aero revenue (Refer Note 25.2 below)               3,165.23               8,535.39 
Non Aero Revenue

Space Rentals                  373.78                  439.75 
Revenue share from Concessionaire                  380.67               1,265.79 
Car Parking                    22.74                  147.61 
Fuel Throughput Royalty (Refer Note 25.3 below)                          -                    376.34 
Visitor's Entry Pass                      2.51                    61.85 
Common User Infrastructure Charges (CAM Charges)                    51.23                  227.29 
Others - utility charges                    56.90                  111.61 

Other Operating Income
License Fee for Unpaved Land from BKFFPL, Joint Venture 
Company (Income from Related parties)                  424.00                  424.17 

Total 4,477.06              11,589.80            

25.1

25.2

25.3

26 Other Income

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Interest on Fixed Deposits                  308.26                    59.54 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 87.77                                         -   
Net (gain) / loss on Foreign currency transactions and 
translations 1.90                                           -   

Insurance claim received 58.23                
Miscellaneous Income                    49.32                    35.39 
Deferred income on fair valuation on financial liabilities                    45.45                    90.64 

Total 550.93                 185.57                 

The Parent earned entire income from operations in India.

Out of the Aero Revenue an amount of Rs.158.62 Lakh (Previous Year: Rs.398.59 Lakh) pertains to
unbilled revenue in connection with Terminal Navigational Landing Charges, Parking Charges etc. which
was billed after the close of the financial year.

As per the direction from Ministry of Civil Aviation, levy of fuel throughput charges has been discontinued
w.e.f. January 15, 2020 on the condition that the revenue will be compensated through an enhanced rate
of User Development Fees.
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27 Airport Operating Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Power and Fuel                  865.15               1,281.52 
Insurance on Assets                  106.20                    70.59 
Repairs and Maintenance                  259.14                  255.48 
House Keeping                  893.22                  950.32 
Operations & Maintenance Expenses                  621.75                  488.69 
Customs Cost Recovery Charges                  878.40                  864.91 
Aviation Meteorological Support Services                  108.24                    97.82 
Communication, Navigation and Surveillance and Air Traffic 
Management Services                  621.87                  678.28 
Other operational expenses                    19.28                    10.80 
Security Service                    45.43                    45.40 
Trolley Retrieval Services                    54.55                    50.32 
Water Charges                    32.50                    57.30 

Total 4,505.73              4,851.43              

28 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Salaries & Allowances               1,039.75                  973.92 
Contribution to provident and other funds 36.79                36.41                
Gratuity 35.76                32.05                
Staff Welfare Expenses                    44.51                  101.88 

Total 1,156.81              1,144.26              

29 Finance Cost

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Interest on Term Loans               8,777.91               8,549.04 
Unwinding of discount relating to Long Term Liabilities                    40.91                    83.06 
Interest on delayed payment of Income Tax                      0.05                      2.41 
Interest on delayed payment of Customs costs                    86.32                          -   

Total 8,905.19              8,634.51              
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30 Other Expenses

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Administrative Expenses 8.58                  17.11                
Advertisement 20.61                44.33                
Payment to Auditors 
      - For Audit 21.00                21.00                
Consultancy Charges 71.80                
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure 7.87                  77.60                
Collection Charges-Prebooked Taxi 3.61                  
Employee Training expenses 8.62                  12.65                
Insurance-operations 19.75                15.83                
Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables 118.27             150.56             
Postage and Courier charges 0.40                  4.45                  
Printing and Stationery 5.30                  8.31                  
Legal and Professional charges              221.66                 81.45 
Recruitment Expenses 3.67                  33.15                
Rates and Taxes (refer Note 30.1 below) 394.65             133.01             
Rent 3.60                  3.40                  
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 3.93                  2.75                  
Sitting Fees 1.10                  0.60                  
Travelling Expenses 59.34                79.58                
Website Maintenance Charges 2.64                  4.09                  
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.44                  -                   
Credit impaired Trade Receivables written off (refer note 30.2) 500.49             333.20             
Miscellaneous Expenses 37.64                12.79                

Total 1,443.17              1,107.66              
30.1

30.2

31 Deferred Tax

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended
March 31, 2020 

Opening balance               5,037.87               3,646.00 
Opening balance recognized in other comprehensive loss                      5.62                      2.68 

Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets 
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles             29,968.81             32,394.95 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity               8.22                    12.47 
Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables             28.47                    39.15 
Brought forward business losses                          -                 2,969.21 
Deduction under section 35AD of the Income Tax Act 34,189.02            34,189.02            

MAT Credit
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement                  220.29                  220.29 

Recognised in other comprehensive Loss
Tax expense during the year recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Loss                      8.31                      8.30 

Net deferred tax (liability) / asset 4,485.50              5,043.49              
Deferred tax expense / (Income) 557.99                (1,394.81)            

Includes Rs.187.61 Lakh (Previous year Rs. Nil ) being one time building tax remitted to Tahsildar,
Thalassery Taluk
The Parent has written off a total of Rs. 633.28 lakh (Previous year 333.20 Lakh) during the year of which
Rs. 132.79 lakh (Previous year Nil) is against the provision made in the previous year.
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Recognized in Statement of profit and loss 558.00                (1,389.19)            
Recognized in other comprehensive loss (0.01)                   (5.62)                   
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31

31

31

32 Earnings Per Share

Particulars
 For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2020 

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent           (18,499.68)             (9,503.86)
Weighted average number of equity shares        133,812,100 128,867,975       
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (of face value Rs.100) (Rs.) (13.83)                 (7.37)                   

33 Corporate Social Responsibility

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended
March 31, 2020 

Gross amount required to be spend during the year
Amount spent during the year:                          -                            -   
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset                          -                            -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above                      7.87 77.60                   
(iii) Unpaid amount out of (i) and (ii) above                          -                            -   

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Parent, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on
corporate social responsibility (CSR) Activities. A CSR Committee has been formed by the Parent as per
the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Parent has been meeting these expenditure as part of its commitment with Ministry of Environment,
Forest and Climate Change for environmental clearance for the construction of an International Airport at
the location whereby the Parent has to spend 5% of the project cost towards environment, energy and
water conservation measures over the years.

The Parent has recognised a deferred tax asset of Rs.34189.02 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.34,189.02 Lakh)
on unused tax losses arising from its claim under section 35 AD of Income Tax Act, 1961 considering the
unlimited carry forward period for set off against future taxable profits.  

Subsequent to the year end on 31 March 2020, on filing of the revised return of income claiming the
aforesaid deduction under section 35 AD of the Income tax Act, 1961 in respect of Assessment Year
2019-20, the Parent received Intimation under 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 dated 16 January,
2021, rejecting its claim in the revised return. The Management has filed an appeal before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) in respect of the above disallowance which is pending
adjudication. The Management has been advised that the case for its appeal is tenable and therefore is
confident of a favourable outcome.
The Management reviewed the carrying amount of deferred tax asset recognised on brought forward
business losses as at March 31, 2021, and in view of revised traffic forecasts considering the continuing
COVID19 impact, the revenue/cost/profit and taxable profit projections were re-estimated by the
Management. Pursuant thereto, the Management decided to de-recognise the deferred tax asset
recognised in earlier years on brought forward business losses aggregating Rs. 2,969.21 Lakh and not
recognise any further deferred tax asset on current year business tax losses, as it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available for setting off the unused tax losses before the time
period for set-off of such losses expire. The impact of such de-recognition of deferred tax asset on
brought forward business losses has been accounted in the Statement of Profit and loss for the year
ended March 31, 2021.  
Unused tax losses i.e. brought forward unabsorbed income tax business losses on which no deferred tax 
asset has been created as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 21,730.91 Lakh (As at March 31, 2020 - Rs. Nil).
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34 Related Party Disclosure

Names of related parties and nature of relationship are as under:
(a) Joint Venture Company

BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
(b) Names of other related parties and nature of relationship

Key Management Personnel
Mr. Thulasidas V (up to March 11, 2021) Managing Director
Dr. Venu Vasudevan (from March 12, 2021) Managing Director
Mr. S Jayakrishnan Chief Financial Officer
Mr. G Gnanendra Kumar Company Secretary

Parties with substantial interest and its affiliates
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited
Government of Kerala

Transactions with related parties

Mr. Thulasidas V
     Salary 40.64 40.78                   
Mr. S Jayakrishnan
     Salary 34.3 34.06                   
Mr. G  Gnanendra Kumar
     Salary 14.61 14.49                   
BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
     License fess on unpaved land 125.59 162.01                 
     Fuel Through Put Charges                          -   444.08                 
     Utility Charges 13.16 15.12                   

Government of Kerala (GoK)
     Expenses met by Parent on behalf of Government of Kerala                          -   447.57                 
     Equity shares issued                          -   17,500.00            

BPCL - KIAL Fuel Farm Private Limited 
     License fees receivable

                 140.06 43.30                   

     Utility Charges receivable                      3.92 4.89                     
     Fuel Throughput Charges receivables                          -   0.14                     
     Security Deposit                    11.00 11.00                   
Government of Kerala (GoK)
     Amount receivable from Government of Kerala               2,225.67 2,237.67              

Related Party
     Nature of Transaction

2020-2021 2019-2020

Transactions during the year

Outstanding Balances

The Parent has transactions (not included in the list above) with other Government of Kerala-controlled
entities / departments and these transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of business on terms
comparable to those with other entities that are not Government of Kerala-controlled entities.

Government of Kerala in connection with the term loans of the Parent has pledged its shares with the 
lenders and also provided a Letter of Comfort, refer Note 17 for details.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Parent, and as per Government of Kerala Order
dated February 11, 2021 the Managing Director, Dr. Venu Vasudevan was appointed w.e.f. March 12,
2021, which was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 26, 2021. This
appointment was subsequently approved by the shareholders in their meeting held on December 23,
2021. The aforesaid Government order has not specified the remuneration and other terms of his
appointment.

In accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 24 on "Related Party Disclosures" the names of the related
parties where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions/
year end balance  with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

166 12TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

35

Particulars

Debt             95,166.78             89,567.04 
Equity          101,358.41          119,858.12 
Debt to Equity ratio 93.89% 74.73%

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Parent’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Parent’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
effect of change in the interest rate will affect profit or loss of the Parent also the interest cost had a direct
bearing on the borrowing cost capitalised. The impact of increase or decrease of 100 basis points on the
loan will affect the loss of the Parent by Rs.895.32 Lakh (Previous year Rs.898.01 Lakh ) and value of
Plant property of equipment by Rs.Nil (Previous year Rs.0.89 Lakh).

Interest rate risk

The Parent's debt to equity ratio is analysed as follows:

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.
However, they are under constant review by the Board. The Parent has been sanctioned a funded
interest term loan of Rs.19617 Lakh to fund the interest accrued and future interest accruing from
December 29, 2020 to December 28, 2022 which also needs to be repaid with interest as per the revised
repayment schedule of the original loan.
Financial risk management 

The Parent's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Parent's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance. The Parent’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristic of each customer. The Parent's risk Management activity focuses on actively
securing the Parent’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to volatile financial
markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The Parent does not
actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purpose nor does it opt for options. The
most significant financial risk to which the Parent is exposed are described below: -     

The Parent has assessed market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk to its financial instruments.

Market Risk

Is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or cash flows that may result from a change in the price of
a financial instrument, as a result of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risks, primarily include loans and borrowings, investments and foreign
currency receivables, payables and borrowings.       

The Parent manages its capital structure by balanced mix of debt and equity. The Parent's capital
structure is influenced by the changes in the airport economic regulatory framework, Government
policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position of the Parent.

Capital Management
The Parent's objective when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders
through continuing growth and maximise the share holders' value. The Parent sets the amounts of capital
required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

For the purpose of the Parent's Capital Management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Parent. 
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Ageing of Trade receivables

Particulars

0-180 Days               2,873.77               2,325.12 
181-365 Days                  188.59                  244.30 
366-730 Days                  472.94                    12.19 
More than 730 Days                  145.13                          -   
Total               3,680.43               2,581.61 

Movement of allowance for credit impaired trade receivables 

Particulars

Opening balance                  150.56                          -   
Add : Created during the year                  118.27                  150.56 
Less : Utilised/Reversed during the year  (refer Note 30.2)                  132.79                          -   
Closing balance                  136.04                  150.56 

The Parent is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily from trade receivables
amounting to Rs. 3680.43 Lakh as of March 31, 2021 (Previous year Rs. 2581.60 Lakh). The credit
quality of the Parent's customers is monitored on an on going basis and assessed for impairment where
indicators of such impairment exist. Therefore, the Parent does not expect any material risk on account
of non performance by any of the Parent's counterparties. In the current year the Parent has made a
provision of Rs.118.27.50 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 150.56 Lakh) as impairment due to long outstanding
from few parties, which the Management is confident of its recovery.

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

The unprecedented nature of the pandemic has caused disruption in the operations of the
concessionaires resulting in their in capacity to meet the monthly minimum guarantee fee as per the
contractual terms. The Parent had to waive off various dues of the concessionaires pertaining to the year
and several balances were written off to ensure continuity of the business of the concessionaires in the
Airport. These risks are primarily in connection with the impact of the COVID pandemic which the
Management is closely monitoring.

Trade Receivables

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Parent’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the purchase of assets from abroad. The Parent’s only exposure at the
end of the year is an outstanding balance amounting to US$ 88,080 (Rs. 66.39 Lakh) (Previous year
US$ 88,080 [Rs. 66.39 Lakh]). The impact of increase or decrease of 100 basis points on the outstanding
balance will change the fair value of assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) by Rs. Nil (Previous year
0.66 Lakh). 

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Parent. The Parent is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
short term loans.

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term Loans (Other current financial assets)    

The Parent considers factors such as track record, size of institution, market reputation and service
standard to select the banks with which deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are
maintained with the institutions with which the Parent has been transacting for years. Therefore, the
Parent does not expect any material credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents and other
current financial assets.
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities:

Particulars

Maturity less than 1 year
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents (including other Bank balances)        5,196.06      12,773.46 

Trade Receivables        3,544.39        2,431.05 
Other Financial assets        2,225.67        2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables        3,166.31        1,895.34 
Other Financial liabilities        8,397.65      11,327.43 

Maturity 1 year to 3 years
Financial Assets

Security Deposits        1,153.93        1,100.15 
Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits             40.59                    68.95 
Borrowings        1,652.11                  562.10 

Maturity more than 3 years
Financial Assets                          -                            -   
Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits           603.30                  575.07 
Borrowings      93,514.67             89,004.94 

 As at
March 31, 2021 

 As at
March 31, 2020 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Parent may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises
due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure. The objective of liquidity risk
Management, is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
requirements. The Parent monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The
Parent’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and other contracts. The Parent has mitigated the risk by placing funds in short term deposits
with banks to match with the lead time for the disbursement of loans from the banks. The Parent has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over
with existing lenders. Also the mitigation of the cash flow shortages due to the COVID-19 Pandemic and
the pending commitments are detailed in Note 2.3.

The following table details the Parent's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and assets with agreed repayment periods. The table have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and financial assets based on the earliest date on which
the Parent can be required to pay. The table include both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which
the Parent may be required to pay.

The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the
Parent’s liquidity risk Management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

16912TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21



Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

36  Impact of COVID-19 pandemic
In March 2020, COVID-19, an infectious disease was declared a pandemic by the Word Health
Organization. On March 24, 2020, the Indian Government announced a strict 21-day lockdown which was
further extended across the country to contain the spread of the virus.

The traffic handled by the Parent was also impacted due to COVID-19 pandemic and on account of the
consequent travel restrictions in international travel and domestic travel, leading to substantial fall in the
number of passengers and air traffic movements. This position is expected to return to normalcy over the
next 2-3 years.

Due to reduced revenue and continued incurrence of fixed costs, the Parent’s performance was
adversely impacted, and losses were incurred during the year. 

The Parent has considered the possible impact of the pandemic up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the
current estimates, the Parent expects to fully recover the carrying amount of trade receivables, property
plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) and other assets and does not anticipate any
additional liabilities. The judgment, estimates and assumptions impacted by the global health pandemic
may be different from that estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements.

For this assessment, Management believes that it has taken into account the possible impact of known
events arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. The unprecedented nature of the pandemic makes the
future business environment uncertain, however, the Parent will continue to carry out the impact
assessment on its assets and closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

There have been no other significant events subsequent to the Balance Sheet date that would impact the
carrying values of the Parent’s assets and liabilities.

Also refer Note 2.3 in respect of appropriateness of Going concern assumption adopted in preparing
these financial statements. 

Several countries across the world have been announcing travel restrictions, partial or complete
lockdown to contain the spread of virus and to avoid the crisis. The extended lockdown period had seen
an adverse impact on the Indian economy. The gradual reopening of activities across the country has
seen some improvement in the economy, but the return to pre-Covid levels would take some time.

The COVID-19 pandemic impacted across major airports of India affecting the total passenger traffic,
aircraft movements and cargo freight. The drop in traffic can be attributed to suspension of domestic air
services for 2 months, reduced demand for air travel post resumption of services as leisure & business
travel is avoided in the near term with only essential travel being undertaken, suspension of scheduled
international flights with limited non-scheduled flights operating through Vande Bharat mission, charter,
and air bubble flights, cap on domestic flight capacity imposed by the Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA)
which has been gradually relaxed now and suspension of visas announced by various countries.
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37 Capital and other commitments
The Parent has the following capital commitments ;

Software Development Costs 6.77 6.77
Construction contracts (office and cargo complex , others) 7,576.64              8,093.12
Total 7,583.41              8,099.89

38 Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Parent not acknowledged as debts:

39 The Parent has the following investment in joint venture
Name of the company

Principal place of business
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020
Unquoted investments in Equity instruments (fully paid) in Rs. Lakh                  234.00                  234.00 
No of shares of face value Rs.10             2,340,000             2,340,000 
% of holding 26% 26%

Particulars of Contract As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

i) In the earlier years L&T (Contractor) had raised claims towards subsumed taxes due to the change
from service tax regime to the GST regime because of which the tax rates have increased beyond what
they have estimated at the time of tendering. The Parent had disputed the claims of the contractor and
the difference in the rates of subsumed taxes amounted to Rs. 498.24 Lakh as at March 31, 2020.
Subsequently, the Parent has negotiated and settled these claims with the Contractor and the necessary
entries have been recorded in the books of account in the current year.

BPCL-KIAL Fuel Farm Private 
Limited

ii) AECOM India Private Limited (AECOM), consultant for runway and airside works, has submitted a
revised statement of account (including claims/matters in respect of interest on delayed / non-payment of
invoices for services rendered, EMD deposit, variation in retention money and other deductions by the
Parent). Pending negotiation of the above matters/ claims and consequent reconciliation of balance, the
Parent has not acknowledged claims of Rs. 76.02 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.198.22 Lakh) as debt and
reflected it as a contingent liability

India
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

40.1 Employee Benefits

40.1 Defined contribution plans

40.2 Defined benefit plans

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. Assumption

Discount Rate 7.11% 6.82%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition Rate 6.00% 2.00%
Mortality rate  Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 
(Ultimate) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 
(Ultimate) 

2. Table showing changes in the present value of Obligation
Present value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 101.20    53.25                  
Interest Cost 7.05        3.51                    
Current Service Cost 28.71      28.54                  
Benefits paid (4.20)                    (3.38)                   
Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation 0.04        19.28                  
Present value of Obligation as at the end of the year 132.80                  101.20                

3. Table showing changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets*
4. Table showing fair value of Plan assets*
* As the Gratuity plan is unfunded, there are no disclosures related 
to fair value of plan assets
5. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized

Opening cumulative other comprehensive Income 28.48          9.20                    
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 0.04            19.28                  
Actuarial (gain) / Loss on Plan assets -             -                      
Total Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year 28.52                    28.48                  

6. The amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and loss

Present value of Obligation at the end of the year 132.80        101.20                
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year -                       -                      
Funded Status -                       -                      
(Net Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 132.80                  101.20                

7. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 28.71          28.54                  
Interest Cost 7.05            3.51                    
Expected Return on Plan assets -             -                      
Net Actuarial (gain) / Loss recognised in the year 0.04                      19.28                  
Weighted average duration of the D B O 15.24                    19.82                  

The Parent makes provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plan, for qualifying
employees. Under the scheme, the Parent is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll
costs to fund the benefits. The Parent recognised Rs.36.79 Lakh (Previous year: Rs.36.41 Lakh ) for
provident fund contribution in the consolidated Statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable to
this plan by the Parent are at rates specified in the rules of the said scheme.

The Parent offers Gratuity Benefit scheme to its employees.

The valuation results for the defined benefit gratuity plan as at March 31, 2021 are produced in the 
tables below:

The cost of providing Gratuity Benefit is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The gratuity benefit scheme is
unfunded.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Sensitivity Analysis for the year ended March 31, 2021
% increase in DBO Liability  Increase in

DBO (Rs.) 
Discount Rate +100 basis points                        -9.90% 119.65                  -13.15                 
Discount Rate -100 basis points                          11.95% 148.68                  15.87                  
Salary Growth +100 basis points                        11.34% 147.86                  15.05                  
Salary Growth -100 basis points                        -9.45% 120.25                  -12.55                 
Attrition Rate +100 basis points                           0.95% 134.07                  1.26                    
Attrition Rate -100 basis points                           -1.23% 131.18                  -1.63                   
Mortality Rate 10% up                                         0.05% 132.87                  0.06                    
Effect of no ceiling                                              1.99% 135.44                  2.64                    

Sensitivity Analysis for the year ended March 31, 2020
% increase in DBO Liability  Increase in

DBO (Rs.) 
Discount Rate +100 basis points                        -11.80% 8.92                      -11.93                 
Discount Rate -100 basis points                          14.59% 11.60                    14.76                  
Salary Growth +100 basis points                        13.83% 11.52                    13.99                  
Salary Growth -100 basis points                        -11.27% 8.98                      -11.40                 
Attrition Rate +100 basis points                           0.93% 102.21                  0.94                    
Attrition Rate -100 basis points                           -1.25% 9.99                      -1.26                   
Mortality Rate 10% up                                         0.05% 101.25                  0.05                    
Effect of no ceiling                                              1.04% 102.25                  1.05                    

41.1 Passenger Service Fee (PSF) 

During the Financial Year 2019-20, this arrangement has been changed by Ministry of Civil Aviation w.e.f.
July 1, 2019 wherein the name of PSF (SC) has been changed as Aviation Security Fees which will be
collected by a separate national level Trust by name National Aviation Security Fee Trust (NASFT).
Accordingly from July 1, 2019 onwards, the Aviation Security Fees collected by the airlines will be paid
directly by the airlines to the bank accounts of NASFT (instead of the earlier policy of paying them through
the Airport) and the cost of deployment charges (Salary and allowance etc.) of CISF personnel in the
airport will be met out of that fund. The Parent will have to meet other expenses of CISF from its own
funds and claim its reimbursement from NASFT. As on the date of Balance Sheet, the amount
recoverable in respect of other security related expenses incurred by the Parent w.e.f. July 1, 2019
pending reimbursement aggregated Rs. 232.80 Lakh (Previous year : Rs.122.94 Lakh) is included under
Other Current Assets (refer Note 14). Meanwhile, the erstwhile PSF (SC) fund account maintained by the
Parent is yet to be merged with NASFT funds.

The Passenger Service Fee (Security Component) [PSF (SC)] is collected by the airlines from the
passengers embarking from the Parent and subsequently paid by the airlines to the Parent from the
Airport Opening Date (AOD). The Parent is receiving these amounts from the airlines on behalf of
Government of India. The receipt of amounts towards the PSF (SC) are credited/maintained in an escrow
account maintained by the Parent only for utilisation towards security expenditure, pertaining to cost of
deployment of Central Industrial Security Forces (CISF) personnel and their related expenses. As such,
the PSF (SC) and the related security expenditure do not form part of revenues and expenditure
respectively, of the Parent.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

42.1 Fair Values

Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets 

At Amortized cost

Deposits         1,153.93              1,153.93 
Previous year               1,100.15              1,100.15 

Trade Receivables                3,544.39              3,544.39 
Previous year               2,431.05              2,431.05 

Cash and Cash equivalents including other bank balances                5,196.06              5,196.06 
Previous year             12,773.46            12,773.46 

Other financial assets                2,225.67              2,225.67 
Previous year               2,237.67              2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities 
At Amortized cost
Borrowings              95,166.78            95,166.78 

Previous year             89,567.04            89,567.04 
Security Deposits                   780.36                 780.36 

Previous year                  741.80                 741.80 
Trade Payables                3,166.31              3,166.31 

Previous year               1,895.34              1,895.34 
Other Financial Liabilities                8,261.18              8,261.18 

Previous year             11,229.65            11,229.65 

From the AOD till June 30, 2019, the PSF (SC) received by the Parent from the airlines is Rs.361.44 Lakh
(Rs. 227.31 Lakh from April 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019) and the cost of deployment of CISF personnel and
their related expenses for the said period was Rs.2169.93 Lakh (Rs.1224.91 Lakh from April 1, 2019 to
June 30, 2019) resulting in a deficit of Rs.1808.49 Lakh (Rs. 997.60 Lakh from April 1, 2019 to June 30,
2019), which deficit has not been recognized in these consolidated financial statements as a liability since
the Parent is only acting in a pass through capacity of receiving the PSF (SC) from the airlines and
utilizing the same towards the cost of deployment of CISF personnel and their related expenses and
considering the fact that the responsibility of providing security personnel to the airport is with the
Government of India. The Parent has received a letter dated October 9, 2019 from the National Aviation
Security Fee Trust (NASFT) asking the Parent to settle the cost of deployment bills of CISF in respect of
the aforesaid deficit. The Parent has written to the Ministry of Civil Aviation on October 29, 2019 citing
shortfall between the PSF collected and the amount payable to CISF due to the low passenger traffic in
the airport. The Parent has requested that the NASFT may settle the shortfall using the surplus PSF funds
available with the Government.

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities appearing in the consolidated financial
statements is reasonable approximation of fair values

Breakup of Financial assets and Liabilities 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2021

The management assessed the cash and cash equivalent, trade receivable, trade payable and other
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these
instruments .
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Level 1 
Financial Assets                          -                           -   
Financial Liabilities                          -                           -   

Level 2
Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash equivalents                5,196.06            12,773.46 
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings              95,166.78            89,567.04 
Level 3

Financial Assets 
Security Deposits  1,153.93              1,100.15 
Trade Receivables  3,544.39              2,431.05 
Other financial assets  2,225.67              2,237.67 

Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits     780.36                 741.80 
Trade Payables  3,166.31              1,895.34 
Other Financial Liabilities  8,261.18            11,229.65 

43.1 Income Tax

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Current Income Tax Charge                          -                           -   

b) Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences                 (558.00)              1,389.19 

Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) as per consolidated statement
of profit and loss

                  558.00             (1,389.19)

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax liability

On difference between book balance and tax balance of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 29,968.81             32,394.95           

Deferred tax liability 29,968.81                        32,394.95 

Deferred Tax Assets 
Arising on account of temporary differences due to 
disallowances 36.69                    51.61                  
Brought forward business losses -                       2,969.21             
Deduction under section 35AD of the Income Tax Act 34,189.02             34,189.02           

Deferred tax asset 34,225.71             37,209.84           

Deferred tax asset (Net) 4,256.90              4,814.90             
Add: Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlement                   220.29 220.29                
Tax expense during the year recognized in the OCI                       8.31                     8.30 
Deferred Tax asset (unutilised tax credit)                4,485.50              5,043.49 

Level 1 : Fair Value measurement using Quoted prices in Active Markets
Level 2 : Fair Value measurement using significant observable inputs
Level 3 : Fair Value measurement using significant unobservable inputs

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The fair valuation of the security deposits are computed using the current applicable discounting rate
(10%).
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

44 Dispute relating to the appointment of statutory auditors

•
•
•

The Parent in its letter dated August 14, 2017 to the Principal Accountant General (C&AG office) stated
that it is not a Government Parent as defined under the 2013 Act, nor is it a Parent owned or controlled,
directly or indirectly, by the Central Government, or State Government or partly by the Central
Government, or the State Government or partly by the Central Government and partly by the State
Government; and that as Section 139(5) of the Act was not applicable, and that the Parent was entitled to
appoint its statutory auditors by its General Meeting . 

The Parent additionally obtained a legal opinion on February 2, 2018, to that effect which confirmed that
the provisions of section 139(5) of the Act do not apply to the Parent. On the strength of the aforesaid
legal opinion, the Board of Directors on June 28, 2018, authorised the Managing Director to seek an
expression of interest from audit firms for appointment as statutory auditors of the Parent. Consequently,
in pursuance of a resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on January 19, 2019,
the Parent appointed the current statutory auditors (i.e., Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP) on March 28, 2019
for a period of five years, i.e., from financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23.

The Office of C&AG vide their letter dated October 21 2019 (the “Letter”) informed that the Parent cannot
exempt itself from the provisions of Section 139(5) of the Act which are applicable to a ‘deemed
Government Parent’ by virtue of the Circular referred to above. Further, vide letter dated November 25,
2019, the MCA informed that the Parent is required to comply with sections 139(5) and 139(7) of the Act.
MCA further directed the Parent to take appropriate steps to get the audit of the Parent carried out in
terms of section 139(5) and (7) of the Act (i.e., by an auditor appointed by the C&AG)

The Parent filed a writ petition on December 2, 2019 with the Hon’ble High Court of Kerala at Ernakulam
for: 

The Parent was originally incorporated  as a  Government Parent and later it became  a deemed 
Government Parent under the provisions of section 619B of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 (the “Old
Act”). Accordingly, from the inception of the Parent, auditors appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India (“C&AG”) carried out the statutory audit of the Parent. This position continued up to the
financial year ended March 31, 2018. On enactment of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) replacing the
Old Act, and sections139(5) and 139(7) of the 2013 Act, deal with appointment of statutory auditors by
the C&AG were notified on April 1, 2014. 

Quashing the said letter
Declaration that the provisions of  section 139 (5) and (7) of the Act are not applicable to the Parent  and 

The Hon’ble High Court of Kerala by interim Order dated December 3, 2019 has granted interim stay on
the operation of the aforesaid Letter pending disposal of the writ petition. 

Accordingly the Board of Directors have approved the consolidated financial statements of the Parent for
the year ended March 31, 2019, at its meeting held on December 3, 2020, and submitted the same to its
auditors, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, for their audit report thereon, in accordance with the requirements
of section 134(1) of the Act. 

Direction to MCA to refrain from insisting upon appointment of statutory auditor by C&AG in terms of Sec
139(5) and (7) of the Act.
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Kannur International Airport Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated

45

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Venu Vasudevan K Parvathyammal
Managing Director Director
(DIN: 01105099) (DIN: 07254970)

S Jayakrishnan G Gnanendrakumar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(PAN: AGPPS4585B) (PAN: AIVPG3442M)

Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date : April 21, 2022

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code) which would impact the contributions by the Parent
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity has received Presidential assent in September 2020. However, the
date from which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Ministry of Labour and
Employment (Ministry) has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020 and has invited
suggestions from stake holders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Parent will
complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its financial statement in the period in which the
Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

Based on legal opinion received, the Parent’s Board of Directors is of the view that the appointment of
statutory auditors is in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Parent continue to reaffirm the appointment Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP as
auditors of the Parent based on legal advice obtained by them and also the shareholders of the Parent (a)
in the Annual General Meeting held on December 28, 2020 have noted the Other Matter Paragraph on
appointment of statutory auditors reported in the audit report for the year ended March 31, 2019 as a part
of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Parent for the year ended March 31, 2019 together with
Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon; (b) in the Annual General Meeting held on December 23,
2021 have noted the Other Matter Paragraph on appointment of statutory auditors reported in the audit
report for the year ended March 31, 2020 as a part of approval of the Annual Accounts of the Parent for
the year ended March 31, 2020 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon, and did not
have any reservations / comments regarding the appointment of the statutory auditors. 

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
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AIRPORT
FEATURES

The stunning new gateway to several spectacular 
tourism hotspots, Kannur International Airport is the 
fourth international airport in Kerala. Enabling a 
hassle-free approach to verdant and picturesque 
locales like Wayanad, Bekal, Coorg, Ooty, and Mysore, 
Kannur International Airport helps visitors conveniently 
access dazzling beaches, historic forts, and 
breathtaking hill stations. 

The area is also known for attractions like 
Muzhappilangad, the longest drive-in beach in Asia, 
Munderi Kadavu Bird Sanctuary, Pappinissery Snake 
Park etc, within a radius of 50 km from Kannur Airport. 
People also visit the North Malabar region for 
Ayurvedic, Medical, and Spiritual tourism. 

Being the land of unique and traditional cultural 
experiences, with evocative art forms like Theyyam and 
Kalari, Kannur has enthralled visitors from across the 
globe. At the airport, visitors are welcomed by intricate 
murals depicting various traditions of North Kerala.

Kannur Airport is all set to be the new gateway for 
tourists to rediscover God’s Own Country.

3050 m Long Runway | Instrument 
Landing System | Code E Complaint 
| Full Length Parallel Taxiway | Apron 
for parking 20 Code C Aircrafts | Six 
Aerobridges | ARFF Cat 7 scalable to 
Cat 9 | Parking Facility for 900 Cars | 
Full-�edged Cargo Complex

Capacity handle 9 million Passengers 
| Integrated Terminal with LEED 
Gold Rating | Lounges in Arrival and 
Departure | Self Check In Kiosks | 
Self Baggage Drop Facility | Meet & 
Greet Services | 24x7 Airport Taxi 
Service | Airport Hotel Inside 
Terminal Building | Duty Free Shops 
with Leading Brands | Visitors’ 
Gallery | Foreign Exchange Services 
| Baby Care Rooms

TAKING TOURISM,
TRAVEL AND TRADE
TO NEVER
BEFORE HEIGHTS

KANNUR AIRPORT
OFFERS OPPORTUNITIES FOR:

 Large land bank for aviation-related business
 Cargo potential for dry fruits, spices, fish, meat, tea,  
 coffee, and fresh flowers
 Popular destination for Ayurvedic, medical and   
 pilgrimage tourism
 Multi modal logistics
 Travel, leisure related business
 Retail, entertainment & events business
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CITIES CONNECTED

INTERNATIONAL
Abu Dhabi | Bahrain | Dammam | Doha | Dubai

Kuwait | Muscat | Salalah | Sharjah | Riyadh 

DOMESTIC
Bengaluru | Chennai | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kozhikkode

Mumbai | New Delhi | Thiruvananthapuram

Kannur International Airport
Kannur International Airport P.O.
Mattannur, Kannur – 670708

+91-490-2481000
info@kannurairport.aero
www.kannurairport.aero

FOLLOW US ON 

@ airportCNN
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